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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—B-hEFE —ZT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets HERAFEFACEREEZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBEEZIBMIE 42,557 45,386
Revenue E 600 600
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ARARFEEABRLBERFEERBE
the Company (87,911) (19,365)
2019 2018
—®-nE  —F-N\F
HK$0.107%& T HK$0.26/8 7T

Net asset value per share BREEFE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEHRE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China
Investment Development Limited (the “"Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “"Group”) hereby present its report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in investment
holding for medium to long-term capital appreciation purposes,
and investment in listed and unlisted securities. There have been
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal

activities during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 58 of the annual report. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the

year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Review and Future Prospect

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are
provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis section on

pages 17 to 23 of this Annual Report.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 17 to 23 of this Annual

Report.

Important Events after the Year-end Date
No important events affecting the Group have occurred since the
end of the financial year ended 31 March 2019.

— - i
— - e
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's principal business activities are exposed to a
variety of key risks including credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk and market risk. Details of the aforesaid
key risks and risk mitigation measures are set out in “Financial
Risk Management Objectives and Policies” in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Policy and Performance

We are committed to protect the environment by introducing a
green policy to enhance the awareness of environmental protection
among staff. The Group has implemented internal recycling
programme for office consumables such as toner cartridges and

paper to help protect the environment and natural resources.

The Group has also implemented energy saving practices in offices
and branch premises where applicable, such as taking initiatives to
reduce paper usage by encouraging the use of websites and online
version of corporate communications. As regards reduction of
power consumption, lighting, air-conditioners and office equipment

will be turned off when not in use.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements. The Group has been allocating resources
to ensure the Group's ongoing compliance with the updated
applicable rules and regulations. During the year under review, the
Group has, to the best of our knowledge, complied with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Company Law of Bermuda, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and

other relevant rules and regulations.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders
The Group's success lies also on the support from key stakeholders,

including shareholders, employees, bankers, and service providers.

6 Annual Report % ¥ 2019
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Relationships with Key Stakeholders (continued)
Shareholders

One of the corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate
value to our shareholders. Description of the shareholders’
rights and our investor relations can be found in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 24 to 35 of this Annual Report.

Employees

The Group treasures our employees as the most important assets
of the Group. The objective of the Group’s human resources
management is to reward and recognise our employees by
providing a competitive remuneration package, appropriate
incentives such as share options and bonus, and opportunities

within the Group for career advancement.

Bankers
The Group has maintained excellent relationship with our bankers
and has been soliciting funds from our bankers as and when

necessary.

Service Providers

The Group's good relationships with its key service providers are
important in our provision of effective and efficient services as well
as meeting business challenges and regulatory requirements. The
key service providers provide professional services to the Group

which are key to our success.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the

year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the Company

are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERE

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 61 to 62 and in note 23 to the

consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company
had no reserves available for distribution to shareholders (2018:
HK$0).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As the Group is engaged in investment holding for medium to
long-term capital appreciation purposes, and investment in listed
and unlisted securities, there are no major customers and suppliers

during the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 144. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial

statements.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee
Mr. Zhang Xuming (resigned as Chief Executive Officer
on 13 August 2018 and executive Director on 17 August 2018)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Yang Xiaoqiu (appointed as non-executive Director
on 17 August 2018 and as Chairman on 6 September 2018)

Mr. Chen Yin (ceased to be Chairman on 6 September 2018)
Mr. Zhang Kun (resigned on 25 January 2019)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEHRE

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wan Tat Wai, David (appointed on 30 July 2018 and
resigned on 8 January 2019)

Mr. Ho Kim Fung (appointed on 30 July 2018 and
resigned on 25 January 2019)

Mr. Li Li (appointed on 30 July 2018)

Mr. Lai Yuen Piu (appointed on 25 January 2019)

Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (appointed on 25 January 2019)

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (resigned on 23 July 2018)

Mr. Leung Wing Kin (resigned on 27 July 2018)

Mr. Leung Chi Kong (resigned on 27 July 2018)

In accordance with Bye-law 120 of the Company's bye-laws,
Mr. Lai Yuen Piu and Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM"), and being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election thereat.

In accordance with Bye-law 153 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Li
Li and Mr. Chen Yin shall retire by rotation at the AGM. Mr. Li Li,
being eligible, offers himself for re-election at the AGM, but Mr.
Chen has not offered himself for re-election thereat and will cease
to be Director at the conclusion of the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 47 to 50 of the

annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERE

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions held by
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the "SFO") as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
"Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were

as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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Number of shares/underlying shares held

Fiske/ HRERO#E
Number of shares Approximate
Number of issuable on share percentage of
Name of Director Capacity in which interests are held shares held options held Total interests shareholding
FEBREZ ERER L
EEpE FEREZHH FERGHEE  TRTROHUE agn Bl
(Note 2) (Note 1)
(H1i22) (1)
Mr. Chen Yin (Note 3) Interests of controlled corporation 109,188,000 - 109,188,000 10.32%
BRI & (Hit3) Ed VNG 3
Beneficial owner 2,730,000 2,730,000 0.26%
BB
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee Beneficial owner - 81,100,000 81,100,000 0.92%
RESEE BaaA

10  Annual Report % 2019



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEHRE

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS

IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (continued)

Notes:

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of the Company’s

issued share capital of 8,821,857,294 shares as at 31 March 2019.

2. The relevant interests are share options granted pursuant to the Company's
share option scheme adopted on 9 April 2009 (the “Scheme”). Upon exercise of
the share options in accordance with the Scheme, ordinary shares of HK$0.001
each in the share capital of the Company are issuable. The share options are

personal to the respective Directors and the holders thereof are entitled to

subscribe for shares of the Company.

3. Mr. Chen Yin is deemed to have interest in 109,188,000 shares in the Company
held by Micah Holdings Limited, a private company wholly-owned by Ms. Ji Jie,

the spouse of Mr. Chen.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

China Investment DevelopmentVLimited o MEREHEER AT — —

— - i

— - e

EERFETBAERRKRS - HEKRHD
REREER (F)

FRARRDREBRG 2HFA (F)

1. BEBSLEDEARTINR=ZZ—hLF=A=+—
A 2 223 1TR% 48,821,857, 294 i 1D st E 15 H ©

2. ABEZTBREARIINR_ZZTHLENANLBIR
W BB (318 ) BE 2 BRI -1TEIR
BB REZERERS ARTAQRRARSE
BEECOB L T @R -EBRERREHEES
BARE FHBEABERABARRARRG -

3. BRIBLEEWKRIENMicah Holdings Limited (—=
HRAEZRBERZT2EBBZRAARA)
F562109,188,0000 A 2 R R 0 R A #E = o

BREXEEEN R-_F—-NF=ZA=1t—8"
EZAARAETETRAERERARRRHEME
AR E (E&EREFMBMEERGIEXVER) 2
iy HERHIERET BESTALRRA
RIBEEF R EEOIE325BFE 2 B sk
RIFBRETAERTHE AR A RB R 2
FAKRE -

Annual Report #2019 11



hina Investment Development Limited e # B EREARAT

—————

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2019, the following persons, other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company, were interested or had short
positions in more than 5% of the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

FERR

R-FB-NAF=ZA=1t—HB BREFRARAE
ZITHA BN WIRBE S K E G PIF3361%7A
FEZ B£8R ARG RAEAK
H5%IA LS TORBE Z AL :

Approximate

Capacity in which Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholder Interests are held shares held shareholding
14 IR
BRERESR BB BEEZZEH s 8 H Ao
(Note 2) (Note 1)
(Ki:t2) (Bi7E1)
Mr. Tse Tong Lam Antonio Beneficial owner 140,000,000 13.23%
Tse Tong Lam Antoniot A& BERHB A
Micah Holdings Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 109,188,000 10.32%
Micah Holdings Limited ( #73£2) EnEEA
Ms. Ji Jie Interests of controlled corporation 109,188,000 10.32%
TR+ g NG
Notes: Biat -
1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of the Company’s 1. BEBASLEDEARTNR=_ZE—LF=A=+—

issued share capital of 1,058,185,729 shares as at 31 March 2019.

2. Micah Holdings Limited, a private limited company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, and wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Ji Jie, the spouse of Mr.

Chen Yin, Non-executive Director of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Company was
not notified of any persons, other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, having any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEHRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The detailed disclosures relating to the Company’s share option
scheme and valuation of options are set out in note 24 to the

consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or of any other body corporate granted to any Directors or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors,
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire

such rights in the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company was a party
during or at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment

of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

—_— =
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors and their
respective associates had any interest in a business which causes or
may cause a significant competition with the business of the Group
and any other conflict of interests which any such person has or

may have with the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

was entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company's Bye-laws and subject to the provisions
of the statutes, every Director or other officer of the Company shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in
relation thereto, and no Director or other officer shall be liable
for any loss, damages or misfortune which may happen to or be
incurred by the Company in the execution of the duties of his office
or in relation thereto, provided that the Bye-law shall only have
effect in so far as its provisions are not avoided by the Bermuda
Companies Act. The Company has maintained Directors and

officers liability insurance during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
above, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year or

subsisted at the end of the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEHRE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES
During the year, the Company had not purchased, sold or

redeemed any of its securities.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during
the year ended 31 March 2019.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 7 (2018: 7) full time employees
(exclusive of directors). The Group's total staff costs (including
directors’ remuneration) amounted to approximately HK$4,851,000
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$7,469,000). The
employees were remunerated based on their responsibilities and

performance.

The Company has adopted the model set out in Code Provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its remuneration
model for determining the emoluments of the Directors. This
model stipulates that the Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee would take into consideration, among
other things, the duties and responsibilities of the Directors and
senior management and prevailing market conditions when

determining their remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme to provide
incentives to eligible persons, including Directors, employees,

consultants, suppliers and customers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
of the Company or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing

shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERE

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing

Rules during the year and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. Amongst other
duties, the principal duties of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
of the Group. The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Li, Mr. Lai Yuen Piu and Ms.
Leung Mei Hing Carrie, and Mr. Li is the Chairman. The audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2019 have been audited by BDO Limited ("BDO"),
whose term of office will expire at the conclusion of the AGM. A
resolution to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company will be
proposed to the shareholders of the Company for approval at the
AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Yang Xiaoqiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B WD AT

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2019 was
approximately HK$600,000, which was about the same as that of last
year. The Group incurred a loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company amounting to approximately HK$87,911,000, which
was increased by approximately HK$68,546,000 or 3.5 times when
compared with the loss of approximately HK$19,365,000 incurred
in last year. The Group's revenue represents interest income from
convertible bonds. The increase in the loss for the year was mainly
attributable to the increase of impairment loss on refundable
deposits, the increase of realised loss on disposal of financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss and the decrease in change in fair
value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss during
the year under review. The net asset value per share of the Group
as at 31 March 2019 amounted to HK$0.10 (2018: HK$0.26). The

Board has decided not to declare a final dividend for the year.

Refundable deposits for potential investment projects

As disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company in the annual result for the year ended 31 March 2019,
refundable deposits (the “Deposits”) of approximately HK$59
million were placed. Those Deposits were relating to seven
potential investees covering banking and financial industry in the
PRC, a company engaged in research, development and promotion
of biomass energy and other agricultural related products and four
high technology companies. The brief details of the Deposits in

those potential investments as at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

MK LR

BE-_Z-AF=A=tT—BILFE KA&£H
Wz 41 /600,000 7T - B AFAEE - AEBEE
ER RN RIHEB A G AN F E B 18 £987,911,000%
T B K A BT EE AE RS 18 4919,365,0005% JT 18 A0 4
68,546,000/ 7T 53.51F o A~ & [ W &5 18 AT R (B
HFZRBWA - FEBRIEMDEEHNATRE
ReZREBBEGM HERAFEFALTER
RECUKEEZCEREBBEENREEFER
BRAFEFACEBRSEBECWHBEEZ 2R
- RN -_ZE—AE=ZA=+—HB AEEEK
BEFEAIOET(ZE—NF:0268T) ° &

EEATERAFESTIRARIRE

BEREEBZTRERS
BUNBE-_ZT—AhF=ZA=+—RHILtFEZ2F
EEANZARNRGEMBEREMER BEFELN
59,000,000 T 2 AT REZ D ([1Z2]) - ZFX
SNHELHEBEREHREM EPREREN
RITREHE —HRESEMELRREMEE
VI E RO HERERE 2 QR AR IYHE
BREARC-RZE—NF=ZA=+—HZRZ
EBEREZRSZBEFRBHOT:

Refundable deposits

amount
TRERETEH
(HK$'000)
(T#ExT)
Two companies involved in banking and financial industry 20,000
B RIRITR R 2 ME QA
A company in Hainan Province, the PRC engaged in research, development and promotion of
biomass energy and other agricultural related products 9,000
—ARPESEEREEMERRLEMRIEMERERNTRT FEIER AT
Four high technology companies referred by an investment agent (the “Investment Agent”) 30,000
H—2RERE ([RERE]EN 2HOEASRHRAE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER WD AT

FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)

Refundable deposits for potential investment projects
(continued)

In relation to the two potential investees involved in the banking
and financial industry in the PRC, the Group has completed its due
diligence work. The Group understands that there is a requirement
under the applicable PRC laws and regulations that the registered
shareholder of such investees should have a profit-making track
record period for not less than 3 financial years. The Company has
decided not to make such investments for the time being and has

demanded for refund of the Deposits but in vain.

The Group has completed its due diligence in respect of the
potential investee engaged in research, development and
promotion of biomass energy and other agricultural related
products and believes that there are prospects in the business
segment. However, the potential investee has received notice
from local authorities that the land used by the potential investee
would be seized with compensation. In light of such uncertainty, the
Company considers that it is in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole that investment in the potential investee
should be made after receipt by the potential investees of relevant
land compensation. It was expected that the process would have
been completed on or before 31 December 2018. However, no

further update has been obtained as at the date of this report.

In relation to those four high technology companies, those
potential investment projects were only referred by the Investment
Agent in 2017 to the Company and the Company is still in the
course of negotiating with such potential investees regarding
the investment plans, in particular if any industry leaders would
co-invest in such potential investees. To the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief, the Investment Agent and its
ultimate beneficial owner(s) are independent third parties and the
Investment Agent has referred potential investees to the Company
from time to time since 2014. It is common practice in the industry
that the Company would have to produce fund proof and to make
earnest monies such that the investment agent(s) could refer

potential investees to the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B WD AT

FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)

Refundable deposits for potential investment projects
(continued)

During the due diligence process, the Company had reviewed
the financial positions of those relevant potential investees and
considered that they have the capacity to return the Deposits.
Furthermore, the Company did obtain annual confirmations from
the relevant potential investees and/or Investment Agent which
confirm repayment of the Deposits in the previous years. However,

the Group is unable to obtain the annual confirmation for the year.

As at the date of this report, the Company has not entered into
any formal investment agreements with the potential investees. It
was expected that such investments, if materialised, would have
been made by December 2018 and the investment sums for each
of the projects would be not less than the Deposits paid and the
Deposits paid will be utilized towards the investment sums. In the
event that the investments shall not be made, the Company shall
have the right to demand the refund of the Deposits. Since there
was uncertainty on the recoverability of the Deposits as the date of
this report, full provision for impairment loss on the Deposits was
made for prudence sake. Legal proceedings have been carried out

to recover the same.

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
As at 31 March 2019, the details of all investments of the Group

were summarised as below:

Interests in an associate - unlisted equity securities

AR s ak ()
BEREEAZTREBES (&

REREBEERRER ARFECEMNZEHEBEEE
BREHRZHBHRR WRAEHAGENREERS -
N ARRRBEFEC BHBETREYR
R/ SREREOSRRABEREZFERERE -
A AEBRENSAFENFERRE -

RAHEBH ARFAUREBEREHRETIL
EAIERIRE Wk - ERITREBARE (EEE
RZFB-NF+_ARitEHL - BRBBEZRES
BRETNOREXNZE MEXNREBHRIES
RESHE -MMEHIRE AABARERRE
Re BREAREBHA N ETRESH AR
e REEER Bt RAEBEZEE
e RADETEREFAMKE Eline -

&ﬁll é
R-B—NF=A=+—B AEEREREHF
R T

R—RBEAR 2 Em—F LEMRAE S

Percentage

Place of

of effective

Proportion of

Name of investee company incorporation/operation interest held  voting power Cost  Carrying value
FERRER

BEIRENFEW AL E R ERids SR A REE

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET

Bonicast Construction Material People’s Republic of China 49% 20% 5,958 5714

(Beijing) Co., Ltd
SREFREME (X BERAF

("PRC")
PEARLMNE ([HE))

Note: The Company is only entitled to appoint one of the five directors in Bonicast and

that its voting power is restricted to 20% of the entire share capital of Bonicast

by virtue of a shareholders’ agreement and an undertaking.

Ma: RERRBANFARS ARTEAEZEIE
BEELLEFTHN - T AEHKRERZER

R & 558 F 2 AR A E20% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WD AT

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued) rEMS (H)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss RAVEFACEERECUBEE
(i) Investment in convertible bonds (i) RERTERES
Name of investee companies Place of incorporation Cost Carrying Value
EIREQAFRER o i B 3L 3 B %N IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHETT
Guanwan Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 20,000 24,931
BEREARAA REERES
(i) Investment in Hong Kong listed equity securities (i) REREBLTREES
Number of Percentage of
Name shares held interest held Cost Market value
=y FEROBE FREESEESH B wiE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Asia Television Holdings Limited 73,320,000 1.0392% 19,857 17,890
EMNERERER AR
Ming Lam Holdings Limited 10,500,000 0.0705% 2,999 483
HRERERD A
Golden Ponder Holdings Limited 47,750,000 5.9688% 12,451 13,370
eRERERAR
China Financial Leasing 22,900,000 1.4253% 10,329 5,633
Group Limited
HEEREESEERAR AR
BOSA Technology Holdings Limited 1,000,000 0.1250% 1,103 1,020
ANBHRZERABR AT
RMH Holdings Limited 3,000,000 0.5000% 2,123 825
EHERAERAR
Eggriculture Foods Limited 5,750,000 1.1500% 2,878 1,265

XEREERBRAA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WD

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued) rEMEE (H)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss RATEFACEERECHKEE (&

(continued)

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive  (iii) ZAFEFAEHMEZEARBEEE 2HK
income EE

Percentage of

Place of effective
Name of investee company incorporation interest held Cost Carrying Value
FER
BEZRENDER 118 B 3L 3t B EzEAL B REE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FHET
Tianjin Bao Xin Ying Precious Metals PRC 12.00% 6,590 4,205
Management Limited
AAEERESBLEEBRAA HE
GuangZhou Shi Da Jian Credit Guarantee Limited  PRC 11.59% 9,800 5,893
EMTERERERBRAF I
China Petroleum Bio-Energy Company Hong Kong 5.69% 24,400 2,516
Limited
REhRENERERAA R0
Yenbo Gain Limited BVI 18.18% 13,092 2,470
BEMAERRLAF EEERES
Perfect Worth Investment Limited BVI 5.00% 18,303 478
RESREE
Golden Resources Asia Limited BVI 14.00% 10,000 8,160
EBERES
Huge Leader Investment Development Limited BVI 18.00% 10,000 8,065
EBERES
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The performance and future prospects of the Company's significant

investments for the year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows:

CHINA PETROLEUM BIO-ENERGY COMPANY
LIMITED PROJECT

With rapid economic development, China has been facing high
pressure on energy. In 2017, China’s total energy consumption
reached 4.49 billion tonnes of standard coal. Despite the pressure
on both energy demand and the environment, China’s pace of
adjusting its energy structure has not changed, and the proportion
of decarbonised energy consumption continues to rise. Although
wind power and hydropower are receiving much attention, the
International Energy Agency (IEA) believes that biomass energy will
become the fastest growing renewable energy source in the world.
Driven by its national policy, China is expected to surpass Europe
and the United States and become the world’s biggest biomass

energy producer and consumer.

With its resource-saving and eco-efficient characteristics, biomass
energy is a promising industry suitable for the development
of "agriculture, rural areas and farmers” in China. Through an
all-round biomass energy industrialization, extensive biomass

energy utilization will enjoy an excellent prospect.

However, during the year, this project was affected by external
natural factors and the economic returns were not as expected, but
it is believed that the situation is improving. We remain prudently
optimistic that riding on the trend of blooming biomass energy
utilization, this project will make contribution to the shareholders in

the medium and long term.

YENBO GAIN LIMITED PROJECT

With the continuous development of modern economy, the
development of forestry economic industry is rapidly unresolved.
China's accession to the World Trade Organization has a great
impact on the country and has many challenges and opportunities.
Therefore, rapid economic development is the primary problem,
but it is precisely because Need to develop, so China’s forest
environment has been greatly threatened, and now the forestry
industry is nearing the point where demand exceeds supply. What
China needs for the development of forestry economy is also the

protection of forestry.
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YENBO GAIN LIMITED PROJECT (continued)

The Chinese government has attached importance in forestry
in implementing the sustainable development strategy. In the
development of China's western region, forestry has occupied a
significant position; while in the transformation of the old industrial
bases in the northeast, forestry has also been given a major
position. The strategic position of forestry in the entire economic
and social development of China has secured leap-forward

development of forestry in future.

We are prudently optimistic that our investment in this project will
make contribution to the shareholders in the medium and long

term.

GUANWAN INVESTMENTS LIMITED -
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

According to the social consumption data, the growth rate of retail
textiles dipped to only 7.0% in 2016, then bottomed out and saw
a rebound to a growth rate of 7.8% in 2017. The recovery trend
continued in 2018.

Being a traditional manufacturing industry in China, the garment
industry has been developing along the traditional production
mode. Labour intensiveness, high-intensity operations, and low
production efficiency have always restricted the development of
the garment industry. With the continuous advancement of clothing
technology, more and more intelligent software and automatic
clothing equipment applications will solve the existing problems
of the industry, and gradually help enterprises achieve better
production efficiency. The development of new software, new
technology and new clothing equipment has warranted a robust

development of the garment industry.

At present, the industry is in the initial stage of recovery, and will
continue to be in the recovery cycle in the future. Following the new
retail trends of online and offline (O20) integration, the industry
competition pattern will gradually become clear and the integration
effect will be revealed. The high-quality leading companies are
expected to excel in this round of healthy growth cycle and

gradually reinforce their core competitiveness.
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GUANWAN INVESTMENTS LIMITED -
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The Company holds 3% unsecured convertible bonds issued by
Guanwan Investments Limited (“Guanwan”) at a face value of
HK$20,000,000, bearing coupon interest rate of 3% per annum (the
“Investment”). Guanwan is an investment holding company which
indirectly holds 100% shares of its subsidiary, FYI &K IERES
RAR ("&FB"). 25 is principally engaging in designing,
manufacturing and retail of women’s dress in the PRC. Each
convertible bond is convertible into 24 fully paid ordinary shares of
Guanwan with a par value of USD1.00 each at a conversion price of
HK$833,333 per conversion share before 22 December 2020.

This investment has offered chance to the Company to enjoy
interest income and the potential to convert into equity when

higher return is expected.

Further details of other investments of the Group are included in

note 17 to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$1,137,000 (2018: approximately HK$5,744,000).
The Group had the net current assets and the net assets of
approximately HK$68,093,000 (2018: HK$124,895,000) and
approximately HK$105,871,000 (2018: HK$230,318,000) respectively
as at 31 March 2019. Save as disclosed above, the Group had no
bank and other borrowing as at 31 March 2019.

The current ratio, calculated on the basis of total current assets over
total current liabilities, was approximately 19.91 (2018: 153.13) as at
31 March 2019.

USE OF PROCEEDS OF FUNDS RAISED DURING
THE PAST 12 MONTHS

On 2 January 2019, a placing agreement was entered into between
the Company and A placing agent, pursuant to which the placing
agent agreed to place, on a best effort basis, to one or more
independent placees for up to 1,760,000,000 new ordinary shares
of the Company at a price of HK$0.018 per placing share. All the
placing shares were issued and allotted on 17 January 2019 with
net proceeds of approximately HK$30,888,000 received by the
Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BT W AT

USE OF PROCEEDS OF FUNDS RAISED DURING
THE PAST 12 MONTHS (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, among the proceeds, (i) approximately
HK$29,400,000 has been used on investment in Hong Kong Listed
stocks; and (i) approximately HK$1,488,000 has been used as
general working capital.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Details in the changes of the capital structure of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements. The capital of the Company

comprises only ordinary shares as at 31 March 2019.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the business transactions of the Group are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The management of the Group
will closely monitor the fluctuation in these currencies and take
appropriate actions when needed. As at 31 March 2019, the Group
did not engage in currency hedging nor did it adopt any formal
hedging activities. The Group had not entered into any financial
derivatives in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars during the

year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2019, there were no charges on the Group's assets

and the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

STAFF COST

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 7 (2018: 7) full time employees
(exclusive of directors). The Group's total staff costs (including
directors’ remuneration) amounted to approximately HK$4,851,000
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$7,469,000). The
employees were remunerated based on their responsibilities and

performance.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

During the year under review, market confidence was dampened
by turbulence and uncertainty on macroeconomic outlook brought
about by China-US trade, coupled with interest rate increase led
by the US. The global stock market was volatile throughout the
year, and with no exception, the China and Hong Kong securities

markets had been full of ups and downs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER WD AT

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT (continued)

Under such unstable market environment, the Group's listed
securities, mainly small and mid cap stocks, performed
unsatisfactory and recorded loss on listed securities of
approximately HK$1.3 million, as compared to the trading gain on

listed securities of approximately HK$2.1 million for the year ended
31 March 2018.

On the unlisted investment front, the Group adopted a very
cautious approach and did not make any investment in any project
during the year. For some potential projects previously explored
with refundable deposits paid out, the Group has decided not
to go ahead for the time being. However, we have encountered
uncertainty in recovering the refundable deposits. Please refer to

page 17 for further detail.

In 2019, global economy and politics are facing more risk and
uncertainty, especially with US-China trade war and possible policy
changes after Brexit. Thus, the Group will exercise risk management

control in order to keep its exposure to the minimal.

Looking forward, the Group will keep on seeking business
investment opportunities in Chinese enterprises with potentials,
with more tendency to look for the enterprises in relation to the
Belt and Road Initiative and Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Bay
Area (the Greater Bay Area). The Group believes that well chosen
investment projects in these areas will bring considerable long-term

returns.

The Group will adopt a pragmatic and enterprising approach
to deploy the investment strategy, with a view to contributing

favorable return for our shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of
the Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the

year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

The Board recognises the importance of corporate governance
practice of a listed company and is committed to adopting the
standards of corporate governance. It is in the interest of the
shareholders and stakeholders for a listed company to operate
in a transparent manner with the adoptions of various self-
regulatory policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms with
a clear definition of accountability of directors and management.
The Company and the Directors confirm, to the best of their
knowledge, that the Company has complied with the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2019, except for
the following deviations:

The code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that the
independent non-executive directors and other non-executive
directors, as equal board members, should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Mr. Chen Yin, Mr. Zhang Kun, Mr. Li Li were unable
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28

December 2018 due to other important engagement.

The code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code requires that all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, and should provide
a record of the training they received to the issuer. Every director
(except Mr. Chen Yin) had provided a record of the training for the
year ended 31 March 2019 to the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEER|E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board comprises one executive Director, namely, Mr. Chan
Cheong Yee; two non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Yang Xiaogiu
(Chairman of the Board) and Mr. Chen Yin; and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Li, Mr. Lai Yuen Pui and Ms.

Leung Mei Hing Carrie.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, investment
and strategic decisions and performance. The executive Board,
investment manager and senior management have been delegated
with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day
operations of the Group while reserving certain key matters for the
approval by the Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board committees. Further details of
these Board committees are set out in this Corporate Governance

Report.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
board composition is formed to ensure strong independence
exists across the Board and has met recommended practice under
the Code for the Board to have at least one-third of its members
comprising independent non-executive Directors. The biographical
information of the existing Directors is set out on pages 47 to 50
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management”.

28  Annual Report &% 2019

Exg

K&

SR BUTESTRERLLE MBI
TEEHBEMNLL (EFXF) RRALE R
“ERBUFNTEEFTHEE REREERR
Xzt

EEe R RARERENARR EEARE X
f%*?&iéf%&”ﬁk\E/kﬁﬁ&%ﬁ@ﬂﬁ%%@*&
ERENSNEEEREEZERERLZRBER
BASHEZBEXRG HETEIESHAUARS
EEEHM M BEFENZRZHEAETES
ZEE-ZTEFEZEQE—IHBIANLADE

XERHE-

EXERNEBIHELERSE X5 SEAHM
BX/HBITAZBER -EEG 2 TEHRBRE
REZTSREBL UNETAEHEEEAA
RO=ZNZ—RERBUIFATEFTZEHEER -
REEEREENHENEIENE [EFERER
EIREREE| £



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Chairman

The role of the chairman of the Company takes the lead in
formulating overall strategies and policies of the Group; ensures
the effective performance by the Board of its functions, including
compliance with good corporate governance practices and
encourages and facilitates active contribution of Directors in Board
activities. The Chairman also ensures that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and have received
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner

with the assistance of the company secretary.

Executive Directors

The executive Directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. They lead the
Group's management team in accordance with the directions set
by the Board and are responsible for ensuring that proper internal
control system is in place and the Group's business conforms to

applicable laws and regulations.

Non-executive Directors and Independent non-executive
Directors

The non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors serve the important function of ensuring and monitoring
the basis for an effective corporate governance framework. Their
participations provide adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of the Group and its shareholders. The Board consists
of three independent non-executive Directors and each of them
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. All independent non-executive
Directors are financially independent from the Company. The
Company confirmed with all independent non-executive Directors
as to their independence with reference to the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERER®RSE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EEg(#
Board Meetings Exged
The attendance of each Director at Board meetings during theyear gz=—Z2 A& =A=+—F | FE KBHZRN
ended 31 March 2019 was as follows: gtreeR s BEDSNT:
Number of meetings
attended/held
Name of Director EEpR HEBTEREE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee REESLE 24/24
Mr. Zhang Xuming (resigned on 17 August 2018) & JERR 5L A& 3/24
(RZFE-NENA++HEFE)
Non-executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chen Yin PR L&A 2/24
Ms. Yang Xiaoqjiu (appointed on 17 August 2018) 5B 2 & 17/24
(RZF-NENA++HEZE)
Mr. Zhang Kun (resigned on 25 January 2019) ok A 6/24
(RZBE-NF—H_+HHAFE)
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (resigned on 23 July 2018) o OMEE 1/24
(R=ZFE-NEF+H=F=HFF)
Mr. Leung Wing Kin (resigned on 27 July 2018) R &G54 0/24
(RZBE-NEFE+H -+ +HEFE)
Mr. Leung Chi Kong (resigned on 27 July 2018) &M & 0/24
(R=ZF-NF+LH=F+HEFF)
Mr. Wan Tat Wai, David (appointed on RIEE LA 7/24

(RZFE-NF+H=1HEZLIR

R-_FE—NF—HNEEFE)

Mr. Ho Kim Fung (appointed on 30 July 2018 and {a] #1|$% % A& 6/24
(RZFE-NF+H=1HEZLIR
RZB-NF—HA_+HAFE)

30 July 2018 and resigned on 8 January 2019)

resigned on 25 January 2019)

Mr. Li Li (appointed on 30 July 2018) = hEsE 4/24
(R=ZBE-NF+LH=FTHEZF)

Mr. Lai Yuen Piu (appointed on 25 January 2019) ZR % % & 2/24
(RZF-NF-—HAZFTHAEZF)

Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (appointed REBEZ+ 2/24

on 25 January 2019) (R=ZF—NF—A=+HHEZ)

30  Annual Report 3§ 2019



China Investment Developmentlimited o MERABBRERAT — —

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

DIRECTORS' TRAINING

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the company
secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors.
All Directors are encouraged to attend external forum or training
courses on relevant topics which may count towards continuous
professional development training.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the “"Corporate Governance
Code”, Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March
2019, all Directors (except no confirmation has been received from
Mr. Chen Yin) participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities either by attending training courses or by
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary Mr. Chan Kwan Pak is a service provider.
He fulfills the requirement under rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing
Rules. The company secretary reports to the Chairman and supports
the Board, ensures good information flow within the Board and
Board policy and procedures are followed; advises the Board on
governance matters, facilitates induction and, monitors the training
and continuous professional development of Directors. He has
attained not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the review period.

INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance, with
coverage being reviewed annually, to indemnify the Directors and
officers from their risk exposure arising from corporate activities.

SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

In respect of regular board meetings, an agenda and accompanying
board papers of the meeting are sent in full to all directors in
advance before the intended date of a meeting. The management
has the obligation to supply the Board and the various Board
committees with adequate information in a timely manner to
enable the members to make informed decisions. Each Director
has separate and independent access to the Group's senior
management to acquire more information than is volunteered by
management and to make further enquiries if necessary.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all three independent
non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Li Li. The Audit
Committee meets at least twice a year. The Audit Committee
is mainly responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting system and internal control procedures; making
recommendations to the Board in the appointment and removal of
the external auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditors; and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of such auditors; and reviewing the interim
and annual reports and the financial statements of the Group. The

terms of reference are available on the Company’s website.

The attendance of each member at Audit Committee meetings

during the year ended 31 March 2019 was as follows:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BEREE"

ERZE R =B UIRTESAEN X
MENREEEEF BERRESEEFRIENT
MAEH - BERZEGTERELEARAZE
BEREBERRAMERREF AR EREBRING
B[R 3 2 1R L2 DA L /B IS AR B R 2
FIRZRBGS: R AR Em B ER B
RHEEMSRE: REHASEFRRFERE A
KRG HmEK - BEEEN AR R MU HER-

E-NE=ZA=+—HILFE EKEH
EEBCENT

Number of meetings

attended/held
Name of Committee Member ZESHREER HEBITEREAE
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (resigned on 23 July 2018) 75 Fi&4% 2/3
(R=ZF—NF+HA=Z+=HFHF)
Mr. Leung Wing Kin (resigned on 27 July 2018) R &R %A 0/3
(R=ZFE-—NEFE+H=F+HEFF)
Mr. Leung Chi Kong (resigned on 27 July 2018) &M %t & 2/3
(RZF-NFLHAZF+EHFE)
Mr. Wan Tat Wai, David (appointed on BEEEAE 1/3
30 July 2018 and resigned on 8 January 2019) (RZF-—NFLA=F+HEZHER
RZFE-NF—HAEFE)
Mr. Ho Kim Fung (appointed on 30 July 2018 and {a] 1§ 5t & 1/3
resigned on 25 January 2019) (R=ZF—NF+A=ZFHEZTR
RZF-—NF-—HZFHAFHE)
Mr. Li Li (appointed on 30 July 2018) > hE&E 0/3
(R=ZF-NF+LA=ZFHEZ(F)
Mr. Lai Yuen Piu (appointed on 25 January 2019) B3R [Z % 0/3
(R=ZFE-—NF—H=FTHHEZF)
Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (appointed on REW L+ 0/3

25 January 2019)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of all three independent
non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Lai Yuen Piu. The
Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’'s remuneration
policy for Directors and senior management, and overseeing
the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
senior management. The terms of reference are available on the

Company's website.

The Remuneration Committee has considered and approved
the Group's policy for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has assessed the
performance of the executive Directors and considered the
remuneration package of executive Directors by reference to the
prevailing packages with companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are
disclosed on an individual basis in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group adopts a competitive remuneration
package for its employees. Promotion and salary increments are

assessed based on a performance related basis.

The attendance of each member at Remuneration Committee

meetings during the year ended 31 March 2019 was as follows:
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Number of meetings

attended/held
Name of Committee Member EEENENRA HEBITEREAE
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (resigned on 23 July 2018) HOMEE 1/4
(RZFE-NE+HA-+=HFT)
Mr. Leung Wing Kin (resigned on 27 July 2018) R EfE 54 0/4
(RZF-NFLAZF+EHFE)
Mr. Leung Chi Kong (resigned on 27 July 2018) &I A& /4
(R=ZFE-—NEFELA=1++HFE)
Mr. Wan Tat Wai, David (appointed on BEEREA 2/4
30 July 2018 and resigned on 8 January 2019) (R=ZFE-NFLHA=FTHEBZFER
RZFE-NF—HNBEE)
Mr. Ho Kim Fung (appointed on 30 July 2018 and {r] &1 $% 5 4 2/4

resigned on 25 January 2019)

(RZF—NF+HA=1THEZELR

R-ZB—NF—HA=+HAFE)

Annual Report 32019 33

—_— ——

e

ﬁ - ‘:\»—\_



m—

TEER|E

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Number of meetings

attended/held

Name of Committee Member ZEERENRA HERITEEEA

Mr. Li Li (appointed on 30 July 2018) > k& 3/4

(RZF-NFLA=FHEZE)

Mr. Lai Yuen Piu (appointed on 25 January 2019) BR %% 1/4
(RZF-NF—H=+HAEEE)

Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (appointed on PR+ 1/4
25 January 2019) (RZFE-NF—-H_+HBEZE)

Mr. Chen Yin (ceased on 25 January 2019) PR Bl 0/4

(R-F—-NF—HA-1THHAEFEE)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of all three independent
non-executive Directors and the Chairman of the Board and
non-executive Director Ms. Yang Xiaogiu, and is chaired by Ms.
Yang Xiaogiu. The primary function of the Nomination Committee is
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Group's corporate strategy. The terms of

reference are available on the Company's website.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance of each member at Nomination Committee

meetings during the year ended 31 March 2019 was as follows:

REZEE (H)
BE-T-AEF=A=T-ALEE &K
FREZBRRHS

RE>3/(INNE

o
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Number of meetings

attended/held
Name of Committee Member EZEENENRA HEBTERYE
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (resigned on 23 July 2018) 75 Fl%c4 1/5
(RZB-NFE+H - F+=HEF)
Mr. Leung Wing Kin (resigned on 27 July 2018) R &R %4 0/5
(RZFE-NE+HAZ++HEFE)
Mr. Leung Chi Kong (resigned on 27 July 2018) 2 FEMI 54 1/5
(R=ZFE-NEFE+HZF+HEFE)
Mr. Wan Tat Wai, David (appointed on BERLE 3/5
30 July 2018 and resigned on 8 January 2019) (RZF-NFLA=FTHEZIR
RZFE—-NF—H/NHFE)
Mr. Ho Kim Fung (appointed eI 88 5 & 3/5
on 30 July 2018 and (RZF-NFLA=FTHEZIR
resigned on 25 January 2019) RZFE—NF—H -1+ HHAFT)
Mr. Li Li (appointed on 30 July 2018) > hEAE 4/5
(RZBE-NF+H=1+HEZF)
Mr. Lai Yuen Piu (appointed on 25 January 2019) BR[Z %o+ 1/5
(RZFE-NEFE—-H_+HHEZE)
Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (appointed on REPZ+ 1/5
25 January 2019) (RZF-NF—HA -+ LHEZE)
Mr. Chen Yin (ceased on 25 January 2019) fRJALEAE 0/5

(R=F—NF—-—HA-1THHARFE)
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has the

appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of

perspectives that are required to support the execution of its

business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

The Nomination Committee shall consider, among others, the

following criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for

directorships:

36

Character and integrity;

Personal attributes including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge, experience and expertise that are relevant to the
Company's business and corporate strategy, and the ability
to provide insights and practical wisdom based on those

attributes;

Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
Board member, other directorships, memberships of various

committees and significant commitments;

For independent non-executive directors to be appointed in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent with reference to the

independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

Ability to develop a good working relationship with other
Board members and contribute to the Board’s working

relationship with senior management of the Company;

Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted

by the Committee for achieving diversity on the Board; and

Any other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s

business.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity
of Directors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and

educational background, or professional experience.

A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences
in the skills, regional and industry experience, background, race,
gender and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition of the
Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit while taking

into account diversity (including gender diversity).

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board
and recommend them to the Board for adoption. The Nomination
Committee will report annually, in the corporate governance report,
on the Board's composition under diversified perspectives, and

monitor the implementation of this policy.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee consists of the executive Director
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee and all three independent non-executive
Directors, and is chaired by Mr. Chan Cheong Yee. The primary
function of the Risk Management Committee is to review, monitor,
manage and control the existing investments, developing and
reviewing the risk management policy and monitoring the effective

running of the risk management.

EEEHESTBER
ZYN 7EEL4&$h§$EAﬁ%nmmi$

BE(BTRBR)MER - E8 XL RHBES X
BELR-

—EEEZTNEFERERLERESTNEK
EEMTEER BR EK MR REME
BETHZER RAAENEESTEKRENRE
e SEELENEZER-FAEFENE L
e WARAES BRA AEEZ T (B
HRIZ L) o

REZEBEEFEIRMAERAEHRTESZSS
TE{KE’JTEJrEE@*IML%%%@%%*Z%
AEER-RERRBENEFRERERABENR
EREEENZTCERMAKMERARELZ
7o

EREEZEES
EREEZEEHITESHRERLERS
%%iiﬂﬂf‘f%%iﬂﬂz'Iﬂﬂﬁﬁaﬁﬁiﬁi‘{i{
F-RREEZESZIZREART BEE B8
REHRBERE UHEIRBERRBREEBR R
EEREREENEREE-

37

Annual Report 5 2019

— ——
e



a Investment Development Limited o 1 BIEEREERD
’:’ e ——

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEER|E

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance of each member at Risk Management Committee

meetings during the year ended 31 March 2019 was as follows:

MM@;égna
BE-T-AFZA=+—ALFE SREH
FH&?@*E%@%E%WT:

I]II

Name of Committee Member

Number of meetings

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (resigned on 23 July 2018)
Mr. Leung Wing Kin (resigned on 27 July 2018)
Mr. Leung Chi Kong (resigned on 27 July 2018)

Mr. Wan Tat Wai, David (appointed on
30 July 2018 and resigned on 8 January 2019)

Mr. Ho Kim Fung (appointed
on 30 July 2018 and
resigned on 25 January 2019)
Mr. Li Li (appointed on 30 July 2018)

Mr. Lai Yuen Piu (appointed on 25 January 2019)

Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (appointed on
25 January 2019)

attended/held
ZEENENRA HEBITEEEA
7 oMk E 0/1
(R=ZF—NEFE+A=+=HFT)
Rl 4 0/1
(R=ZF—-—NF+HAZF+HEFHF)
RER L 11
(R=ZFE-—NEFE+H=F+HFF)
RIER A 0/1

(R=ZF—NE+A=+HAEZIR
R=ZF—AF—F/\ AET)

A 88 5L £ 0/1
(R=ZF—NE+A=+HAEZIR
R-CF—NF—H-+THET)

> Nk&E 0/1
(R=ZF—NE+A=+HAEZT)

BRI EE 0/1
(R=ZF—NF—FA=+THAEZT)

REMLZ LT 0/
(R=—F—NEFE—HA -+ HARZ(E)

Mr. Zhang Xuming (resigned on 17 August 2018) 5= BB %t & 11

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (appointed on
25 January 2019)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established and

the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance

(R-FE—-NENA++HEE)
REZELE 0/1
(R-ZF—NF—H -+ HAEZF)

EEAMAE

ARRAEBRICXERZEG EECREHN
TEEABEE BRI MBERARR ZBER
TCEEAER EFNSREEEZBIILEE

functions, which includes developing and reviewing the Company'’s
policies, practices on corporate governance, training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements etc. During the year under
review, the Board has reviewed the Company's policies and

practices on corporate governance.
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DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group's
consolidated financial statements for each financial period
and to ensure that the consolidated financial statements are in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
consolidated financial statements. The Directors, having made
appropriate enquiries, confirm that they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. The statements of the auditor of the Group regarding
their responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 51 to 57 of this
Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board, recognising its overall responsibility in ensuring the
system of internal controls of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness, is committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal control system to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the assets of the Group. Procedures have been designed
to safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition, to
ensure the sufficient allocation of resources and manpower and
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and
to ensure compliance with applicable law, rules and regulations.
The procedures provide a reasonable but not absolute assurance
and prevention of material untrue statements or losses, as well
as management on the interruption of the Group’s management
system and risks existing in the course of arriving at the Group's

objectives.
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ST RCEIATE S A SE IS B RHE R BB A Sk 1) 3%
AREREBTERER ERRAE - ZFREF
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[
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

The management of the Group has conducted a review on the
Group's internal control and risk management system for the
year ended 31 March 2019 with no material weakness found. The
management will continue to improve and strengthen its control
in order to enhance the corporate governance and safeguard the

interest of its shareholders.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid and payable to the
Company's auditor, BDO Limited, for audit service of the year
ended 31 March 2019 is HK$525,000 and there is no non-audit
service provided during the year ended 31 March 2019.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all the
Directors (except no confirmation has been received from Mr. Chen
Yin) have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director

Subject to the Bye-laws and applicable laws, rules and regulations,
the Company may in a general meeting by ordinary resolution elect
any person to be a director of the Company either to fill a casual

vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the existing Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director (continued)

A shareholder who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
may propose a person (the “Candidate”) other than a Director
of the Company for election as a director at a general meeting
by lodging the following documents at the Company's principal
place of business in Hong Kong (Suites 2706-2707, 27/F., Everbright
108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,

attention of the company secretary:

Centre, Hong Kong) for the

1. A written notice signed by the shareholder concerned which
is given of his/her intention to propose the Candidate for

election;

2. A written notice signed by the Candidate indicating his/
her willingness to be elected, together with the Candidate’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules; and

3. The Candidate’s written consent to the publication of his/her

personal data.

The period for lodgment of the above documents shall have
given to the company secretary of the Company during a period
commencing no earlier than the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and

ending no later than 7 days prior to the date of such meeting.

BRRAER (&)
BREBALSRESCRF (&

ERLFERGUNE LRAZBRRAIRKRERS
RE—BARDREZUAIAT(MREA]) 2R
B FRAABUTXHEEARARBZEAEE
BB B BT A LT B 10857 K 0271
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Special general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more registered members of the Company
deposited at the registered office in Bermuda specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member of the Company which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee) deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date
of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting,
the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene
the general meeting in the same manner as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The annual general meetings provide a useful forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The chairman of
the Company as well as the chairman and members of various
Board committees are pleased to answer shareholders’ questions.
Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors. Details of poll voting procedures and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are included in the circular to
shareholders despatched together with the annual report. The
circular also includes relevant details of proposed resolutions,
including biographies of each candidates standing for re-election.
The results of the poll are published on the Company's website,
and on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
(http://www.hkex.com.hk).

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year under review, the Group has proactively
enhanced its corporate transparency and communications with
its shareholders and the investment community through the
announcement of its mandatory interim and final reports. Through
the timely distribution of other announcements, the Group has also

kept the public abreast of its latest developments.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

China Investment Development Limited (the “Company”) is
pleased to present its report on the Environmental, Social, and
Governance (the "ESG") aspects (the "ESG Report”) to provide an
overview of the Group’s management on significant issues affecting
the operation and the performance of the Group in terms of

environmental and social aspects.

Being a listed company, apart from strictly complying with the
Code of Corporate Governance practices as set out in the Listing
Rules to maintain a high ethical standard, the Board also strives
to be a responsible corporation by placing great emphasis on
the environmental protection, people oriented and community
care. The Board believes that these sustainability objectives can
align with the company’s business strategies to contribute most

favorable return for stakeholders.

PREPARATION BASIS AND SCOPE

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the
Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "“Stock Exchange”)
— "Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and
has complied with “comply or explain” provision in the Listing

Rules.

The Company is an investment company and is principally
engaged in investments in a diversified portfolio of listed and
unlisted companies. As an investment company, the Company
does not directly participate in the production and operation of
these listed and unlisted companies. While actively seeking to
optimise its investment portfolio and maximise shareholder return,
the Company lives up to its corporate social responsibility and
strikes a balance between the interests of stakeholders such as
the shareholders and the community, with the ultimate goal of

achieving a sustainable corporation.

The ESG Report covers the Group's overall performance,
commitment and approaches in workplace quality, environmental
protection, operating practices and community involvement in
relation to the abovementioned operations during the year ended
31 March 2019. All information and data disclosed herein were

based on formal documents and internal statistics of the Group.

44  Annual Report 53R 2019

HEBN

TEEERZEARAR ([ARADMRAREZE
BHERE e kEh(IRE L@ kERDA
meHE (RE-HEREAME])  AREX
SEEEERREMENENIFEAREZE
ERRBNERFRFEH LR -

ER—B LM BRTEBET ETRAME
ZEEEATRTRNERSBREEN EF
EMBERBARRRE UARKKRBEAOHR
HORRAEELE - EXZEHE ZFARE
ERABURESARAZEBEKE /T EEH
FRERERL R

mREER I E
ABEDEREEBAXZMERAA ([HR
1) E% EARR ([ EMRA M7 — ]
% HERERREES A YT ETH
Bl [ 738 =7 B AR T | 1432 =

ARRAR—ARERR TERER LT RIEL
MARZZTAE ZRE - ER—RRERTF]
ARRTEEK2EZE LW RIFLTARZE
EREE RERFREMCEKREAS RASBRRT
KEAMEHNEE  ARABAREELEEE
FHFERRRLRFNSEEEZ B H S
NERAFERREENREER-

RE HEREMREREAEEANBE_ZT
—NEFE=ZRA=1+T—BLFERAE LRXHHEED
THRSMEE RERE ELBILER2HE
MEBRRI ABRNDE-AFHEBENFAEE
Bt R BB ER A KB IEA X RABRETH
e



—_— =

China Investment DevelopmentvLimited o R AMBEERAT — -

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE -#HEREA®RE

STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK AND ENGAGEMENT

We recognise the ESG Report as an important measure to
showcase our efforts in sustainable development. In realising
sustainable development, we are devoted to strike a balance of
the interests among various stakeholders, such as investors and
shareholders, customers, employees, work partners as well as the
community. The Company is searching for every opportunity to
understand and engage our stakeholder to ensure improvement

can be implemented to our products and services. We strongly

believe our stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success

of our business

The existing communication mechanism with stakeholders of the

Group is set forth as below:

Stakeholders
Fl=EREE

Expectations and concerns

HEREEER

B

MNaEAEENRERSH

BMRARE HLEREARERRTRMTR
BRRGSNANEERH -CERTFERENE
ﬁ¢'ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ&§%&h$4ﬁiﬁﬁ~
TR HARMEES SRS
AAR-HS
el - ATER 3 PI M0 2E G I PR 765 ) B R 2 - B AP
Bz F
BREEWEEMAEG-

SRR E 2 MERS T

FREEEAMDHEE THRERRK

SHEAEERMFERGEERINTE

BMSAEENREBBEBIIT

Communication Channels

BERE

The Stock Exchange

Government and

regulatory authorities

BTN BB

Shareholders or investors

BREWEE

- Compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules, publishing of
announcements in a timely and

accurate manner
- B FGEMETTARBILA R K B E T
MRS

- Compliance with laws and
regulations

- BTERRNER

—  Business Sustainability

- EBAIREN

= Return on investments
- KREMDH

- Corporate governance
- ﬂ:% R

—  Business compliance

- EBaR

— Meetings, trainings, seminars,
programmes, website update and

announcements

- BFR EI e RE HUEEH

JSENES

—  Supervision on the compliance with
local laws and regulations

- EBEEEHIDERRERNETE)

—  Routine reports

- pITRE

- Regular reports and announcements
- TEHBERAE

- Regular general meetings

- TEHRRKREg

- Official company's website

- RAIE#
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STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK AND ENGAGEMENT

wE

FEERENRERSE (&)

(continued)
Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Communication Channels
Mz EEE MEREEEE BERE
Employees - Employees’ compensation and —  Performance reviews
benefits
== - EEHRMRERN - REF=E
-~ Training and development - Regular meetings and trainings
- BlEERE - EHgENE
—  Protection for the labor force and -~ Organization of team activities
safety in the working
- BIHRIEZERRE - HAREBRED
Customers - High quality products and services -  Customer satisfaction survey
5P - REBEMKRE - EFWmEERAZ

Public and Communities

DNBNALE

—  Protection of customers’ rights

- REFFEN

- Involvement in communities
- ZEMEREBR

—  Business compliance

—  Face-to-face meetings and on-site
visits

- HEEEEREMIER

-  Aftersale services

- BRR%

—  Volunteer activities
- RIEH

- Public welfare and community

activities
- EBER - AHENEMEEH
- Environmental protection - Official company's website
awareness
- REREEH - QRRIE#H
We welcome stakeholders’ feedback on our environmental, social ~ HPEGAF mEBEEHRMRIRE L RER
and governance approach and performance. Please share your FHEKFERKRIEHRE -FBIBU TELK(E
views with us via: BHEEMS ZEEE:
Address: Suites 2706-07, 27/F, Everbright Center, Sl - BRBFELITBI08H EARS L
108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong 27182706-07%
Phone: (852) 3102 1690 &3 (852) 3102 1690
Email: info@chinainvestment.com.hk B info@chinainvestment.com.hk
Website: www.chinainvestment.com.hk B www.chinainvestment.com.hk
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A. ENVIRONMENT A RIE
A1) Emission: A1) BERRW -

The Company is committed to reduce carbon footprints AATBM AR EBELRELTER
by pursuing energy saving and other environment B4 % M IR R FE e KR D B BE R o B
protection measures in our business operation. As RANT R EREERE  BEHERED
the Company is engaged in investment business, only =B KRAENER RIEBIINE
generate indirect greenhouse gas ("“GHG") emission, AT eHEELRE=RE ([B=q
limiting to electricity, water and paper consumptions B ANTELA T EEREEY (FE
in our office setting and employee business travel. BYREETKEBRIBASRE) I
Nonhazardous wastes (commercial wastes and the B AR KT o

disposal of computer devices and office equipment)

produced by the Company are also at a minimum.

Total emissions of carbon dioxide equivalent during
the year ended 31 March 2019
(In Kilograms)

BE-_Z-NFZA=T-BLFE-_S{tHBEAFNEER

(LAF=5H)
B Carbon dioxide
86.63 =AU

H Methane
Rt
® Nitrous oxide

SLER

38481.6 LAELED
360 7K

314 Electricity
BN

Paper
AR

Business trips by plane

FARME =
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A. ENVIRONMENT (continued) 5 (&)
A1) Emission: (continued) A1) BB - (&

As at As at

Type of emissions of 31 March 31 March

carbon dioxide equivalent “EItRFEREENER 2019 2018

—E-hF —N\F

=ZA=t+—-B =ZA=+—H

Kilograms Kilograms

TR T

Carbon dioxide (CO,) Z&EK(CO,) 38,481.60 76,736.11

Methane (CH,) FFBT(CH,) 86.63 172.75

Nitrous oxide (N,O) f{LTARN,0) 5,585.54 11,138.12

Water 7K 0.90 1.02

Electricity BN 3,050.31 3,112.94

Paper #ok 360.00 180.00

Business trips by plane e = 314.00 16,599.00

Total st 47,878.98 107,939.94
As at 31 March 2019, our Group produced 47.88 metric RZEBE—NF=ZA=+—8 F~£EE
tons of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions or 6.84 F47 8RN — RN E 2L TR
metric tons per employee, which included the emissions EEHINE 2 R684RNE HP BIEHR
by our private cars, office activities and business trips, PIFLRE D IEE R IRITHHE

decrease compared to 55.64% compared to the previous WE R E—WEFERI55.64% o

48

reporting year.

The unleaded petrol of private cars produced 44.15 tons
carbon dioxide equivalent (Including Methane, Nitrous
oxide and Carbon dioxide of carbon dioxide equivalent),
decrease compared to 49.86% the previous reporting
year. In addition to the above-mentioned emissions,
there was 239.69 grams of Sulfur oxides (SO,) emission
produced by unleaded petrol.
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A. ENVIRONMENT (continued)

A1) Emission: (continued)

As well as office activities emissions, 3,050.31 kilograms of
Carbon dioxide equivalent per kilowatt-hour of electricity,
because of energy indirect emissions (main sources are
purchased electricity/gas), 0.90 kilograms of Carbon
dioxide equivalent per m3 of water, which produced by
electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage by
government departments and 360 kilograms of Carbon
dioxide equivalent of used amount of paper waste

disposed at landfills.

Our employees traveled by plane for business trips 2
times (Included in 2 times of business class) during the
year ended 31 March 2019. It occurred 314 kilograms of
carbon dioxide, the density of greenhouse gas emission

is 157 kilograms carbon dioxide per time.

However, due to the nature of the business, our Group's
business activities do not generate any hazardous waste
and do not have any direct and significant impacts on
the environment and natural resources in the course of its

operation.

A BiE (&)

A1) BEERD: (E

BB BTREREDBN
305031 TR — &Ll EE  FAREIR
FEHB(EERRABENE SR
) B AKARKEAL0OTR —A
i E & (ARBTRIPIEE KK RS
KBEEREN)  ARNFIEIBSE
BREAMERNEEEL30T A
SLmEE-

BE-_ZT-NEF=-A=+—ALEE"
BAREBRRMEE ZMK (BIEMX
FAEGMR) HEL -S(H314T

CRERBHEREEARBRISTR
—&fbhke

A HREBUEL AEENEBE
BTEELEMNBEERREY T84
HLERBETHNRERRARERENK
EREERBEATE-
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A. ENVIRONMENT (continued)

A2. Use of Resources

50

The Company commits to protect the environment by
mainly focusing on the reduction in electricity, paper
and water consumption. To achieve this, the Company
continually applies efficient consumption strategy to

improve energy saving and reduce energy consumption.

5 (&)

A2.

BERER
RRABERFEZEINRDE N MR
FOKEVEREM BN RERE - [k K
NGIEST LIRS e 0D b= A A LIV WIIE:
B e N0 RL A BE TR OB FE

As at As at
31 March 31 March
Unit 2019 2018
—E-hF —N\EF
B =A=+—A =HA=+—~H
Electricity B kWh T FL B 4,296.22 4,384.42
Water consumption Ak m33Z 75 oK 1.28 1.45
Gasoline consumption FUREREE LF 16,305.80 32,515.30
Paper #RoR kgF5e 75.00 37.50
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the total energy BHE_T-NF=A=+—RHILFE"

use amounted to 4,296.22 kWh or 613.75 kWh per
employee, decrease compared to 2.00% compared
to the previous reporting year and the total water use
amounted to 1.28 m® or 0.18 m? per employee. Gasoline
consumption was 16,305.80 litres or 2,329.40 litres per
employee during the period from April 2018 to March
2019, decrease compared to 49.85% compared to the
previous reporting year and consumption of paper was
75.00 kilograms or 10.71 kilograms per employee during
the year ended 31 March 2019, increase compared to
100.00% compared to the previous reporting year.

Resource Efficiency Management
The Company adopted a number of energy-saving and
resources usage initiatives to reduce greenhouse gas

emission and conserve resources usage.

Annual Report % ¥ 2019
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A. ENVIRONMENT (continued)

A2. Use of Resources (continued)
Resource Efficiency Management (continued)

l.

Electricity

The Company uses the LED lighting system saves up
to 80% energy and has a long life of more than 10
times compare with traditional lighting. In addition,
there are no ultraviolet and infrared rays in the LED
light spectrum, and the waste can be recycled. It
does not contain mercury vapor which in traditional
fluorescent lamps. There is no gas pollution and it is

a typical green lighting.

- Set the central air-conditioning system at room

temperature of 25.5 °C;

- Set the computers and printers in energy saving

mode when not being used;

-~ Switch off lights in meeting rooms when not

being in use;

-~ Switch off printers when all staffs have left after

office hours;

- Turn off computers and monitors overnights
except it is required for working purpose such

as system updates;

- Remove all the electronic chargers from the

sockets when not being used; and

—  Join the WWF Earth Hour 2019 event.

BiE (2)
A2. ERER (&)

HipeER (42)

L &7
RNAFRALEDRBHE RS & Z A
B #I80%EE TR BEE RS W AER
FRAA A + & DA o b o LEDYE 7%
P ERIMR AT IMNG  BEEE
Yl B U - LEDIRFA R TR S E
K BEREAR Bt ERES
2 REARAIRIRIAAA o

— RS E M R AT N
RIERERER A :

- ETEAREEERENE

&

- REARMBRMAE A
Ry BAEA 4T EIA -

~ BEREFEIEAMN E
% - BT RERR

- ETERBREmERESR
EFL RN

— ZNttREaAEeD [HIRk—
/NEF2019 ] JEED ©
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEkEA®RE

A. ENVIRONMENT (continued) A. BiE(F)
A2. Use of Resources (continued) A2. BSRER (&)
Resource Efficiency Management (continued) HreEE (&)
Il.  Paper: I Ak
—  Printin duplex; — SEmITH:
- Use recycled paper for printing; — ERBEELKITE:
—  Print in black and white; and — EATE: R
- E-storage of documents. - BfERE-
. Water: n. 7k
Water consumption of the Company is minimal. RARZFEKERIREAKTF I
Employees are encouraged not to waste water. HEIEETERENK:.
A3. Environment and Natural Resources A3. RIERRARER
Due to the nature of the business, in addition to the BREBUE R LlERm REIRE
above-mentioned emissions and resource usage, the AN KRB EERBPHRERK
Company does not have any direct and significant RERUBEEMNEEREATE -

impacts on the environment and natural resources in the

course of its operation.

Staff members believe it is important to minimise their BIHEE BELEHRERRAER
impact on the environment and natural resources due to LHEBMREE-FE L ARAKAR
the operations. In fact, as the Company’s operations do ZEETEEESRARERZER
not directly involve the use of natural resources, there HERERRAERZ ZEHBER
is comparatively little impact on the environment and 1K

natural resources.
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B. SOCIAL BaE

B1. Employment B1. BfE

Employees are regarded as the greatest and valuable
assets and core competitive advantage of the Company
and also provide driving force for the continuous

innovation of the Company

The Company set up a comprehensive human resources
management system, which was prepared in compliance
with or with reference to the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance, the PRC Labour Law ( (1 IFE AR FEMEH
ALENE) ), the PRC Labour Contract Law ( {FFZEE A
RHEMEIEEEFIE) ) and other existing laws and

regulations.

The Company implemented a set of human resources
policy is provided which clearly states the recruitment
and promotion, staff benefits and welfare, compensation
and dismissal, training and development, codes of ethics,
safety and health, compensation and dismissal, working
hours and rest periods, equal employment opportunities
without any discrimination against gender, marital status,

age, race, nationality and religion etc.

Furthermore, for all our employees, we provide fair
and adequate opportunities in terms of job promotion
and salary increment in recognising and rewarding our
employees; whilst we encourage career development
within our organisation by offering on-job training.
Provision of mandatory provident fund, pension, medical
and unemployment insurance, and a range of other
welfare benefits is guaranteed in compliance with relevant

labour laws.

As at 31 March 2019, there percentages of male and
female employees were 57.14% and 42.86% respectively.
The percentages of age group of 18 to 25, 26 to 33 and
34 to 40 were 14.29%, 71.42% and 14.29% respectively. In
among of total employees, there were 28.57% from Hong
Kong and 71.43% from China.

ARBGBREBRARZEEZEE
ARARBZBLBEFES ARAR
B Z BRI SRR -

ARARERMYEZENANEREEH
B ETRBEXZRBELERRBERA - (P
FEARAMBELEHZE) (FEARK
MBSE & RE) REMBITARER

LR

RRAFE—RIANBREEK  HHp
BEVPEARET BT8R ERN -
BELRE FIRER ERTA
we MR RENER THERRLE
RSB - DA R Bt A AAT 1 Y 48 K
NFiRBR BERRRERRZ
NEFRERE -

AN HRBEMMENES HMES
ARMGFTHERAFREDOORE
UEREREZBEMNEES  RERME
BREAEBIBIIZBREEEABAN
BEZHR ARRRBEAEEEE
REHEVNEIES B2 BER
RERBAR —ZRIIEAMERE -

RZEBE—NAF=ZA=+—8 BHEK
B B WGt D R A57.14% K% 42.86% °
18 255% * 262 335% R34 E 4057 F e
AREIEE D RIME14.29%  71.42% %
14.29% - TE 2 B8R B H - 2857%K B &
7 K% 71.43% K 8 R o
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B. SOCIAL (continued) B.it& (&)

B1. Employment (continued) B1. & (#&)
Our Workforce KMHWE A

Percentage of Employees by Gender
BURIE SN ES LS

Male
Eelis
Female

pgd

Percentage of Employees by Age Group
BERER B D HESLHA

1% 14% 18-25
18%255%

| |

w26-33
26E335%
34-40
34E408%

Percentage of Employees by Geographical
ZibEE 5 HES LA

Hong Kong

N

China
g

e As at 31 March 2019, our employee turnover rate e RZE-—RE=ZA=+—80#%
was 28.57 per cent for those aged between 26 and RN F26233m M EB 2 MEAXK
33, same with the previous reporting year, 14.29 per 7328.57% - Hi @R & FEAR
cent for those aged between 34 and 40, increase FENNIMZL05ME B 2K
compared to 14.29 per cent the previous reporting K H14.29%  mR LEREFEDN
year and 28.57 per cent for those aged between 41 14.29% : FE MR Z4THRIEER
and 47, increase compared to 28.57 per cent the ZRKEE2857% m EERE
previous reporting year. FEH28.57% °
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

B2.

B3.

Health and Safety

The Company is committed to providing and maintaining
a safe and healthy workplace for all employees. Every
employee has enough working space in office and small
fitness equipment is offered in office to support health.
The Company provides its staff with mandatory provident
fund (MPF) and, medical insurance (including in-patient
and out-patient). In the Year, no work related injuries or

fatalities were recorded.

The Company has developed a set of work safety codes
covering areas of environmental hygiene and cleanliness,
machine operation, smoking ban and fire prevention,
hazardous materials handling, arrangements in times
of typhoons and rainstorms, as well as response to
emergencies, etc. It also requires strict compliance with
these work safety codes by its employees. As at 31 March
2019, the Company is no number of work-related fatalities

and no lost days due to work injury.

Development and training

The Company supports its staff to develop and enhance
their professional knowledge and skills to cope with
the evolving market environment and compliance level.
On top of on-the-job training, the staff members are
encouraged to take external professional training to

strengthen their work-related expertise.

The Company has always encouraged staff members to
attend courses or seminars organized by professional
bodies and regularly update their knowledge on
investments, accounting standards, Listing Rules, the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Companies

Ordinances.

The Company also offers education allowance
as incentive for employees to take professional

examinations.

China Investment DevelopmentVLimited o MEREHEER AT — —

B.ig (&)

B2.

B3.

RERZE
ARABBNOREBEERH—ELE
MR TSR SR RBERAE
BERMz TEZER B AEREA
WRERENERBE T 22K AR a
mETRHERBELITES CRES) R
BRERR (BRERLMZ) -FAM
BERSRTIFERZBT

-

AARBHIE—EIER 2R RE
REHERER WESBRIE -ZERY
AK-BEDHEE BERRKERH[HZ
ZHUARBESBEREHS TERKESR
BRBETZETIELZE2TA -RZE
—NEFE=ZA=+—H8 ARAERELE
HITEGHEMET SR AR ITEE
B IT{EEEK-

R R
ARAAXKHETIERMMABRFEZE
EMBR B AR S N EE 2 TG
REBE R A RKFE - BRERBIF AN A
NENEEE TLEINFFFEEI LA
BICRSETERRZERANH-

ARR—EHExBETIHFEERBE
MRELMR G LEREARRER
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HR B 16RO N2 R RG] 2 R0 a8

ARRMEEBE 2R IAABEES
MEEZEH -

55

Annual Report 5 2019

— ——
e



Ve

nvestment Development Limited *@&ﬁsﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

e ———

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEkEA®RE

B. SOCIAL (continued)

56

B3.

B4.

Development and training (continued)

We adopt a five-day work per week and encourage
our employees to have a good balance among health,
work and social or family activities. Also we encourage
communication between employees and their supervisors
or the management of the Company. Based on their
requests and job performances, we provide flexible
career options to them to foster a better personnel

development.

As at 31 March 2019, the average training hours for senior
managers was 23 hours, and the average training hours
for male and female employees were equal at 23 and 0

hours.

Labour Standards

The Company is in compliance with Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance, Regulations on Labour Security
Supervision and other applicable laws as the Group
sets a high standard in protecting employees. Relevant
guidelines are set out in employment contracts, internal

notices and other forms of documents.

The Company strictly prohibits any child labour or
forced labour, or any unfair treatment to our employees
which does not employ staff who are below 18 years of
age. The Company provides such rights and benefits
to its employees which are no less than those required
statutorily. No employee is paid less than the minimum
wage specified by the Minimum Wage Ordinance
(Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Company's
contributions to the defined contribution retirement
scheme it operated under the Mandatory Provident Fund

Scheme are made by each monthly contribution day.

We closely monitor our workplace conditions and
employees’ behavior. In any case of breach of conduct,
we will launch detailed investigations over the matters

and improve our preventive measures.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

B7. Anti-corruption

The Company is committed to adhering to the highest
ethical standards and maintaining a culture of integrity
and justice for preventing, detecting and reporting all

types of fraud, including corruption.

The Company seeks to encourage strict policies that
prohibit bribery and other improper payments to
public officials consistent with the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
similar laws in other countries in which the company

invests.

All staff members are to comply with provisions laid
down in the Staff Handbook, “Anti-bribery, Bribetaking,
Bribe-providing, Conflict of Interest”. The Staff Handbook
stipulates that if an employee breaks the company policy
or any Hong Kong laws and regulations, the Company

has the right to terminate the employment contract.

There was no legal case regarding corrupt practices nor
any case of corruption found or reported by the Company

during the this reporting year.

The Risk Management Committee was set up to regularly
evaluate and determine the nature and extent of risks to
the Company. Interest of shareholders and stakeholders

can hence be further being protected.

Since the Board has recognized the importance of
corporate governance practice, it strictly complies
with the Code of Corporate Governance practices as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Moreover,
anti-corruption policy is adopted and all directors and
employees are required to sign the Code of Conduct of

the Company.

Furthermore, the Company regularly updates and informs
employees which securities are forbidden to purchase
due to conflict of interests. During the Year, no bribery,

extortion, fraud or money laundering was found.
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B.

58

SOCIAL (continued)

B8. Community Investment
As a responsible corporate citizen, The Company makes
an effort to give back to the community. We address
social issues and communicate with local community to
understand their needs. The Company had established
a company limited by guarantee and not having a share
capital called Green Rhythm Limited for the objectives

including but not limited to the following:

- To conserve, protect, and improve the environment
in Hong Kong for the public benefit by promoting
a sustainable lifestyle on a non-profit making basis
through the reduction of pollution and waste,
increasing the recycling rate of waste and the use of

renewable energy;

- For the advancement of environmental protection
or improvement for the benefit of Hong Kong
community, on a non-profit making basis, to raise
community awareness of and promote public
support for issues related to environmental
protection, energy, conservation and sustainable

development;

-~ To provide for relief in poverty in Hong Kong and
elsewhere by means of all kinds of social welfare
services and medical support to those who are in

need.

The Company firmly believes that Green Rhythm Limited
can contribute to the community interests in the aspects
of environment protection and social welfare in Hong

Kong.
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HKEX ESG REPORT GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

General Disclosures
and KPIs
—REER
BRERER

Description

it

B (RE HEREBREESD

AR ]
Relevant Section

in the ESG Report
BIE HERERBRE
9 A8 B = B

Remarks

L

Aspect A1: Emissions
EBEA1 By

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI'A1.1

BASEAS IR IRALT

KPI'A1.2

BRI IRA1.2

KPI'A1.3

EE e e

Information on:

a. the policies; and
compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

ERRERKRAERBEER MKk

WS BEEREBEEREVNEL

FHy:

a. HE: K

b. BTHBRTAFTEAZENHEH
ERRIROIEE R

The types of emissions and respective

emissions data.

BEmmiE R R R P BUR

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and,

where appropriate, intensity.
BERBEAHNER (MER)EE-

Total hazardous waste produced and,

where appropriate, intensity.

MELBEEEMRENR(WER)

Environmental

B35

Environmental

218

Environmental

IRi=

The Group has not
identified any hazardous
waste was produced in
our business

REE R ARBERZOERE
EEMBERERY
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General Disclosures Relevant Section

and KPIs Description in the ESG Report Remarks
—REER BE HeRERRS
ARARER i 9 A8 B Z 6 ik

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced  Environmental -

BRERIEIZA1.4

KPI'A1.5

BASRAE IR IRALS

KPI A1.6

RABAE BUIEIZA1.6

and intensity.

FREEBRERENBERTE -
Description of measures to mitigate

emissions and results achieved.

st R BE R E MR b M P IS AR ©

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HAREEEREEEEDN A
BIREFENEBRTERR-

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water and

other raw materials.

R

]

Environmental

B35

Environmental

B 15

Environmental

—RIWE BERERER(BREER KEEMR RE -
R B BUR

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Environmental -
consumption by type in total and
intensity.

B A R IR AT BEAESNEER AMEERE BE -

KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and  Environmental -
intensity.

BB B IR IRA2.2 BEKEREE- RIE -
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General Disclosures

Relevant Section

and KPIs Description in the ESG Report Remarks
—BREER BE HERERBRE
BARARER i 948 B = 6 i3
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency  Environmental -
initiatives and results achieved.
BB A RIEIRA23 i Be IR A s At 8 R PR SRCR RIR -
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any - The Group believes that

FASAEMIEIRA24

KPI'A2.5

BRI IRA2.5

issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and

results achieved.

Fid 2t SR EGE A KR L AT B A fa]
Rk st st 8 R FTISRCR

Total packaging material used for
finished products, and if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.
X mrABREMENEE R (1ER)
BAEEEUGE-

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEA3  RERRXRER

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI'A3.1

A2 48 IR TE A3

Policies on minimizing the issuer's
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.
WMEETAHRRERRREREKE
REEHBR -

Description of the significant impacts
of activities on the environment and
natural resources and actions taken to
manage them

B EBERBHERRERRAERNE
A ERDHIEIREATENTTE-

Environmental

IRi=

Environmental

B

our water consumption is
mainly for domestic use
and no issues have been
identified at this moment.
REERR HANFEKE
FERREERSE BB
Al ARBERERER -

Use of packaging material
is not applicable to our
business
BEMRHE A8 A 7 A
Bz RS
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEkEA®RE

General Disclosures Relevant Section

and KPIs Description in the ESG Report Remarks
—RIEER BRI -HERERRE
BRERER it AR E & Bt

Aspect B1: Employment and Labour Practices
EEB1 EREZEIESR

General Disclosure Information on: Employment and -
(@) the policies; and Labour Practices
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.
— MR E FATHEREE BEREA TIER EEREZIER -
2R TERE Zb RER
VAR B At 155 38 R AR N B
(@ B R
b) BTHETABEAZENAR
ERRROIEE R

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment ~ Employment and -
type, age group and geographical Labour Practices
region

BB A5 R 1RB1.T RIER - RBERE FREMNIMES REEERSIER -
DHEERAH-

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age  Employment and -
group and geographical region Labour Practices

BAEAE IR 1RB1.2 RS FRAFN R ONEE REEMBIER -
MR &
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ENVIRONMENTAL,'SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RR HEBREARSE

General Disclosures

and KPIs Description
—RERBER
BRENER it

Relevant Section

in the ESG Report Remarks
BE HeREREE

WA E & Bt

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EHEB2 - @ERZZ
General Disclosure Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating
to providing a safe working
environment and protecting

employees from occupational

hazards.
—PRIEER BEARMET 2 TERRERREE S &
REEEEERN:
@ BE: R

b) MFHBTAEEALEMIEM
EERARBINER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related

fatalities.

BA AR R 1R B2.1 AITEEERMETHABBLL R

KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury.

RS 4E IR 1ZB2.2 ATISEATIERE-

KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted how they are
implemented and monitored.

BSR4 N E1RB2.3 PR A BB R 2 R R 2 2 HE
ARAEBMITRERTT A

Employment and -

Labour Practices

BELSTER -

- No work-related fatalities
were recorded during the
reporting period.

= k& BRI AR T
AR A= o ERE >

- No lost days due to work
injury were recorded
during the reporting

= REEBAL EEA TS mIE
KIER A -

Employment and -

Labour Practices

EBERETIER -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE -dEgkER

General Disclosures
and KPIs
—REER
BRERER

wE

Description

it

Relevant Section

in the ESG Report
BE HeRERRS
AR E &

Remarks

L

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EHEB3 : #EKFH

General Disclosure

— R

KPI B3.1

RS2 48 FE 12 B3

KPIB3.2

BAR A W HE12B3.2

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities
ERRTEERTIEBRENMER
FREERVBR AL E FIE &Y

The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category.
mrMUBIREEENESNXIEER
e

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and
employee category.
rERKEERRE Y SEEER
DSl RSl

il
dt
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Employment and

Labour Practices

BELETIER

Employment and
Labour Practices

ERERMETIER

Employment and

Labour Practices

EBRMETIER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE -#HEREA®RE

General Disclosures
and KPIs
—REER
BRERER

Description

it

Relevant Section

in the ESG Report
BE HeREREE
H9 A8 B8 = B

Remarks

L

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[ETEB4 : & T %A

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI B4.1

BASE A5 R 1R B4

KPI B4.2

RASE 4B I 1EB4.2

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating

to preventing child and forced

labour
B IEE T koaml 4 TH:
(@ BK: &

b EFHRTABEAF LN
ERRADIHER -

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour

it i S R BB I O SR A B R E T
Noglgs T e

Description of steps taken to eliminate
child and forced labour practices when
discovered
MR EZRBE AR HERE TR
85 TIE S PTERER ) A 88

Employment and

Labour Practices

BEKSETIER

Employment and

Labour Practices

BELSTER

No such incidents were
reported during the
reporting period.

RBERAL B2 BRAHE
e
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE dERERBE

General Disclosures

and KPIs Description
—REREK
BRERER it

Relevant Section

in the ESG Report
BE HeRERRS
AR E &

Remarks

L

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : ftEHEER
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental

and social risks of the supply chain

— R EE EIRHERARE ML g ERBUR
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical
region

[BR 4 48 K FE 15 B5.1 EiEE D HEEmEE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating
to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored

BAR A 1R B5.2 Wil A RHREENED  [EHR
TEREMNHEREB ANERIE
PIRHATT REEBR TT 0% -
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The office-based operation
of the Company is not
considered to have
significant environmental
and social risks of the
supply chain.

RRARERPAEHNEED
@Wﬁﬁﬁhﬁﬁﬁ%%
BRRERMAGEAR -

No suppliers were used for
our core business during
the reporting period

R &AL EBIL B
FEm

No suppliers were used for
our core business during

the reporting period

RO 85 R POR D 23 g
FER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE -#HEREA®RE

General Disclosures
and KPIs
—REER
BRERER

Description

it

Relevant Section

in the ESG Report Remarks
BE HeREREE

WA E & Bt

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

EEB6 : EmEIE

General Disclosure

— R

KPI Bé6.1

B4 48 S HE 15 B6.1

KPI B6.2

B4 48 W HE 13 B6.2

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress

BERFRHERTRGHORERZ S

BE BRELRLEBEENRERTE

HY -

a) BUR: &

b) BTFHEITABEATZENIER
ER NG E R

(
(

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons
EERCERERAHTER2ER
BREHmMARKNE DL

Number of products and service
related complaints received and how
they are dealt with

BN EMMRBHRFEE AR
e 7%

- The office-based operation
of the Company is not
considered to have
significant environmental
and social risks of product
responsibility due to its

nature of business.

S RRABERPAENEER
HEBUHEEM NSRS
BEMERTHBENENR
B RS -

- Not identified as material

aspect

= TRERSERNEE

= Not identified as material

aspect

= TRERSERNFEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE -dEgkER

General Disclosures

wE

Relevant Section

and KPIs Description in the ESG Report Remarks

—RIEER BE HERERRE

BRERER g BB L

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to - Not identified as material

BASAE RIE1RB6.3

KPI B6.4

AR AE IR IEBG.4

KPI B6.5

BR 4 4 W HE 12 B6.5

68

observing and protecting intellectual
property rights

Wl R EENRENRERABNE
1

Description of quality assurance

process and recall procedures

il E 2% F BENE®RLBEF

Description of consumer data
protection and privacy policies, how
they are implemented and monitored

fi 8 B E B RHRE RALBBUR - A
KABAITRERTE

Annual Report % ¥ 2019

aspect

THEERBEAHRE

Not identified as material

aspect

TEEEF/BEANZE

Not identified as material

aspect

TRERSERNEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE -#HEREA®RE

General Disclosures Relevant Section

and KPIs Description in the ESG Report Remarks
—REER BE HeREREE
BRERER it WA E & Bt

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BHEB7 : RES
General Disclosure Information on: Operating Practices -
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering
—RIE BEDIEE 9% BEERLRER: 2EES -
@ BE: R
b) EBFTHBETABEAZENHEH
ER RGN E R

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases - No concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought regarding corrupt
against the issuer or its employees practices were brought
during the reporting period and the against the issuer or its
outcomes of the cases. employees during the

reporting cases.

B A R 1R BT .1 RERBAHZETASEEEREY - RIREEIA - I M 5 31T
EEAENESFARMTNEE KFHR ASEEEZEEREES
BR- AR o

KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures - At this moment, the Group
and whistles — blowing procedures, has no whistle-blowing
how they are implemented and procedure and is planning
monitored. to review the feasibility

and appropriateness of it

in the coming years.

B4 48 W HE 13287 .2 e R B REF ARERE - BIRERH AEEETE
MITRERT L. BREF WA B ARE
REZEZEFNAITE

KA M-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEkEA®RE

General Disclosures Relevant Section

and KPIs Description in the ESG Report Remarks
—RIEER BRI -HERERRE
BRERER it WA E & Bt

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : HtEIRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement = Community -
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities takes into
consideration communities’ interests

—RIE AU EBE2ERTRETALEN HE -
HHEBEZBREBEREXKISHEE
JE AL 8 A 58 Y BSR

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution Community -

B 52 45 A5 1R B8 EIERERE Zan' -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus ~ Community -
areas

BB 4E IE1RB8.2 EZIBBABHAER v =
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRSHNEEERERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee, aged 54, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company since May 2012. He is also
the chairman of the Risk Management Committee. Mr. Chan
holds a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of Business
Administration of the University of South Florida in the United
States of America. Mr. Chan is currently a licensed person to
carry out type 1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts), type 3 (leveraged foreign exchange trading), type 4
(advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). He is experienced in dealing in securities,
fund management, corporate management, corporate finance and
managing listed investment companies under Chapter 21 of the

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of China
Innovation Investment Limited (stock code: 1217) (“Cll”) in June
2003, China Investment and Finance Group Limited (stock code:
1226) ("CIFG") in March 2011, Capital VC Limited (stock code:
2324) ("CVC") in November 2012, China New Economy Fund
Limited (stock code: 80) (“CNEF"”) in June 2013 and National
Investments Fund Limited (stock code: 1227) (“NIF") in November
2018. Cll, CIFG, CVC, CNEF and NIF are all investment companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. He has been an executive director
of China Trends Holding Limited (stock code: 8171), a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, since February 2016. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8220), a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, in August 2007, and was re-designated
as its executive director in April 2009 until September 2018.

BITES

MEREE M BT —FHABREZF
RARBATESZ RIAARAREEZE® 2T
F-REEBEXEEHREREMARTIEHERE
BRREHBLBU -REEBAMRAIETE
BEPIFESNERBF LB GRIIETEVE (BF
Xp) FRE(BMEEHORS) - B3\ (ERASH
EX5) F4BE(UEFREHRER) REHE (R
HEEER)XRERDIBEAL -BNESH
R HEEE CREE CERENEEBRX
S EMRAENEBR N Z EMRERFNE
BEEEELR-

REER -_ZZ=_FNARTEEHFREFRA
A (B RSE:1217) ([HRERIRDZERRTT
EE R _T——F-ABTERKREEEAR
nAE (B e 1226) ([FERBERE]ZR
TARTES R —F+— ABHHMER
BRAR (BRHAGE:2324) ([HHWMEIR])EE
RPTEE R_ZE—=FNABPEHILER
BARBARF (BRHREE:80) ([HEFKLERE])
ZERBTESF YR _T—-N\F+—ABBER
REESBERAT (BHOAE:1227) (THEKR
BESDZERATEFT -HEAIKR hEIKH
BEE BHaR PEALERENBEERE
HEeHORBIFEMZIREAF -REEB -F
—ANE_ARBEPEBEERAR AR ()
5% :8171) (BERXFIGEMLEM AR) ZHITE
E BN _TTLFN\ARLSEEZERARA
A (B 5% - 8220) (BERPAGEMLEM AR &
ERBIUFATES BR_FTTNFONARML
RRTES BEEZT-/\FNLAAL-
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms.
non-executive Director of the Company since August 2018 and
the Chairman of the Board since September 2018. She is also the
chairman of the Nomination Committee. Ms. Yang graduated from
Hangzhou Normal University Qianjiang College* (#7/1 il #5 X 2285

72t ) with a bachelor's degree in tourism management in July

Yang Xiaoqiu, aged 32, has been appointed as a

2008. She has extensive experience in operation and corporate
management. Ms. Yang held management roles and directorship
in the following companies, namely, Hangzhou Chinese Apparel
Limited* (1N 2 A R & B R A7), Shanghai Dons Lamour
Jewelry Limited* ( F/8B&IKBE B2 E]) and AARUI International
Group Holding Company Limited ( #im B EEIZRBR 2 A]) .
Since February 2018, Ms. Yang has been an executive director of
Future Bright Mining Holdings Limited (listed on Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 2212).

Mr. Chen Yin, aged 45, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company since October 2013. He was the Chairman
of the Board from October 2013 to September 2018. Mr. Chen
received his bachelor's degree in electronic engineering from
Tianjin Institute of Technology (currently known as Tianjin University
of Technology), in the PRC in 1994. Mr. Chen held various positions
in financial institutions including Tianjin Trust Investment Company
(currently known as Tianjin Trust Co., Ltd.), Bohai Securities Co.,
Ltd, Xiamen Securities Co., Ltd., and several fund management
companies in the PRC. Mr. Chen has over 18 years of extensive
experience in investment management, corporate finance,
securities dealing and private equity business areas. Mr. Chen
was also appointed as a distinguished visiting researcher by the

Economics Research Institute of Nankai University since 2010.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRSHNEEERERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Li, aged 46, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since July 2018. He is also the chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Risk
Management Committee. Mr. Li holds a bachelor degree in

business administration and is a China securities and futures
certified accountant* (B &S HIE R sEM € 5HA0) and a China
registered asset appraiser* (‘:F' Bl & EE AT AR AD) .

In 1999, Mr. Li worked as a deputy director of Beijing Yongtuo
Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd.* (Jb F KA ETEISZEFT) ,
and was in charge of the securities auditing business. In 2004, Mr.
Li was the deputy general manager of Zhongxi Certified Public
Ld* (M ESFMEEMAREELRR) . Mr
Li is currently the managing partner of Zhongxi Certified Public

EQHENERA (5

Accountants Co.,

Accountants (Special General Partnership)* (4
BREBERE))

Mr. Li has been appointed as independent non-executive director
of National Investments Fund Limited (stock code: 1227) since
October 2018, a company listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, and is an independent director of Beijing Huaye Real
Estate Co., Ltd.* (It REZ M ERKH B R A7) (stock code:
600240), a company listed in PRC.

China Investment DevelopmentVLimited o MEREBBEERA :J‘_ e

BAFHTES

FHEE 4 BT \FLAREZER
BIUFHTES RARERZESIRERES
ZEB8g® ¥HZBEeMAREEZREEKRE-F
EERATIREEETEM I RTEBHFHE
R R AL & AT EM S R B A A A R AL AT

FERE-NNNFREBIL FOKM R EH AT -

RRETXEHMBIEESE DEESFTITE
B —TTWE FREBTTESMELH
EREFARANBEALE RATESHMER
rRHREBRaR)NEEABA

AT \FTABR—ERRKREXF
FRETHAREXRKEESHR AR (BRHA
SR227) KB HERITES K —FKRFE LW
AR REZEMERMDAR AR (BRHRE:
600240) K JE L E =% ©
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Lai Yuen Piu, aged 53, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since January 2019. He is also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Risk Management
Committee. He holds a bachelor degree in Commerce and is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered and Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lai has over 22 years of
experience in the accounting and finance sector and is currently the

financial controller of a technology company.

Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie, aged 39, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since January 2019. She is also
a member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management Committee.
She holds an associate degree in Economic Management and
a Master of Science degree in Management and has over 18
years of experience in trading, project management and general
administration. Ms. Leung is currently the human resources and

administration manager of an investment company.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Ms. Lin Yudan, aged 36, has been appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since January 2019. She obtained
her bachelor degree in bio engineering from Sichuan University of
Science & Engineering (P4JI[Z2 T2t ) in the People’s Republic
of China and has over 10 years of experience in corporate
management. Ms. Lin has been an executive director and the legal
representative of Sichuan Z. K. Investment Co., Ltd.* (F0)I|JE51#%
BEABMRAT]) since 2011.

* For identification only
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYZBATRES

IBDO

55 1+ +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
HETREPI1E
kRHI2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA INVESTMENT
DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Investment Development Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “"Group”) set out on pages 83 to 183,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

HPEREMBARIARR

(REEHEIMAT IR EREEFZFRA
A7)

=R

AZEED (A TEHE[EF])EERTEKRERN
BERRAR (BRI RENBAR (RE[E
SEDHEIINERE1BEZHFAMBRE B
R-ZB-hEF=ZA=t—RH2ZHEaHBEIRREX"
UEBEZBILFEZ GBS REM2EKES
X CARDZEIREGEARERER UREKE
BUBHRRME BREESTHRME -

BEERR BAVBRREREFT LSS
(BEREFMAg)EM 2B EMBRELER
(BRYBHREENDEERAFRR EE
RZF-NFZA=T—BZEEUBERRIAR
HEEZALFEZEEVBRAMEGARE
ME YERBEBEBARGHZEEREMZ S
ik

b

RREX
EERBETEGHAMASHEM BT LR LR
(BAEFERNDETER BENRFELR
TZEEREBEZZHEN [RBMRABEZGEE M
BHRERAAEZET] —HRE-TBL-RE
BREGHERGRMm (EXSEERTAD
(I=F1) - EEBYRY EXEE YERETTH
PHEMBEREE-EEHE EEMEGZE
RBEERENEEHWSE ST B RIREAER-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYRBARE S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Valuation of unlisted financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and unlisted financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Refer to notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group had unlisted financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and unlisted financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$31,787,000 and
HK$24,931,000 respectively were measured at fair value as at 31
March 2019. The fair values were assessed by the management
based on valuations performed by an independent valuer (the
“Valuer”) engaged by the Group.

The valuations of the unlisted financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and unlisted financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss involved significant judgement and
estimates, including the determination of valuation methodology

and the selection of different inputs to the valuation models.

We identified the valuation of unlisted financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income and unlisted financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss as a key audit matter as it requires
management to exercise significant judgement and estimation, and

was assessed by us to be a significant risk of material misstatement.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter:
Our key audit procedures in relation to management's impairment

assessment included:

- Assessing the competence, capabilities, independence and
objectivity of the Valuer;

— Assessing the valuation methodology used and the
appropriateness of the key bases and assumptions used, and
discussing these bases and assumptions with the management

and the Valuer;

—  Challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions based

on our knowledge of the investees’ businesses and industries;

- Obtaining supportive evidence for the significant judgements
and estimates of the valuations and the key inputs used in the

valuations; and
- Checking the mathematical accuracy of the valuation.

Impairment assessment on other receivables and deposit

Refer to notes 5, 20 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had other receivables and deposits
amounting to approximately HK$62,140,000 before impairment loss
on deposits paid of approximately HK$59,000,000 and provision
for expected credit losses ("ECL") of approximately HK$1,261,000
and the Group was exposed to credit risk thereof. The Group
has applied HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments on 1 April 2018 and
assessed impairment for these receivables based on ECL model.
In determining the impairment losses on other receivables and
deposits, the management assessed historical default rates, and
those relevant forward-looking information such as the expected
future cash flows and forward-looking macroeconomic factors
which involve estimation and significant judgement. Due to the
significance of other receivables and deposits (representing 37% of
total assets) to the consolidated financial statements as a whole and
the use of judgement and estimates by management in assessing
the recoverability of other receivables and deposits, we considered

this is a key audit matter.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter:

Our key procedures in relation to the management's impairment

assessment on other receivables and deposits included:

78

Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the other
receivables and deposits as at 31 March 2019 to the underlying
financial records and post year-end settlements to bank

receipts;

Inquiring of management for the status of each of the
material other receivables and deposits past due as at year
end date and corroborating explanations from management
with supporting evidence, such as understanding on-going
business relationship with the debtors, checking historical and
subsequent settlement records and other correspondence
with the debtors;

Performing public search of credit profile of selected
debtors, considering the credit profiles of the debtors, as
well as external evidence and factors, to assess whether

management's assessment of ECL was appropriate;

Assessing management’s forecast of future repayments and
current financial conditions of the debtors, based on historical

experience, etc; and

Evaluating the appropriateness and reasonableness of
methodology, parameters and assumptions used in the
measurement of ECL such as criteria for judging significant
increases in credit risk, definition of credit-impaired financial

asset, key data inputs and forward-looking information.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) assists the directors in discharging their responsibility

in this regard.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

e  obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Fai

Practising Certificate Number P05443

Hong Kong, 28 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT—OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meiEmREMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

2019 2018
—B-hEFE —ZT)N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt THET FHET
Revenue Wezs 7 600 600
Other income I ON 7 542 736
Change in fair value of financial assets BATEFATEERER Y
at fair value through profit or loss MBEE AT EZS (13,296) (8,956)
Net realised (loss)/gain on disposals of HERAFEFAEBRRRE
financial assets at fair value through ZHMBEEZEER (B18)/
profit or loss Wt Fea (1,272) 2,113
Administrative and other expenses T R EAth T 2 (74,468) (13,857)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWBRREE 8 17) -
Share of result of an associate D —REE QR 2 EER 16 S M
Loss before income tax expense BREF1S IR X RIS 18 10 (87,911) (19,365)
Income tax expense FrigBiF 9 s -
Loss for the year attributable to RATHEE NERAREEEE
owners of the Company (87,911) (19,365)
Other comprehensive income Hth 2 W &
ltems that will not be reclassified TEEMOEEEECIEE
to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of financial BAVEFAEEMEE
assets at fair value through WHEBHMBEEEL
other comprehensive income NEEES (67,027) -
ltems that may be reclassified HigngesfoHEEm 2
subsequently to profit or loss: HHE
Change in fair value of AHENBEE ATE
available-for-sale financial assets & - (8,798)
Reclassification of investment B EMBEEEL
revaluation reserve upon impairment BERRESEHHEZ
of available-for-sale financial assets B A - 68
Exchange difference arising from REE-—FRBMERTEEZ
an associate during the year PE H ERE (395) 598
Other comprehensive income for the year, ZNF & Hth 2 K -
net of tax MR IE (67,422) (8,132)
Total comprehensive income for the year A4 [& 2 E U 25 4258 (155,333) (27,497)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
fra BN H 2 Wk

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
ZB-hEFE —T)N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FET FAT
Loss per share BRER 13
— Basic (HK cent per share) —EAR (FRB) 9.50 2.20
- Diluted (HK cent per share) —#5E (B ) 9.50 2.20
Proceeds from disposals of financial HERATEFACERERE
assets at fair value through U BEEZRENE
profit or loss 42,557 45,386
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CONSOLIDATED S'i'ATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

As at 31 March 2019 R=F—hFE=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hE ZZE-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 15 277 500
Interest in an associate R—KEE AR 2R 17 5,714 6,109
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHEUBEE 18 = 98,814
Financial assets at fair value through BATER AT EAM 2 E RS
other comprehensive income RIEZUBEE 18 31,787 -
37,778 105,423
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFATERRE .
profit or loss MG ERE 19 67,879 57,668
Other receivables, deposits paid and Hith IR - BT RE R
prepayments TR IR 20 2,678 62,304
Bank and cash balances RITEREEF 21 1,137 5,744
71,694 125,716
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued charges Hitn eI sIBE R EEHE R 3,601 821
Net current assets RBEEFE 68,093 124,895
Net assets EEFE 105,871 230,318
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of KRR AEGER
the Company
Share capital A% 22 10,582 8,822
Reserves & 23 95,289 221,496
Total equity LSRR 105,871 230,318
Net asset value per share EREEFE 25  HK$0.10#7t  HK$0.268 7T
On behalf of the directors RERESE
Chen Yin Chan Cheong Yee
R AL BRE&
Director Director
EE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmSER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Investment
Share  revaluation  Share option Exchange  Accumulated
Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
e RiEB RESMHEE BREEE ERGE 2iEE &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TERL TR TR FET TET

(Note 22) (Note 23) (Note 23) (Note 23) (Note 23)

(Mz22) (Bizk23) (W23) (Bizk23) (MzE23)

At 1 April 2017 R-E-t5mA-A 8,822 343632 36,567 12341 (525) (254,092) 257,815
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - S (19,365) (19,369)
Other comprehensive income Hi 2Bl
Change in fair value of available-forsale financial assets ~ AIHEFHEAE 2 AT EEH = S (8,798) = = = (879)
Reclassification of investment revaluation reserve upon B8] {H E BT B A E fE I FI B RE
impairment of available-for-sale financial assets BRRECENIE - - 68 - - - 68
Exchange difference arising from an associate FEE-FHENRELCERER
during the year (Note 17) (HzE17) - - - - 598 S 598
- - (8,730) - 598 - 8132
Total comprehensive income for the year RER2EYEEE - - (8730) - 598 (19,369) (27,497)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\§¥=A=1-H 8,822 343,632 27,831 12341 73 (273457) 230,318
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
mEERSER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

EQUITY

Investment
Share  revaluation ~ Share option Exchange  Accumulated
Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
Bx BROEE REERHE BRERE EXffE ZitEA @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiEn TER TEn TER TEn TER
(Note 2(a)(i)
(Note 22) (Note 23) and 23) (Note 23) (Note 23)  (Note 2(a)(i))
(HrsE2(a))
(Wi22)  (K&23) R23)  (WE23)  (ME23)  (HiE2ai)
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZB-NFZA=+-BK
—2-)\fmA-A 8,822 343,632 27,837 123,411 3 (273,457) 230,318
Impact of initial application of HKFRS 9 BEREREANBRELAZNI HE - - (21,208) - - 21,208 -
Restated as 1 April 2018 RZE-\FNA—-HEF| 8,822 343,632 6,629 123,411 73 (252,249) 230,318
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - (87,911) (87,911)
Other comprehensive income Hi 2Bl
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value BAVEAAEEMEAREREL
through other comprehensive income REEZATES - - (67,027) - - - (67,027)
Exchange difference arising from an associate TEE-FHENAELZESZR
during the year (Note 17) (HzE17) - - - - (395) - (395)
- - (67,027) - (395) - (67,422)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERARELE - - (67,027) - (395) (87,911) (155,333)
Placing of new shares REHR 1,760 29,128 - - s = 30,888
Share options lapsed BRRERE - - - (57,630) - 57,630 -
Realisation upon disposal of a subsidiary RHEMBARKER - - o s o 2 @
At 31 March 2019 BW=B-n%=A=1+-A 10,582 372,760 (60,398) 65,781 (322) (282,532) 105,871
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—'B-hE —F-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt THET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities RELEERZEHERE
Loss before income tax expense BRETSHH 2 AIE R (87,911) (19,365)
Adjustments for: M TN EBEELFE:
Depreciation e 10 228 246
Net realised loss/(gain) on disposals of HERAFESALEER
fair value of financial assets at fair value BREZUBEENTEZ
through profit or loss BEERER (Kx)FHE 1,272 2,113
Interest income FEHA (600) (600)
Bank interest income RITALEWA 7 (2) m
Change in fair value of financial assets BAVEFAEERREEREZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBEENTEE 13,296 8,956
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEMBEERERE
financial assets - 1,550
Impairment loss on other receivables Hin g IBE R B R &
and deposit paid WIEEE 60,261 160
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary LE—RMBAREE 17 =
Share of result of an associate SE—RKEERRIZER - 1
Written off of property, plant and Wi BB R R
equipment - 26
Operating loss before working capital EEESRBAZRERE
changes (13,439) (11,140)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEERATEFALERZ
through profit or loss RIBZMBEE (67,338) (41,583)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets ~ H&EAFEF AEER
as fair value through profit or loss BRI MG EE G
A 42,557 45,386
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, Hip W IR 12 & KA
deposits and prepayments g (gm) m S (35) 326
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Hib N IR ERT &R
and accrued charges o Crid) 2,788 (1,001)
Cash used in operations REMERSE (35,467) (8,012)
Interest received 2 & 2 1
Net cash used in operating activities REEBAERETFE (35,465) (8,011)
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CONSOLIDATED S'i'ATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

2019 2018
—B-hEFE —ZT)N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(i FTHERT FET
Cash flows from investing activities RERETBZHERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment & & %1% - B FE K& 15 (5) (17)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of HEMBRR IKRMEE
cash disposed He (25) =
Net cash used in investing activities RETHAERSFHE (30) (7
Cash flows from financing activity REMETHZHERE
Net proceeds from issue of new shares BATHNR 2 FR1S ;IR F 58 30,888 =
Net cash generated from financing METBHERSFHE
activity 30,888 -
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBASZEYRD TR
equivalents (4,607) (8,028)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#RERREZEY
of year 5,744 13,772
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERBEERRESZEY 1,137 5744
Analysis of the balance of cash and ReRASEEYERDNT
cash equivalents
Bank and cash balances RITRIReHT 1,137 5,744
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE
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GENERAL INFORMATION

China Investment Development Limited (“the Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 25 March 1998 and was de-registered
on 11 March 2011 and was registered by way of continuation
as an exempted company in Bermuda on 2 March 2011. The
Company's shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from
12 December 2000. lts registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its
principal office in Hong Kong is located at Suites 2706-2707,
27/F., Everbright Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding
for medium to long-term capital appreciation purposes, and
investment in listed and unlisted securities. The principal
activities of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in note 16

to the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first
effective on 1 April 2018

Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
adoption of Hong Kong Financial

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
Reporting Standards

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued) 2. RMBEBYHEEER (&)
(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first (a) RAHFT RIETEBNKEREE
effective on 1 April 2018 (continued) A-R-ZEBE-—NFENA—-HEX%E
M (#E)

Other than the below on the adoption of HKFRS 9, B T SCRral SN & A B 75 ¥ 5 £ R 659

the application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the 2N RAFERERRAE B BmESE

current year has had no material effect on the amounts Al BT HZERAaMBRERT 2H,

reported in these consolidated financial statements 2R HZEREMBREPET

and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated financial ZHEBEIEERNZE -

statements.

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments EEMBREENFEIR-—ESRMITAE

(i) Classification and measurement of financial () TETAMSERITE
instruments
HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: ERTBHRELENFIFRR_-F
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods —N\FOA—-—B®zE&fBzF
beginning on or after 1 April 2018, bringing together EHRIRRE B g LRI FE395%
all three aspects of the accounting for financial eRIA - BRAKTE aHer
instruments: (1) classification and measurement; (2) TEESFEREEBEAAZHAE=ES
impairment and (3) hedge accounting. The adoption (Mo BERFE: QRERRIE
of HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018 has resulted in changes HEE-BE T N\FHA—HE
in accounting policies of the Group. KMBEAVBRELENESRE S

BAKERHRELRED
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

92

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first

effective on 1 April 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial

instruments (continued)

2. RMBEBUBREER (F)
(a) WK RETEBUBHREE
A-R-B-NFHNA-BERE

®(E)
ERMBRELENEIF -SRI A
(%)

() ZBTRANSERE (&)

The following tables summarised the impact, net of TERBHBEEZR BV BREE
tax, of transition to HKFRS 9 on the opening balance Al E—T—N\F—HA—

of reserves and retained earnings as of 1 January

2018 as follows:

AR HEESG RREBRBFD
FE (MBRBEBE)T

HK$'000
FHET
Accumulated losses Rt E#R
Accumulated losses as at 31 March 2018 BE-_Z— ) \FZA=+—HMNZEE (273,457)
Reclassify impairment loss previously BERMMAI L ENBHEENBRPHERD
recognised in profit or loss for BEBBEEN D BERESHHE
available-for-sale financial asset to (3B EE2(a)) )
investment revaluation reserve
(note 2(a)(i) below) 21,208
Accumulated losses as at 1 April 2018 BE-_ZT—)\FWWA—HMETEIE (252,249)
Investment revaluation reserve REEMHE
Reserves balances at 31 March 2018 RZE— N\F=ZA=+—HORHEE 27,837
Reclassify impairment loss previously BRI L ENKEENRBERTD ﬁﬁ
recognised in profit or loss for BEBEENMSHEEREBGHE
available-for-sale financial asset to (T Bt EE2(a)() )
investment revaluation reserve
(note 2(a)(i) below) (21,208)
Restated reserves balance as at 1 April 2018 R=_ZE— \F M A —BNEYHEELS 6,629
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

2. RMWEBMBHRERER (&)
(a) M RETEBUBREE

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first

effective on 1 April 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss (“"FVTPL"), where the amount of change in fair
value attributable to change in credit risk of the
liability is recognised in other comprehensive income
("OCI") unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains
the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. However,
it eliminates the previous HKAS 39 categories
for financial assets of held to maturity financial
assets, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no
material impact on the Company's accounting
policies related to financial liabilities and derivative
financial instruments. The impact of HKFRS 9 on
the Company'’s classification and measurement of

financial assets is set out below.

A-RZFE-NFHA-BEXRE
M%&)

FERMBHRELEAFIR -SMTA
(%)

() ZMTANSERE (&)

TR HRELAESREATE
SEFERIFEIRM M 5 B ERHER
DEEFTERE EREEREA
FEHAAEERZERE ([BAFE
FAAGEERRE) cMBEEM
FRAENEERREEHMIIN
MAFEESHSHRERNEME2E
Wa (THfb2mUaE]) PR
BROFE RS E MR KIBEAGF
#5 AL o UL SN BB B R S A
O IRE BB G ET ERIEIWR AR
RIEBRMBEERM B REN
ME- AWM HBUHEEAMTAE R
MM B EE BRI EUGRIA &
AHEVHEENT B ER
EIRNMEEERR - KR EE
MBS ERERE AR A AR
BBEERTESR I AN ST
BRI BEEAZE -FEVHRE
HAFIFRHARRPBEED M
FETEMZEHIIMT -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first
effective on 1 April 2018 (continued)

94

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (continued)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade receivables
(that the trade receivables do not contain a
significant financing component in accordance with
HKFRS 15), an entity shall, at initial recognition,
measure a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction
costs. A financial asset is classified as: (i) financial
assets at amortised cost (“amortised costs”);
(ii) financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI"); or (iii) FVTPL
(as defined in above). The classification of financial
assets under HKFRS 9 is generally based on two
criteria: (i) the business model under which the
financial asset is managed and (i) its contractual
cash flow characteristics (the “solely payments
of principal and interest” criterion, also known
as “SPPI criterion”). Under HKFRS 9, embedded
derivatives is no longer required to be separated
from a host financial asset. Instead, the hybrid
financial instrument is assessed as a whole for the
classification.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and it has
not been designated as at FVTPL:

° It is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that meet
the SPPI criterion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

2. RMBEBUBREER (F)
(a) RAMHE RETEBUBHREE
A-R-B-NFHNA-BERE

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first
effective on 1 April 2018 (continued)

W (E)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued) ERAUBBREERNFERE-—SmITE
(#&)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (continued)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets
both of the following conditions and it has not been
designated as at FVTPL:

e It is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial

assets; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that meet
the SPPI criterion.

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Company could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in the investment'’s fair value in OCI. This election
is made on an investment-by-investment basis. All
other financial assets not classified at amortised
cost or FVOCI as described above are classified as
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets.
On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets
the requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that

would otherwise arise.

() ZMTANSERE (&)

HEMHRERETE AT RE B
WIEERAFEAAERRR
B AlZEBRERAFEFAL
Hip 2 an e ig

s %EHEREm-—fHstdA
WHRAHRETREMHEER
BEENFEHRAMFEE R

. ZMBEAENLDERRNE
EEMTELRERE MR
BemBALCEXAELR
7 BER -

HRRERLFFEEER S
MR E - AR RS A E i E
BEREMEZEKRET2INRER
FENREES - 2REVIRERE
BREMBZRBAME - FTAEM Ll
D BEREBHKAFTERIEZR
FEFAEEMCE2EKSEREZ
MBEE HDERBRAFERA
EiEGERE - WBEMEITENE
BE -NRFERE  NRF AR
BEtiEEMBEE (REMLTE
NERBERATESRAFE
AR MEE W EERIERHRE)
REAFEFAERREE AR
EEBEEAIERIABRSE
FTERECE A
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first
effective on 1 April 2018 (continued)

96

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)  Classification and measurement of financial

instruments (continued)

The following accounting policies would be applied

to the Company'’s financial assets as follows:

FVTPL

Amortised cost

FVOCI

(debt instruments)

FVOCI

(equity instruments)

Annual Report % ¥ 2019

FVTPL is subsequently measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost
are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method.
Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income calculated using
the effective interest rate method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in OCI
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income
are measured at fair value. Dividend
income is recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI
and are not reclassified to profit or

loss.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first
effective on 1 April 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial

instruments (continued)

(a)

As of 1 April 2018, the unquoted equity
investments were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial asset to financial
asset at FVOCI. The unquoted equity
instruments have no quoted prices in an
active market. The Group intends to hold the
unquoted equity investments for medium or
long term strategic purposes. In addition, the
Group has designated such unquoted equity
instruments at the date of initial application
as financial asset at FVOCI. As at 1 April 2018,
there were no difference between the previous

carrying amounts and the fair values.

The impairment loss previously recognised
and charged to profit or loss of
approximately HK$21,208,000 in relation
to the available-for-sale financial assets
were transferred from retained earnings to
investment revaluation reserves as at 1 April
2018.

2. RMWEBMBHRERER (&)
(a) M RETEBUBREE

A-RZFE-NFHA-BEXRE
M%&)

FERMBHRELEAFIR -SMTA
(%)

() ZMTANSERE (&)

(@ R-TE-N\FHA—HB —=&
BERERSREANLEN
BEEBMOBERATVE
AR EmKEEEZ
MBEE - ZRBEREERT
AREEMS T ERE - NE
BB AZERERDZRE
e R B BIBE A& o b Hh - AR
SEERERERBHKE
HEREEZTIAREERR
NP EFAEEMEE W E
BREZMBEE-NR=_F—N\
FOA—B BEREEER
FAEI S R -

b) B LENKEENLA
B R KR8 5 A0 B AR
1B /&5 18 £921,208,0007% 7T 7 —
E-\FOA-—HHRER
NEBBREREEMHE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first
effective on 1 April 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)  Classification and measurement of financial

instruments (continued)

The following table summarises the original
measurement categories under HKAS 39 and the
new measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for
each class of the Company's financial assets as at

2. RERBBEEEL (F)
(a) IR RETEBUBRESE
A-RZFE-NFHA-BEXRE

X (#&)
BERVMEHREREUFEIR -—SMITA

(%)
() =B TRANSERSE (B)

TERBAR-_FT-N\FHA—HR
ARARERUBEERERAS
=T 2RI 3957 R A 5t E R B RAR
EEBY B WE LA LR AT

1 April 2018: BRI
Carrying Carrying
amount as at amount as at
1 April 2018 1 April 2018
Original classification New classification under under
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
RIEEE
REEBETT MEREER
FERIE395% E L
R=Z2-N\H Z=B-N\F
RIEFRSTTER BREEBMBERE MA—H MA—H
B EE HIVHEZERESE EREIR2F D E ZREE ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Unlisted equity Available-for-sale FVOCI 98,814 98,814
investments (at fair value)
FELTIRERE e (RA¥E) BN ETAEEM
2 IR
Listed equity Held-for-trading FVTPL 30,568 30,568
investments
TR ERE HIEER ROV EFATEER
Jropd
Convertible Bonds Designated at initial FVTPL 27,100 27,100
recognition
AR ES YR FERE 8 E BRAFEGATER
ragid
Other receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 61,538 61,538
and deposits (note 2(a)(ii))
HmEWRIERLZE BERREWFIE REE AR
GEZODHY
Bank and cash Loans and receivables Amortised cost 5,744 5,744

balances

RITRBE G
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

2. RwERBBEEEL (A
(a) R RETEEBUBREE

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first

effective on 1 April 2018 (continued)

B-R=ZF-NFHA-BHEXRE

W (E)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued) EBVBREEAFRE-—SHITE
(#&)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Company’s impairment model by replacing the
HKAS 39 “incurred loss model” to the “expected
credit losses ("ECLs") model”. HKFRS 9 requires the
Company to recognise ECLs for financial assets at
amortised costs at FVOCI earlier than HKAS 39. Cash
and cash equivalents are subject to ECLs model but
the impairment is immaterial for the current period.

Under HKFRS 9, the loss allowances are measured
on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rates.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for interest receivable using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime
ECLs. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

(i) HHEERE

R E B M 15 8RS B R B9 F ok
TARRBMBREEREN  HHEES
FHERIZE3N [EELBEEN]
BoATRMEEER ([RYE
EERDEX] -BEYHHREE
BIESRREARRBAREB 5T
QI 55 3957 /4% 5T 5L 1R # SH A AR At
ERAFEAAEEMEZE K S
REZVGEERABHEES
B-ReRRSFEMAXEYE
EEREAMBRR  ERAREL
REK-

RIEEBHMBERELEREN B
BREBEATER —RELEAE:
M2EAFRMEEER : ERRK
SRMRI2EAANELHNELE
HEHBHNAREEEER Q)
FEMEREEER: WIRER
TEABFFHAMBAENED
EHELNEHREREER

BHEEEENE
BHMEEEBRDERRESLORE
MHaHBREeRELEANRF RS
W BEREMEZFHZRE -
REBERREERAERMNE
TMERRIR -

AEBEEREERTEMHRS
% QI B8R B (L X 7T 8 1 N B
BREMEFEHANEES
Bt EEMEEER - AKEER
VRBASEEATEEBELER
AAENBERERE Y IREBARE
MATEERZ REEREHELS

%é:zo
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first
effective on 1 April 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is

more than 90 days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECL is the maximum contractual period over which

the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Presentation of ECLs

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. For debt investment at FVOC],
the loss allowance is recognised in OCI, instead of

reducing the carrying amount of the assets.

Impact of the ECLs model

Financial assets at amortised cost of the Group
include bank and cash balances, other receivables
and deposits paid. Applying the ECLs model, no
impairment as at 1 April 2018 is recognised and the
loss allowance of approximately HK$1,261,000 was
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

REBMBREER ()

(a) M RETEBUBREE
A-RZFE-NFHA-BEXRE

(%)

BERUBHREEANEIR-ERMITA

(%)

BB EENE (&)
BEHEEEENGE (#)

fisd 80 EA AR 8308 - Bl AN =B R AR B
BEEMEERBRARE LT

AEBRSMBEEERTIER
TRELY: MERAT KA REEAR
SEEERERDMITE (Hlan: &
HEH) (MFBHE)NBRTRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued) 2. RMEBEBHMBREER (&)
(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first (a) RAHFT RIETEBNKEREE
effective on 1 April 2018 (continued) A-R-ZEBE-—NFENA—-HEX%E
(&)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued) ERAUBBREERNFERE-—SmITE
(%)
(iii)  Transition (i) B L HE

The Group has applied the transitional provision in
HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9 was generally adopted
without restating comparative information. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from
the new ECLs rules are therefore not reflected in the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018,
but are recognised in the statement of financial
position on 1 April 2018. This mean that differences
in the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities resulting from the adoption
of HKFRS 9 are recognised in retained earnings
and reserves as at 1 April 2018. Accordingly, the
information presented for 2018 does not reflect the
requirements of HKFRS 9 but rather those of HKAS
39.

The following assessment has been made on the
basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at
the date of initial application of HKFRS 9 (the “DIA"):

e The determination of the business model within

which a financial asset is held.

e  The designation and revocation of previous
designations of certain financial assets and

financial liabilities as measured at FVTPL; and

e The designation of certain investments in equity

investments not held for trading as at FVOCI.

If an investment in a debt investment had low
credit risk at the DIA, then the Group has assumed
that the credit risk on the asset had not increased

significantly since its initial recognition.

AEBCEABEEMBHREED
SFOW R BIE MR A ER B
BREERFER 2 HBE AT H
ABILBRER Rt HEBRE
EBERIELENENDBENLS
BYER_FT—-NF=ZA=+—
BV ISR R T RAR - R =T
—NFOA—-BANFBHRREF
R EERATEMBRE LR
FOMELENMHEERMBAR
MEEEZER_Z—/\FNA
—HNRERNRFHEER A
t —E-N\F2INERL TR
BREVE R TS R FOSRAIARE
HERREE G5 ERFIRMNA

.
E°

ATHETIREEBM B RELE
HIZEosR VIR FE A B E (TH)RE R
B FEZFERBRMIEL:

e ETREVBEEZEBRE
=

s HEMBHEMNBEENET
MBEERMBEBRAF
BEFf AERERE: &

s HEFFKFESERaRET
WETRERAFEFAE
Ht 2 HE W mba IR

HREHRE REENRER
EMARREZEERR AIXNE
ERRZEEZEERBRAED
SRATERRAE N R I AN -

Annual Report 372019 101



e — = =

—— China Investment Development Limited o HEEAREER AT
C—— s = 2 >
—_—_———————— —— & e ———

— _
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e BB RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

2. RMBEBUBREER (F)
(a) WK RETEBUBHREE
A-R-B-NFHNA-BERE

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first
effective on 1 April 2018 (continued)

% (&)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers ERANBHREENFISHE-FFEHN
WA

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”, BB BHRELEREISRRREESS

HKAS 18 “Revenue” and related interpretations. HKFRS
15 has established a five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at the amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services

to a customer.

There is no impact of transition to HKFRS 15 on the
opening balances of retained earnings as the Group did
not have any revenue in relation to goods and services in

previous year.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have any material
impact to the Group as to the timing and amounts of
revenue to be recognised as the Group did not have any

revenue in relation to goods and services.

The accounting treatments are the same before and after
adopting the HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

2. RMBEBUBREER (F)
(b) BBATEM KERZHET BB
BB HEHEEA
TR B BATE MR ERZ TR
BB RE £ T L RAEE B
BHREW EAEEYERPRK-
AEEAAREARSED (REER

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group's financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group. The Group's current intention is to apply

these changes on the date they become effective. EAH)-
HKFRS 16 Leases' ERMBRERASZ6E  HE
HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' Bt (BERBERERE FASHEENTREEH
ZBE) -RBERYN
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business? ERUBRELNENR  EBORE
(Revised) ZET (BET)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative BEMBREEAENR  ARECERNEY
Compensation’ 2B

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 (Revised)

Amendments to HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Definition of Material’

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
Combinations'

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements'

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes'

Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing
Costs'

BRI ERIZ 9% 285

BB BREENEI0%
REBGHEREBH
2T

EEGHENZIRR
BEQHERNER 2
B3] (&B3T)

BEGHERE8T .
{B3T

AN BRERER
TE-RFECT4F
BRNEENE

AN BREER
TE-RFECT4F
BRNEENE

AN BRERER
TE-RFECT4F
ARNEEE

AN BRERER
TE-RFECT4F
ARNEEE

HENCERE )

REEEABENEL
RERAIZALES
ANEE

ERIENRE

REERARAT RS
s

RO SRR
2163 2HAY

BRMBRERAER
] KRR

EREERR 12
CHRIE

AR VE A
B EERA

T RIE-NAF-A-BRZERRZ
FEMEAE-

. BT TF-A-HRRBEEZ
RHEX -

3 REBEIIRVER-_Z—tF—A—
B ez & Ftn 2z BifE A 3 - £ B B3R
BHE/BH - BERTRERAZS

E&T -

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for transactions that occur on or after 1 January 2020

e The amendments were originally intended to be effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The effective date has

now been deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments

continue to be permitted.
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e BB RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

2. RERBBEEEL (F)
(b) EEBITEMRERZHT BT

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee
to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a
lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on
the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments
of the lease liability into a principal portion and an
interest portion and presents them in the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and
the lease liability are initially measured on a present
value basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable
lease payments and also includes payments to be made
in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise an
option to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment
is significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,

and to account for those two types of leases differently.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

2. RwBERMBEEEL (A
(b) EEBITEMRERZHT BT

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$2,069,000 (2018: HK$4,077,000) as disclosed in
note 28. The directors of the Company do not expect
the adoption of HKFRS 16 would result in significant
impact on the Company’s financial performance
but it is expected that certain portion of these lease
commitments will be required to be recognised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and

lease liabilities.

Except for discussed above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
revised HKFRSs and Interpretations will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the

Group in the future.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and
Interpretations and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

ERMBEHREEN (&)
ERMBRELENF16K-HE(£)
N_E-NE=ZA=+—8 ~A&£EHE
BT A] U A TR B R IR #92,069,00078
7T (=Z— )\ : 4,077,000/ 7T) (Han
B E28FT 55 ) AN A B EE 5 78 HI R A4
ERGHHREELE1MFTEHAR
AN RBENEATE HBHZ
EHERECHETHESEERT BN
NEFERBEAREERBEAR-

B E XAt &SN A AR EETAHIER
PR REETBEMBRE
EARREGT S U ANEEH RO
EUMBRREBNEATE -

3. REEXE

(a)

BREBH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &=

—E-NF=ZRA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement

(c)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
financial assets at FVOCI| and financial assets at FVTPL,
which are measured at fair values as explained in the

accounting policies set out in note 4 below.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"). Each entity in the Group
maintains its books and record in its own functional

currency. The functional currency of the Company is HKS.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(“the Group"). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition
or up to the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of

the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EXEFHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

(a) XBEHRGEEEE(F)

(continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which

case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit

or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

(continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded
1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first applied
HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in accordance
with the transition requirements in the standard. Such
balances are not adjusted upon first application of the
standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of such
consideration are treated as adjustments to the cost of
these business combinations and are recognised as part

of goodwill.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly

in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised
in OCl in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in
the same manner as would be required if the relevant

assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EXBHBRME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation (a) ¥EREHRGEEERE(E)
(continued)
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount RUFE R - FEE R = (BN IR A AP B
of non-controlling interests that represent present NRABEEREER) CERAERAZSER
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount RMP RG22 EME BIEERE
of those interests at initial recognition plus such mELREHEESH B AlEeE
non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes HZEHEREREREMER 28
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to et E BN A IR R -

such non-controlling interests even if this results in those

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(b) Subsidiaries (b) BT

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company MWEB AR ANARAITHEESE &
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an BHR -FAUTE2H=E2XERFAIX
investee if all three of the following elements are present: NAHKREHREGITTIRE: (NHIRE
(1) power over the investee, (2) exposure, or rights, to HRAEN: QBKREHR 2 AT# DR
variable returns from the investee, and (3) the ability to EERRIEFEN: RQ)AIfF A ERE
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is NP EZENEOR-HEFTERER
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate BRAEMZEEHREERHEREZS
that there may be a change in any of these elements of BT AT I

control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, RADBMBRRERA RITB AR Z
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less BERKARBEEE(ME)VEK-
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are WEBAA ZEEBARRILE W ME
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend WK B EEARR -

received and receivable.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over
those policies. Associates are accounted for using the
equity method whereby they are initially recognised at
cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted
for the Group's share of the post-acquisition change in
the associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group's interest in the associate are not recognised

unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the

carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate and the
entire carrying amount of the investment is subject to
impairment test, by comparing the carrying amount with
its recoverable amount, which is higher of value in use

and fair value less costs to sell.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable during the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EXEFHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (d) ¥ -BERRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each

reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

WE BB MRBRRARBFITE R
RETRERERYIR-

WE BEMEREXABREEEENLE
BEZSHBANEREBAERA-
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Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of HEMEEE TH S BAPR sk U

the lease term or 4 years (MERZBEE)
Furniture and fixture 5 years R REE AF
Office equipment 5 years I NES g ] AF
Computer equipment 5 years BRI HF
Motor vehicle 5 years B hF
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &=
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(e)

(f)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset's

estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in

profit or loss on disposal.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised as an integrated part of the total rental

expenses over the terms of the lease.

Financial instruments
(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018)
(i) Financial assets
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for
an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the

transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(i

Financial assets (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or

convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of

principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(i

Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Debt
investments at FVOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest rate
method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or

loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as

effective hedging instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)
(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)
Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective
of the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified
at amortised cost or at FVOCI, as described
above, debt instruments may be designated
at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing

so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an

4. EREHERME (&)

Hh BMBIA(E)
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REANETEE) (&)

(i

HMEEE (&)
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accounting mismatch. EEEABL -
Equity instruments RATA

On initial recognition of an equity
investment that is not held for trading, the
Company could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's
fair value in OCI. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair
value. Dividend income are recognised in profit
or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified
to profit or loss. All other equity instruments
are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in
fair value, dividends and interest income are

recognised in profit or loss.

ROIRERLFFFEEER
BZBRAKRER AQAT
THHEMEEREAEE
WP 2 REQXFERE
HE) - ZRBTIRIREEIAE
o A FEFAEBEEK
sERRERATETE-
P B WA TR IB s TR BR IEAX
B A B B 5 BB K AN B BB
DU E o B Ath W 58 N B 1EF R
REMEEEERER W AE
MoBERD -FTEEMER
TANERBAFEFAR
@ AR AFE BERANE
WA RS ) 0 B P RERR

Annual Report 322019 115



China Investment Development Limited o 1 BIEEREERD

—
m"'-- — me——

e ———

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. ERSHBRMBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
() Financial instruments (continued)  MEEIR(£Z)
(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied (A BEIAE(B=Z—N\FEWNA—H

from 1 April 2018) (continued) REANETEE) (&)

The Group recognises loss allowances
for expected credit loss (“ECL") on other
receivables measured at amortised cost. The
ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs
that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the

Company is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the

assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for other receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to

the debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information
analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment

and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is

more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held):
or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days

past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest income
is calculated based on the gross carrying

amount.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (continued)

(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value
and financial liabilities at amortised cost are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly

attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
other payables and accrued charges is
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related

interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as

through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or

where appropriate, a shorter period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)
(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

4. EREHERME (&)

Hh BMBIA(E)
(A) BEIE(BE=-ZE—N\EMA—AH
REANETEE) (&)

(v)  Equity instruments ) BRATA
Equity instruments issued by the Company are RARBITRAIADR
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct BEWAGEHRIBEBNREZEET
issue costs. A AR ©

(vi) Derecognition (vi) AL HERR

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured
at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair
value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or

loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (continued)

(B)

Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018)
The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively,

but has elected not to restate comparative

information. According, the comparative financial

information provided continues to be accounted for

in accordance with the group’s previous accounting

policy.

(i

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for
which the asset was acquired. Financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and all other financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. A regular way purchase or
sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset
under a contract whose terms require delivery
of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the

marketplace concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

These assets include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments or

financial guarantee contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(B) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (continued))

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss if the following criteria are met: (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different basis;
(i) the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which is managed and its performance
evaluated on a fair value basis according to a
documented management strategy; or (iii) the
financial asset contains an embedded derivative

that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they arise.

4. EREHERME (&)

MBI (&)

(B)

MBETA(R-E-N\F=A
=+ -BZAERANETEE)
(%)

() HEEE(E)
BAFEFACRRREZ
MBEE (&)
M—meades —ERAL
BRAXTTET R RIBMHES
BRI EERIEE /IR A FE
FACEREREMBEE -
BRIFMAATET AN ES
REHRESREBHRANT
AT ABYIRERELEL -

W BT 75 B ERF A LT G Bl
ARV HERBEEREA
FEFFAEBRER: ()5
BEHBR AR IZETR
BEEFEEESEREWE
NBEMERNT —RAR
FE (NZEERBREREE
BRBERAFEEEEER
FHREN—HMBEEDN
—® oSN BEEERE
BABIHNENBMARNITET
Ho

KBRS BATEA
ERBEEL UBEERR
FEHE ATEEBRAE
4 HIRI R B O RERR -

Annual Report % ¥ 2019 121



e — = -

—— China Investment Development Limited o HEEAREER AT
C—— s = 2 >
—_—_———————— —— & e ———

— _

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. ERSHBRMBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
() Financial instruments (continued)  MEEIR(£Z)
(B) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied (B) MBIA(R=ZF—NF=A
until 31 March 2018) (continued)) =t+—-BZAEANETER)
(&)
(i) Financial assets (continued) () HBEEE (&)

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They
incorporate other types of contractual monetary
asset. Subsequent to initial recognition, they
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment

losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are
not included in other categories of financial
assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
assets are carried at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and

foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary
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instruments, which are recognised in profit or

loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(B)

Financial instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 March 2018) (continued)

(i1)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each
reporting period, whether there is any objective
evidence that financial asset is impaired.
Financial asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset and that event
has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may

include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

e  granting concession to a debtor because

of debtor’s financial difficulty;

e a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in equity

investment below its cost; and

* it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(B) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

For Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
financial asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When any part of financial
asset is determined as uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for the

relevant financial asset.

For Available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes
objective evidence of impairment, the amount
of the loss is removed from equity and

recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale
debt investments are subsequently reversed in
profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of
the investment can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the recognition of the

impairment loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)
(B)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 March 2018) (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
For Available-for-sale financial assets
(continued)

For available-for-sale equity investment,
any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognised in other

comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that
is carried at cost, the amount of impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss is not

reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at
amortisation costs are initially measured at fair

value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
other payables and accrued charge, other
borrowing and amount due to directors and
subsidiaries are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is

recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as

through the amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. ERSHBRMBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
() Financial instruments (continued)  MEEIR(£Z)
(B) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied (B) MBIA(R=ZF—NF=A
until 31 March 2018) (continued)) =t+—-BZAEANETER)
(&)
(iv) Convertible bonds (iv) AJFZ)RE S

Convertible bonds issued by the Company
that contain both the liability and conversion
option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company's own equity instruments is an equity

instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using
the prevailing market interest rate of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between
the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the
bonds into equity, is included in convertible

bonds equity reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component
of convertible bonds is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
The conversion option classified as equity
will remain in the convertible bonds equity
reserve until the conversion option is
exercised, in which case, the balance stated
in the convertible bonds equity reserve will
be transferred to share premium. Where
the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date, the balance stated in
the convertible bonds equity reserve will be
released to accumulated losses. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion

or expiration of the conversion option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)
(B)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 March 2018) (continued)

(iv)  Convertible bonds (continued)

v)

(vi)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible bonds are allocated to the
liability and conversion option components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
conversion option component are recognised
directly in equity. Transaction costs relating
to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component and
are amortised over the lives of the convertible

bonds using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or

where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (continued)

(B)

Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (continued)

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured
at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair
value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or

loss for the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EREHERME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
(g) Revenue recognition (9) Wz=mER
Interest income is accrued on a timely basis on the FEWMATDRBRAEERASEHRE
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate. HELAERFE RS -
(h) Income taxes (h)y FTEHR
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and FRFTEH ISR BT IE REERIE -

deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary BNEIR I D E R RFAEH M S B2
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or AR AAI B 2 HBELAE 2B
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated BEBMESNKEE KARRE
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively HAREEMAER LS B/Ma =G
enacted at the end of reporting period. Ho

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary BREREDRARVBREAN A
differences between the carrying amounts of assets EXEERAEEANRBEE M 2
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the EeEmE B EREZHEER R
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except BRIAGZEGTRERBNEZE
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that MREERBEN SRABERTEY
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred FEREREERERE RIERIAE
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary EE R B 7] 88 B A FE AR TR B 4K 8 AT 4R
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the MERME R EZHRER - ELEHRIET
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be REARTEHEEXAERAESR
available against which deductible temporary differences BTN MERARE BMHAE
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates BREEmRmeBHEAE-

appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

end of reporting period.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(i)

Income taxes (continued)

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred
tax amount is when an investment property is carried at
fair value under HKAS 40 “

the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts

Investment Property”. Unless

on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all the
economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in OCI in which case the

taxes are also recognised in OCI.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services that are vested at
the date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss with a

corresponding increase in the share option reserve within
equity.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. EREHERME (&)

(i) Share-based payments (continued) (i) UABRBZARES (&)
When the share options are exercised, the amount FERRREETTOE R - A N R R
previously recognised in share options reserve will be WMRZHBEABERERMEE - EER
transferred to share premium. When the share options are NGB R R W rEm B 1D
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised RETE AATRBREREPER
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in ZHEEEREE R AR
share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
profit or loss.

(i) Impairment of other assets () HauEERE

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews

the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine

REBREMR AKREFHUTEELZ
RHENEEROFERTEERS

whether there is any indication that those assets have BEBERIBTHAZBREBETH
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss BFHEXAGEE R D 2R :

previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

e Property, plant and equipment; and s WX BELRZRE K

. Investment in subsidiaries and associate

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

()

(m)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which will
probably result in an outflow of economic benefits that

can be reasonably estimated.

Related parties
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)

has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)

is a member of key management personnel of

the Group or the Company's parent.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EXEFHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

(m) Related parties (continued)

(m) BEAL (&)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) 1ﬁfk/\—|—§‘H}T—HH<1¢ Al E g EAR
following conditions apply: SEA@AE

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBEAEEER—SE

same group (which means that each parent, ZREBRAE (BEFRFE) K

subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

=NV SEEEN Y= PNCIE 3l

others). MAEME) -

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the i) " REEAES—BEHBHE
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of NAlEERE (B —RAK
a member of a group of which the other entity BERARMNERAMENEEKX
is a member). BRRINEE QARG E D

%)

(iiif Both entities are joint ventures of the same (il MREEBHAER—F=ZF2
third party. BERHE-

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy " REBARFE=-HEBZA
and the other entity is an associate of the third EhE Mr—BERRZE=
entity. HERBZEE AR

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan v BEBRAEENEAEES
for the benefit of the employees of the Group MEzERMEEBRMKR L
or an entity related to the Group. Z BRI BN ET &

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by vi) EBEX(a)FT#RI A T sk
a person identified in (a). R H

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) R@)(OFTHAALTHEREZEEE
influence over the entity or is a member of key AXEBENNBZEBNZE
management personnel of the entity (or of a BeHRRIFEEEENKE -
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which (vii) FZERE _JZEFFFJ%E.ZEH
it is a part, provides key management personnel KERA] MAKEIAEH
services to the Group or to the Group's parent. Z’A REFTZETEER

75 o
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4.

Z-NF=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Related parties (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The key assumptions concerning the future and other sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account
their estimated residual values, using the straight line method.
The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group's property, plant and
equipment. The residual values reflect the directors’ estimated
amount that the Group would currently obtain from disposal
of the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal,
if the assets were already of the age and in the condition

expected at the end of its useful life.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 5. BEETHERATZFIFEERZE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY FERR (&)

(continued)

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIFREBE

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss arising AEEREFPEE NI NEHFENERL
from the inability of its customers to make the required EEBRELEE - RERBREEEED
payments. The impairment allowances are based on REBARFEHEEEEENBRAR A&
assumptions about risk of default and expected credit loss EREBEEREFORR TPEEE BE
rates. The Group makes its estimates based on the ageing g S RIRFF TR ER G (BERTRE
of its loan balances, customers’ creditworthiness, historical HEFMATIE (R c BB B AR E(L
write-off experience and existing market condition including DHERERBEBEESNESR ~&EEFH
forward-looking estimates as at the reporting date. If the EUGTREBHESE  ERREEHIITE -

financial condition of its customers was to deteriorate so that
the actual impairment loss might be higher than expected,
the Group would be required to revise the basis of making the

allowance and its future results would be affected.

Impairment of non-financial assets FHMBEERE

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by AEBREWRERBHTETRERNEERE
evaluating conditions specific to the Group that may lead to ZAEEBEAMMR  ATEIRE- MR E
impairment of assets. Where an impairment trigger exists, the BOREZHE ASEFTEEZAIRE -
recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use FHE AT O & B AT E A B E A REARK
calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts EMHFER Z AT 2t KRR ABMAEE
incorporate a number of key estimates and assumptions MBRAEITETRRZEMEERER
about future events, which are subject to uncertainty and BERER - REHZE T BT R AR -
might materially differ from the actual results. In making EREZRFEENRE BB AITAMER
these key estimates and judgements, the directors take & EHRERTMISEEBEIAEEERET
into consideration assumptions that are mainly based on ZRHIELE -

market condition existing at the reporting date and regularly
compared to actual market data and actual transactions

entered into by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is
engaged in business activities from which the Group may
earn revenue and incur expenses, and is identified on the
basis of the internal management reporting information that
is provided to and regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief
operating decision maker in order to allocate resources and
assess performance of the segment. For the years ended
31 March 2019 and 2018, the information reported to the
executive directors, who are the chief operating decision
makers for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of performance, do not contain profit or loss information of
each business line or geographical area and the executive
directors reviewed the financial result of the Group as a whole
reported under HKFRSs. Therefore, the executive directors
have determined that the Group has only one single business
component/reportable segment as the Group is only engaged
in investment holding. The executive directors allocate
resources and assess performance on an aggregated basis.

Accordingly, no operating segment is presented.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's
revenue and non-current assets including property, plant
and equipment and interest in an associate (i.e. “specified
non-current assets”) by geographical locations, determined
based on physical location of the assets or location of

operations in case of interest in an associate, is as follows:

PEER

KES R BRSNS ] BREURA REEF
X2 EBFTB AR D IRBEAREEE
TRERRERREREHEHNUNESRS
BERRMERBE 2 ABER S HERFZR -
HE-_E-NER-_ZT-NE=A=1+—H
LEFE A TES (ARBERSEREKR
FEMEATEEERTE)REZEHT
BRESEBRI SR 2 T EBER
MATESCDEHNAEEREE BV HRE
HASRMoERBYBEE - AL ATES
EETASEES —EE—EBEXTS
ARESE REAAAEEELERELRR-
WITESRATEESRERETHRSE -
Eit EEHEE 58

TREHREEERUEXEBLEMEL
(BN — KB & QA 2 et ) FTEE 2
NEEDZARBRANIERDEE (B
ME - BFE REREARR — KB E QR 2
@ (BB EFRRBDEE]) ) 2T :

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RENREF 2 W E REFRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZB-nE —T-N\F ZB-NE —TN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET FHET TET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (ZEME) 600 600 277 500
Other regions of the People’s REARARE (THE])
Republic of China (the "PRC") Hi i@ - - 5714 6,109
600 600 5,991 6,609
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

7. WEREMBA

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Revenue: W25
Interest income from financial assets BEATEFAEEBSREEBEZUBEE
at fair value through profit or loss 2R BWA 600 600
Other income: E A
Bank interest income IRITF B U A 2 1
Dividend income & 2 HA 538 664
Exchange gain B 5w 2 6
Others EAfth - 65
542 736
Total revenue and other income e g N HAb U A 4R RE 1,142 1,336

The Group's revenue represents interest income from

convertible bonds. No other source of income contributed to
the Group's revenue for both 2019 and 2018.

ALz W tg TR ES ZF BWA R
“E-NEFRIZ-NF - HAE|EMUYA
HOIR 3 7N 65 18 7 R W o
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ina Investment Development Limited e B EREARAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

8. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 22 January 2019, the Group disposed of its subsidiary,
Green Rhythm Limited. The net assets of Green Rhythm

Limited at the date of disposal were as follows:

8. HE—XHMEAXF
ROE-NAF—A-+-B FEEHEH
MEARNZHZHRERDA - EBH2HER
RARHE AN EEFENT -

22 January
2019
—E-hF
—RAZ=+Z=H
HK$'000
FATT
Bank and cash balances RITRRE T 25
Amount due to ultimate holding company  FE{J S 442 A BIFIA @)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 17
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RHBAFEE:

Cash consideration RENRE =
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (17)
(17)

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELNBRESRAFE:
Cash consideration RENRE =
Cash and bank balances disposed of EHERS RIBITETT (25)
(25)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year ended 31 March 2018.
According to the Inland Revenue (Amendment) Bill 2017 which
was substantively enacted after passing its Third Reading
in the Legislative Council on 28 March 2018, the two-tiered
profits tax regime is first effective for the year of assessment
2018/19. Profits tax rate for the first HK$2 million of assessable
profits of corporations is lowered to 8.25% with the excess
assessable profits continue to be taxed at 16.5%. Overseas
tax is calculated at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions. No provision for income tax expense is required
since the Group has no assessable profits either arising from

Hong Kong or other jurisdictions during the year (2018: Nil).

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before income tax expense per consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

RSB X
EBNERIRBAE—_E—N\EF=A=+—
B 1EF = 0 E T B SRR 73R 16.5%8 T R
HE-RER-_T—NF=ZA=-+N\BEX
AEBBTERELLERN T L&/
BB EPIER  MAHFESHAIER=
T-N\F/ —NFOFBRFEERER -
2 e R F) 82,000,000 7T K F) S B B =R
15 FHK £8.25%  FB H H) B SR Bl i I R 4 48
1216.5%% R G M I BN BIZ A R A
FREBRBARERAE -HRNAEEREFE
WHR B BB Al AERE 2 ERBUEF)
MBBEELSHASXREEB (Z2—N\F:
&) o

AREFFEHAXAFABREREME2HEK
BmERANRPISRAAERZ BRI T :

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss before income tax expense B PS5 B L Bl Es 18 (87,911) (19,365)
Tax calculated at the applicable REREEREFE 2BIE
statutory tax rates (14,340) (3,195)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A MBRZ 2 B
for tax purpose 2,194 1,735
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for BERB S 2 B E
tax purpose (89) (110)
Tax effect on temporary differences AEREREZE MG E
not recognised 32 33
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERHEBE 2GR 12,203 1,537

PSR

Income tax expense
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e BB RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

9.

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

No deferred tax asset or liability has been recorded on
temporary differences of approximately HK$3,952,000 (2018:
approximately HK$3,915,000) has been made in the financial
statements as the tax effect of the temporary difference is

immaterial to the Group.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$180,691,000 (2018: approximately
HK$105,732,000) available for offset against future profits that
may be carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to

unpredictability of future profit streams.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Loss before income tax expense is stated after charging the

10.

Frigsimx (&)
HRENEE BT EHAEEmME L
TER RIERTERRARGRHEZEL
3,952,000/ 7T ( = — J\ 4 : 3,915,000/
T SEGRERIEEENAE

REEHR AEEBERDANES
E 49180,691,0008 L (ZZE—N\F: 4
105,732,000% 7T ) - AR AR A - B ]
BIREEE - AR A TEFT R BB F R E
WA SR B AR IR S 1B RERIRLET IR B E -

BR AT 1S BB X RIS 18
B AT S BB S A S IRAT N T3S TR IR -

following:
2019 2018
—E-hAE —FTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FATT
Staff costs 8T
Salaries e 2,362 3,602
Provident fund contributions BB S K 79 84
Total staff costs excluding directors’ BEIXAEBE(TREEEME)
remunerations 2,441 3,686
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE B 525 500
Depreciation iR 228 246
Directors’ remuneration (note 14) ZEE=HE (K5E14) 2,410 3,783
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEMBEE  RERE
financial assets - 1,550
Impairment loss on other receivables HEMEWFIERE RS REEE
and deposit paid 60,261 160
Investment manager's fee REREER 720 720
Rent and rates e RkEM 2,263 2,396
Written off of property, plant and Y - B MR e
equipment - 26
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

11. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

12.
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO

Loss attributable to shareholders includes an amount of
approximately HK$87,083,000 (2018: HK$17,508,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share

attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is

based on the following data:

China Investment DevelopmentVLimited o FEREAHEEREA

11. RE
EETEEREE-_E-NF=A=1+—H
IEFERMERRE (ZE—\F ) -

12. XA ARHEBANELMEFEEIER
BREGEEEREERARRTBHRENA
B2 I8 & 8 #987,083,00058 T ( — & — )\ F:
17,508,0007% 7T ) 2 FXIA »

13. BREE

AR E RIS E ARG SRR R
R T A T BB

2019 2018
“E-AE  ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Loss g =]
Loss for the year attributable to owners  ARETESRER R EFHEE 2
of the Company for the purposes of ARNBHERANELHAFEEEE
basic and diluted loss per share (87,911) (19,365)
Number of shares vl 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ ARG ESRERKEEEIR 2
shares for the purposes of basic and B NAE T8
diluted loss per share 925,100,798 882,185,729
Notes: B3 -
(@)  No diluted loss per share has been presented as the potential ordinary (@) HBRERITEZBREMSRZBELBRNZ

share in respect of outstanding share options is anti-dilutive for both

years.

(b)  The weighted average number of ordinary shares of approximately
925,100,798 (2018: Adjusted as 882,185,729) in issue during the year, as

adjusted to reflect the effect of the Share Consolidation. Comparative

figures have also been adjusted on the assumption that the Share

Consolidation had been effective in the prior period.

MBS ERAEREE I EL27 SRESEEE -

(b) FRBEITEBRIE T B L A925,100,7980%
(ZZ—\F &A% 5882,185,7290% ) &E & - A
REBHEFOFE L RBFTNERBERGE
HERE—HMERmETAR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant

to Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,

(Cap. 622) and the Companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) are as

14. BEERTEREHFALTZHE

() ESME
RIEE B R aERD] (£622%F ) F3831%
NRAF (BRBEEMNAER) RO (H
b22GE) TURB s AFEESHS W
T

follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEFE ZET-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FA&T
Fees e
Executive directors HITES 496 720
Non-executive directors EHITES 622 252
Independent non-executive directors BYFNITES 703 720
1,821 1,692
Basic salaries and other benefits ERFH & R E AR F] 581 2,073
Contributions to retirement benefit RUKEF B
scheme 8 18
2,410 3,783

No directors had waived any emoluments and no

emoluments were paid to the directors as inducement to

join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during the year (2018: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE
14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 4. EEREERBEHFALTZHE (&
INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(a) EEME (&)
ENSENT=2(ZF-N\F:L£H)

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen

(2018: seven) directors are as follows: EEZHEWT
2019 —E—HE
Contribution
Salaries and to retirement
Fees other benefit scheme Total
&R Bk
e HinEF BE- 3 @

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TEx TRz

Executive directors HITES

Chan Cheong Yee REZE 360 - 360

Zhang Xuming (note (i) SRAEH (FHEEG) 136 - 136

Non-executive directors FHTEE

Chen Yin B 240 - 240

Zhang Kun (note (ii)) sk i (PEEG)) 195 581 784

Yang Xiao Qiu (note (iii) B (P G)) 187 = 187

Independent non-executive BIYFHTES

directors

Fong Wo, Felix (note (iv)) AR (i EEGY) 75 - - 75

Leung Chi Kong (note (v)) REM (HEEV) 77 = = 77

Leung Wing Kin (note (v)) R (HFEV) 77 s s 77

Ho Kim Fung (note (vi)) {1 %152 (P (vi)) 117 - - 117

Leung Mei Hing Carri (note (vii)) R (BTEE(vii)) 45 = = 45

Lai Yuen Pui (note (vii)) RER (i) 45 = = 45

Li Li (note (viii)) 2 (e (viii)) 161 - = 161

Wan Tat Wai David (note (ix)) REE (FEEX) 106 = = 106
1,821 581 8 2,410

Notes: BfeE

(i) Resigned on 17 August 2018. (i) RZZE—NFENATLEBEE-

(ii) Resigned on 25 January 2019. (ii) RZE-—NhFE—AZ+HBFE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14 BEERTEREFALIZME (&)
INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEM2 (&)
Notes: (continued) MeE: (88)
(i) Appointed on 17 August 2018. iy RZE-NFENATHAEEE-
(iv)  Resigned on 23 July 2018. vy RZZE-—N\F+LAZ+=HEE-
(v)  Resigned on 27 July 2018. v RZE-NFLA=-+tBEfTE-
(vi)  Appointed on 30 July 2018 and resigned on 25 January 2019. vy RZZE-NFELtA=THEZARR=Z

—hE—-RAZ+HHEHE-

(vii)  Appointed on 25 January 2019. (vii) T-NF-A-TLBEZEE-

S
(vii)  Appointed on 30 July 2018. (vii) RZZE—N\FtA=+HEZE-

(ix)  Appointed on 30 July 2018 and resigned on 8 January 2019. ix RZZTE-—N\FLtA=THEZAERR=ZT
—NE—-RAN\BEIE-

2018 —TE-N\EF

Contribution
Salaries and  to retirement
Fees other benefit scheme Total
Hek BHRE
e Hit a7 ATEIfR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THTL TEx FHT

Executive directors BITEE
Chan Cheong Yee [C=E 360 - - 360
Zhang Xuming (note (i) SRIBEA (MEEER)) 360 1,633 18 2,011
Non-executive directors FHITES
Chen Yin BRI 240 440 - 680
Zhang Kun (note (if) o3 (B i) 12 = = 12
Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Fong Wo, Felix (note (iv)) FE (R EE)) 240 - - 240
Leung Chi Kong (note (v)) R2ER (W) 240 = = 240
Leung Wing Kin (note (v)) R (HIFEWV) 240 = = 240

1,692 2,073 18 3,783
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. BEERTEREF AL ZMS (&)
INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEBE (£)
The number of directors whose remuneration fell within MEN TN THE 2EEASRNT :

the following band is as follows:

2019 2018
—®-hE —T)\F

HKS$nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 7% 1,000,000/ 7T 13 6
HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,000,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T - 1
(b) Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments (b) EEBREHFALTZHME
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals (2018: RAE(ZE—NF AB)EmFATL
five) (which include 2 directors (2018: 3)) were as follows: (A BEEMmA(ZE—N\F :=R)E
F)ZHMEmT:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Basic salaries and other benefits HEAH & M EMEF 2,294 4,233
Contributions to retirement benefit ROKE GBI
scheme 51 53
2,345 4,286
The number of the five highest paid individuals whose MeNFUATHE 2 AEGEEHT AT
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: HEMT:
2019 2018

—B-NE T4

HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 T4 70 21,000,000 7T 5 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,000,001 7T & 3,000,000/ 7T - 1
There was no arrangement under which any of the five RAFE HERAE (ZE—N\F:
(2018: five) highest paid employees had waived or agreed TA)EaHEEEREMALTHREL
to waive any remuneration during the year. REZEMEEA S ET L E R LB
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group RAREE AEEWEAOIANESHRK
to any of the directors or the highest paid employees as =EHEEXMEMMNE  (ERSEVE M
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as ARE B RINARE B2 528 - 3
compensation for loss of office. TERBEREE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ BERRZE
Leasehold Furniture, Motor Computer
improvements equipment vehicle equipment Total
HENELE ESIVET RE EKRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL THL FHT AL FHET
1 April 2017 R-B-+£mA-H
Cost KA 4,261 112 1,09 84 5,551
Accumulated depreciation BitiE (4,26) (52) (447) (36) (4,796)
Net carrying amount REHE - 60 647 48 755
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-Z-N\¥=ZA=1+-H
tEE
Opening net carrying amount BUREFE - 60 647 48 755
Additions hE - - - 17 17
Disposal HE = (26) = = (26)
Depreciation nE - (10) (220) (16) (246)
Closing net carrying amount BARRETE - 24 427 49 500
At 1 April 2018 RZB-\FWE—H
Cost A 4,261 76 1,094 101 5,532
Accumulated depreciation ZiIE (4.261) (52) (667) (52) (5,032)
Net carrying amount EmEE = 24 427 49 500
Year ended 31 March 2019 BZ-Z-n¥=A=1+-H
LEE
Opening net carrying amount BURERE = 24 427 49 500
Additions hE - - - 5 5
Depreciation nE = ®) (203) a7 (228)
Closing net carrying amount BARREFE - 16 224 37 277
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Place of

incorporation/

China Investment DevelopmentVLimited o FEREAHEEREA

16. R BAR 2 RE

Issues and
fully paid

Attributable equity
interests held by

ﬁ - ‘:\»—\_

Name operation share capital the Company Principal activities
2% B EELY BRTRARKRAE FRAMEEERE  IEEHR
Direct Indirect
B &
China Equity Assets Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding
PEREAEEEERAT BE 18T RERR
Master Smooth Investment Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
BRRERRBRAA BE 18T RERR
Eternal Fame Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
KABEBRAT BE 10,000 7T RERR
Able Surplus Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BERRZBRAT BE 10,000 7T RERR
Smart Access Capital Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$100 100% - Investment holding
Smart Access Capital Limited RBgRHEE/TA 100% 7T REER
Urban Thrive Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100% - Investment holding
Urban Thrive Limited KEBRHE/BE 50,000 7 REER
Moonglory International Properties Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100% - Investment holding
Moonglory International Properties Limited REBRHE/BA 50,000 7T REZR
Giant Treasure Global Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100% - Dormant
Giant Treasure Global Limited REBRHE/BE (E EEXHG
Ray Wealth Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant
EFERAR BE 18T EEXH
Global Oasis Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Dormant
SEERERAT BE 18T EEXH
BERELH (FI)ER AR note i) The Republic of China RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
(“PRC")
EERAEH (RIDERAR (M) PEARLME A #10,000,0007C EEXHY
([El)
Green Rhythm Limited (note i) Hong Kong N/A - - Dormant
BYRIRBERAR (M) BE TEm EEXHY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

16.

17.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RB AR 2 KRE (&)
Notes: B2
0] During the year, a subsidiary, B /&R E & A ORI BR A F], was ) RFEARN —FEBEAEERAEER ORI AR
incorporated on 13 June 2018. No capital has been paid up to reporting AEIMMBRARR_E—\FAAA+=A5F
date. Mk - B E S BB WA A A -
(i)  During the year, a subsidiary, Green Rhythm Limited (481 2K BR A E]) , (i)  FREOFIEESETML  MER —ERABZE IR
has been disposed of as mentioned in Note 8. BRARIMMB AW EE -
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding ZEME A TR FRSFE AR R
at the end of the year or at any time during the year. A RERERE
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. R—XBE QT 2R
2019 2018
—ZE-hnF —\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Share of net assets of an associate DE—RKEE N CEEFE 5,714 6,109
(a) Details of the Group's associate at 31 March 2019 are as (@ AEEzH2Z2RAIR_ZT—NF=H
follows: =+—RHZFBET:
Percentage
Place of Issued and fully of equity
incorporation/ paid registered held by Proportion of

Name of associate operation capital the Group voting power  Principal activity
B®TR ARERE
BENAER ERAL EELH BREMES REEIM FRLA TEEHR
Bonicast Construction Material PRC Registered 49% 20%  Trading of construction
(Beijing) Co., Ltd ("Bonicast") RMB 10,000,000 (note) materials
EFEXREMY (LR BRA e EMARE 49% 0% BIES
(I&&E%) 10,000,0007C (FitE)
Note: The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Bonicast Mizt: AEEREAESRFERXTFEATE
because it has the power to appoint one out of five directors of that HREAKEE ﬁ*& *EH?%;A A4
company under the articles of association of that company. BERBAZEEZA DZ—HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b)

17. A—RBE QT 2% (&)

Summarised financial information in respect of Bonicast, b) TEBXFEHEAFSHEEELUE
which is a material associate to the Group is set out BEREHINNT
below:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
As at 31 March R=B=+-—H
Current assets mENEE 11,680 12,489
Non-current assets FEMENEE - -
Current liabilities mEAE (18) (19)
Net assets BEFE 11,662 12,470
Reconciliation to the Group's interest HIKE B RZ & N F]Z
in the associate: B #ER -
Proportion of the Group's ownership RNEE 2 HARELG 49% 49%
Carrying amount as at beginning of the year FUREE 6,109 5,512
Share of result of the associate DIEEE R E 2 HEE - m
Exchange difference PE X ERE (395) 598
Group's share of net assets of the assets of AEBREMBE AR Z
the associate BEFE 5,714 6,109
Carrying amount of the associate B A RlRREE 5,714 6,109
Included in the above amounts are: GTAULZEE:
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEFEY - -

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade
and other payables)

nBHBEE(TREES
FEAFRIA S B A eSS
KIE) - -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 17. R—RBE AR 2% (&)
(o) Summarised financial information in respect of Bonicast, b) TAEBEXEHE RN CTERELHE
EREHNOT : ()

which is a material associate to the Group is set out

below: (continued)

2019 2018
—B-hE —ZT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Year ended 31 March BE=A=+—HLEE
Revenue & = -
Loss from operation KEEE o )
Total comprehensive income PHEW AT o @
Group's share of result of an associate REBESE—KBE QA
ZERE - M
Group's share of total comprehensive REBSE—KBE QA
income of an associate Z B E W R - @
Included in the above amounts are: FTAU EZ BB -
Depreciation and amortisation e R 5
Interest income FEWA
Income tax expense FTisBiA X
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 18. BAFEFTAEHMZHKWRERE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (2018: ZHBEE(ZE-N\F THEH
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS) BEE)
2019 2018
—E-hF —ET-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Unlisted equity securities in PRC, at cost REIIE EMRANEE 5 - AR 92,185 92,185
Fair value adjustment NEHE (60,398) 6,629
31,787 98,814
Particulars of investments in unlisted equity securities held by BEFMBAUFNEFEBEZAEER-F
the Group as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 disclosed pursuant to —NFRZE-NF=ZA=+—AMFIL
Chapter 21 of Listing Rules are as follows: TRABHFREFBHOT
Percentage
of effective Accumulated
Name of investee companies Place of incorporation interest held At cost fair value adjustment Carrying value
BB
BERENAER EMA LY BEADM BHA FHATERE R

3132019 332018 31732019 3132008 31/3/2019  31/3/2018
“E-pE ZE-\F ZE-RE ZE-0\f  ZE-hE %
ZA=+-A =zA=t+-8 =BA=t+-B =A=t+-H =ZB=+-B =ZA=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEn i T i i T

Tianjin Bao Xin Ying Precious PRC 12.00% 6,590 6590 (2,385) (1,026) 4,205 5,564
Metals Management Limited
("Bao Xin") (note (ii))

REEERECBAZARLA HhE

(TE&) ()

GuangZhou Shi Da Jian Credit PRC 11.59% 9,800 9,800 (3,907) (2992) 5,893 6,808
Guarantee Limited
(BT ERERERERLR)
("Da Jian") (note (i)
BMNmERERERERAA ([EH]) ME
(M)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 18. BAFEFAEHMZEHRFZERE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (2018: ZUBEE(ZF-N\F THEH
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS) wEE) (&)
(continued)
Percentage
of effective Accumulated
Name of investee companies Place of incorporation interest held At cost fair value adjustment Carrying value
FsER
BIRENRER ERALBE BEAD BEA S ATERE KaE

31/3/2019 3132018 31/3/2019 3132018 31/3/2019  31/3/2018
“E-AE O ZE-\§ ZB-AE ZE-\F ZB-AE 3%
ZA=+-A =ZA=+-B =RA=t+-B =RA=+-H =ZR=t+-H =A=t+-H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T T T T AL

China Petroleum Bio-Energy Hong Kong 5.69% 24,400 24,400 (21,884) 26,101 2,516 50,501
Company Limited (“Bio-Energy”) (note (v))

REREENERARDT ([EWER]) B3
GE)

Yenbo Gain Limited ("Yenbo Gain") BVI 18.18% 13,092 13092 (10,622) 868 2,470 13,960
(note (vi))

BEFBRLA([REH]) (M) ABERES

Perfect Worth Investment Limited BVI 5.00% 18,303 18,303 (17,825) (16,154) 478 2149
("Perfect Worth") (note (vii))

Perfect Worth Investment Limited ABETES

(IPerfect Worth 1) (HizH(vii))

Golden Resources Asia Limited BVI 14.00% 10,000 10,000 (1,840) (172) 8,160 9,828
("Golden Resources") (note (viil))
Golden Resources Asia Limited BRARES

([ Golden Resources | ) (Fif3E vii))

Huge Leader Investment Development BVI 18.00% 10,000 10,000 (1,935) 4 8,065 10,004
Limited (“Huge Leader") (note (ix)

Huge Leader Investment Development Limited ABERES
(Huge Leader |) (FiiZ¥(x)

92,185 92,185 (60,398) 6629 31,787 98,814
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 18. B AT Et AEHM 2 E KR EE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (2018: ZUMBREE(ZE—N\F . AHEYN
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS) BEE) (&)

(continued)
Notes: Mﬁ_{

(i) The investments in Da Jian and Perfect Worth are measured at fair value (i) RIEZEHE N Perfect WorthZ 3% 8 TH LA A F{EET

and classified as Level 3 fair value measurement. The fair values of unlisted
equity securities are determined by reference to the valuation carried out
by an external independent valuer by using Guideline Publicly Traded
Company method with reference to similar listed companies and adjusted
to reflect the specific circumstance of the investments. The significant

unobservable inputs are as follows:

Da Jian and Perfect Worth are valued by a price-to-book ratio multiple
and estimated price-to-sales ratio of comparable listed companies
respectively. A discount was applied to reflect the lack of marketability of

the unlisted investments.

2 UHBRRBRATES I ETRAE
H 2N TETE2ZEINEB L HERMER -
MARESAER 2 MEEE  ZbETIE
DERU LT AR RMZEREZHTE
AR ST 1T 98B o B KN A ER B A B A0
T

i N Perfect Worthn BIIZ AT & L8R ETHA
Al MEREGEREHMHEETHE-C
MR ZEIELMIRE RS ™5 MBI man
LABGIR »

Da Jian Perfect Worth
EE Perfect Worth

Lack of marketability discount rate

If the lack of marketability discount rate was 5% higher/lower while
all other variables were held constant, the carrying amount of the
investments in Da Jian and Perfect Worth would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$98,000 (2018: HK$114,000) and HK$10,000 (2018:
HK$46,000) respectively.

The investment in Bio-Energy, Yenbo Gain, Golden Resources and
Huge Leader are measured at fair value and classified as Level 3 fair
value measurement. The fair value of Bio-Energy, Yenbo Gain, Golden
Resources and Huge Leader are determined by reference to the valuation
carried out by an external independent valuer by using Discounted Cash

Flow method. The significant unobservable inputs are as follows:

BRZ WIS mE) MR R

25% 30%

MR TS RB MR IR E EA RN ER5% i
A H b I8 15 18 B R E 8 K Perfect
Worthz I & BREE 5 Bl 2/ 18 i1 4
98,0007 7t ( =& — J\4F : 114,000/ 7T) &
10,0007 7T ( == — /\4F : 46,0008 7T) °

REYEER - BEH - Golden Resources&
Huge Leaderz R EUNURFEFE L H
BRI ATHEFAE - EMER BEF-
Golden ResourcesXHuge LeaderZ A&
DSBS EINLF I EMERERRERE
EVER 2 (G EREE - BRI A B 8 A BUE

M

Bio- Yenbo Golden Huge

Energy Gain Resources Leader

Golden Huge

E Y REIR BER Resources Leader

Lack of marketability discount rate BRZ W5 e MR & 30% 30% 25% 25%
Growth rate BERE 11%-177% 5% 2%-7% 2%-7%
Gross profit margin EF=x (27%)-48% 58% 15% 16%
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE—

P NE=A=T—AILEE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (2018:
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS)

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iii)

If the lack of marketability and control discount rates were 5% higher/
lower while all other variables were held constant, the carrying amount
of the investments in Bio-Energy, Yenbo Gain, Golden Resources and
Huge Leader would decrease/increase by approximately HK$38,000
(2018: HK$1,082,000), HK$40,000 (2018: HK$245,000), HK$119,000 (2018:
HK$143,000) and HK$118,000 (2018: HK$152,000) respectively.

Bao Xin is a PRC established company and principally engaged in the
trading of precious metals and gold products and investment advisory in
Tianjin, the PRC.

The Group's interest of Bao Xin is held through a nominated shareholder.
The Company understands that there would be regulatory obstacles for
the registration of transfer of equity interests of Bao Xin under the name
of the Group directly. As such, the relevant arrangements in holding the

12% equity interest in Bao Xin were made.

The Company has obtained PRC legal opinion to confirm the validity and
effectiveness of such arrangement. As stated in the PRC legal opinion,
there are contractual and legal obligations binding on the nominated
shareholder and such arrangements are valid and effective under the
relevant PRC laws. In addition, the Company has obtained confirmations
from Bao Xin and the nominated shareholder to confirm its beneficial
interests in Bao Xin. Confirmation has been obtained from all the
registered shareholders of Bao Xin to confirm the shareholding of the
Group in Bao Xin.

The aforesaid arrangement has been in operation for years and the
nominated shareholder(s) have complied with the relevant contractual
and legal obligations and are the major shareholder of Bao Xin. As such,
the Company considers that the associated risks that the nominated
shareholder would be in breach of such arrangement would be relatively
low. Having considered the time and costs to obtain the relevant
approvals for the Group to become direct registered shareholder of Bao
Xin and the associated risks of not being direct registered shareholder
of Bao Xin, the Company considers that the relevant arrangements are

appropriate under the current circumstances.

The investment in Bao Xin is measured at fair value and classified as Level
3 fair value measurement. The fair value of Bao Xin is determined by
reference to the valuation carried out by an external independent valuer
by using Asset Base Approach.

If the net book value of Bao Xin was 5% higher/lower while all other
variables were held constant, the carrying amount of the investments in
Bao Xin would increase/decrease by approximately HK$210,000 (2018:
HK$278,000).

154  Annual Report %37 2019

18. BAFEFAEH

thEEBEEE

ZHBEE (ZE-N\F THEH
wEE) (&)

MisE: (4)

(iii)

RS 5 R BN M R ml g 2 AR IR K 77
TERS% MATE B B IEg T BN A
YgelR - B8 F| - Golden ResourcesfHuge
Leaderz Tx BREESD B D 1EmE
38,000/ 7T ( =& — )\ 4 : 1,082,000% 7T) *
40,0007 7T (= F — /L4 : 245,000/ 7T)
119,000/ 7T ( —ZZF — J\4F : 143,000% 7T ) &
118,000/ 7T ( =F —/\4F : 152,000 7T ) °

BER—BRPBEKLZAR TERPE
REREFECBRECHUREERKREHRD
AR o

REBPREEZHEZNE B RERBRRE
BE - AQB THINANEEZEZEEE:
EECREESRBEEAEER Bt &
NEWERBEBH 2% EZ BEEL -

ARRERBFEERERIAEREEL
ZEBMERB N -BPBEERBR MR
FHEBAPEAR BIREERRIEH AR
EBOR BERHLTHAEERBR M &

RRIERAEERERZRFREHRE U
BRARAREEZERER - AR B TNLE
BEZMBESKRRIGHERE AR

SEREE 2 RE-

P ZHEEESF BRIRERREEST
$Hfﬁm,\’]&/2{$§§i§§ WARBEZTERR -

.lﬂ: ZK wu x?ﬁE%HX%E&EE@ﬁ
?#Z*EF%FW *Hﬁ?ﬁi KERRAEEK
REEERSCBRBUSHEBL A Z FE R
ARG IFEETEECRE ZEERR
AARRFR REBEEILT HETHEE

oy

NEBZRETDRAFEFE XLHEARS3
MR FEFE- %%Z/ﬁﬂ?@)}%%’}%ﬁl\ﬁ%
B L ERNEREEERAEL 2 MEESE -

HEZREREFELATH% MHAE
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e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (2018:
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS)

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

18. BAFEF AEEMEZEHWSEE
ZHBEE (ZE-N\F THEM
wEE) (&)

MisE: (4)

(ivy Da Jian is a PRC established company and principally engaged in vy ERA-FRRPEKILZAG TERFTEH
providing credit guarantee service in the PRC. HEREEEERRS-

(vy  Bio-Energy is principally engaged in research, development and v) HEYEBRFENEAYEERMEMEED
promotion of biomass energy and other agricultural related products. One HEAELNTRE FAEMEZE-ET XK
of its subsidiaries has obtained the development and operation right of BATCDEREH#HEERSG w2
a piece of land in Xinjiang Province, the PRC, which is under construction R Z T IE R RTEE A Y B EHEY A
and plantation of bio-oil crops and shelter belt plants. MR EM e

(v Yenbo Gain Limited is incorporated in BVI and principally engaged in vi) BEBEFNERATINREBERESTIMAL
cultivation and research of the fine and new varieties forest products FTEREMAZREEE MFTRERE
together with the research and promotion of product cultivation N A 4B 280 R A B B EE Sk 55 5 1o A 3%
technology for producing clean energy purposes. NHEE-

(vii)  Perfect Worth is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are (vii) Perfect Worth B &R AT EWE QA
principally engaged in the business of online distribution of footwear. FEREELOHERES-

(viii)  Golden Resources is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries (vii) Golden ResourcesBREZI A7) HK B
are principally engaged in the business of trading of steel and related AAIEFENEHEREEAEREEXE %
products. The acquisition was completed on 11 August 2016 with the WEEENR_ZE—A"FNAT+—BZK ¥
initial cost of HK$10,000,000 settled by cash. A Z510,000,00078 JT A IR & S+t o

(ix)  Huge Leader is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are (ix) Huge LeaderBIX&EER QA HKtE AR

principally engaged in the business of trading of engineering materials.
The acquisition was completed on 26 October 2016 with the initial cost of
HK$10,000,000 settled by cash.

FERBEIRBMBEBES -2 RBEEER
—E-RNFE+TAZFANBRER AIFKAR
10,000,000/ Tt LAZB & S £+ ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (2018:
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS)
(continued)

The following is the analysis of fair value change of financial
assets at FVOCI (2018: AFS financial assets) that are measured
at fair value for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018:

18. BAFEF AEEMEEHWHEE
ZHBEE (ZE-N\F THEH
wEE) (&)

LT AEAFEFATEMEZEARSEE
MBEE(ZE—\F AIHEMBEE) R
HE_ZT-NFERZE-—N\F=A=+—H
LEFERATENEZEZAFEZESH DM :

Change in fair value during
the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=t—HLFEZ

NREEH
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Unlisted equity securities issued by: HATREIETZIELTRAES

— Bao Xin —E55 (1,359) 308
- Da Jian —EB (915) (@11)
— Bio-Energy — SR (47,985) (7,757)
- Yenbo Gain —BEF (11,490) (1,283)
— Perfect Worth —Perfect Worth (1,671) (967)
— Golden Resources —Golden Resources (1,668) (104)
— Huge Leader —Huge Leader (1,939) (66)
(67,027) (10,280)

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 19. BAFEFAEERREEB UK E

PROFIT OR LOSS E
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Hong Kong listed equity securities, BB LTRAZS KRTE
at market value (note a) (FizEa) 42,948 30,568
Investments in convertible bonds, RERABRKRES ZAFE
at fair value (note b) (FizEb) 24,931 27,100
67,879 57,668
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 19. BAFEFACEREE2HKE

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) E(E
(a) Particulars of the Group's major investments of listed (@) WBELIMRAFNEHRBE2RAEER
equity securities held by the Group as at 31 March 2019 ZE-NEFERZZE-NF=ZA=+—
and 2018 disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of Listing HREZFEZELITRAZESFREFS
Rules are as follows: UNNE
2019 —B-0F
Accumulated
unrealised
Percentage gain/(loss)
Number of  of interest Market arising on Change in
Name of investee companies Note shares held held Cost value  revaluation fair value
BftE%ER
RitRER
fisER i/
BIRENDER (i FsRO#E BAk RA T (B8) DTELD
2019 2019
—E-hE ZE-nf

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAL TAL TAL

Golden Ponder Holdings Limited (“Golden Ponder") (i) 47,750,000 5.9688% 12,451 13370 919 919

ordinary share

SRERERAR ([2RER)) f) 47,750,008 & B %
Asia Television Holdings Limited ("Asia Television”) (ii) 73,320,000 1.0392% 19,857 17,890 (1,967) (1,967)

ordinary share

SHERERERAR ([EHER]) (i) 73,320,008 & @k
China Financial Leasing Group Limited (i) 22,900,000 1.4253% 10,329 5633 (4,696) (4,696)

("China Financial Leasing") ordinary share

PEEREEEEERAR ((TALHES]) i) 22,900,008 % M
Eggriculture Foods Limited (“Eggriculture Foods") (iv) 5,750,000 1.1500% 2878 1,265 (1,613) (1,613

ordinary share

KEREERERAR ([KBEERE]) (i) 5,750,008 £ 3 %
BOSA Technology Holdings Limited (v) 1,000,000 0.1250% 1,103 1,020 83) (83)

("BOSA Technology”) ordinary share

AAREARERAR ([ARNRR]) v 1,000,0008% & %
RMH Holdings Limited (“"RMH") (vi) 3,000,000 0.5000% 2123 825 (1,298) (1,298)

ordinary share

EHERERAR ([E25]) (vi) 3,000,000 5B
Ming Lam Holdings Limited ("Ming Lam") (vii) 10,500,000 0.0705% 2,999 483 (2516) (2.516)

ordinary share

BRERERAGE ([#R]) (vii) 10,500,0008 % & X
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &=

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

(a)

—E-NF=ZRA=+—HItFE

19. RAFEFAERSRE2MBEER

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) E(E
(continued) (@ (#&)
2018 T —N\F
Accumulated
unrealised
Percentage gain/(loss)
Number of of interest Market arising on Change in
Name of investee companies Note shares held held Cost value revaluation fair value
BhEL?
ZiRER
- FrisiEs ¢:74
BXRERTER i3 FisRNEA AR KA e (B5%8) ATEE
2019 2019
E-N0E “E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TiEx TiEn THEL
China Galaxy Securities Co., Limited ("CGS") 1,616,000 0.0159% 11,435 8,436 (2.999) (3,151)
ordinary share
PESTEFROERAR ([FARTESF]) 616,000 & i@k
A. Plus Group Holding Limited ("A. Plus Group") 3,300,000 0.8250% 1,000 2,508 1,508 132
ordinary share
BEEBZRERR BEE]) 3,300,008 £ 3%
Haitong International Securities Group Limited 490,000 0.0089% 2,546 2,239 (306) (307)
("Haitong") ordinary share
SRERESREARAA ([5R)) 490,000 & B
Huadian Fuxin Energy Corporation Limited 980,000 0.0117% 1712 1970 269 258
("Huadian Fuxin") ordinary share
FERMERRNERAR ((£FEH)) 980,000 & Bt
Shangdong Molong Petroleum Machinery Co. Limited 1,958,800 0.2455% 6,362 2,311 (4.051) (1,822)
(“Shangdong Molong”) ordinary share
WRBERAERRNERAF (IWREE]) 1,958,800 & i@
GOME Retail Holdings Ltd ("GOME Retail") 2,000,000 0.0093% 1,957 1,700 (257) (257)
ordinary share
EXZEERERAR ([EXTE]) 2,000,008 £ 3%
Zhejiang Shibao Co Ltd (“Zhejiang Shibao") 555,000 0.0703% 1,929 1,082 (920) (847)
ordinary share
It ERHERAR (IHIHE]) 555,000 & i@
Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co Ltd 670,000 0.0641% 2841 2633 (208) (208)
("Dynagreen Environmental *) ordinary share
SFEPNEREERMERRA ([ZEBNRR]) 670,008 &8
Great Wall Motor Co Ltd ("Great Wall Motor") 300,000 0.0033% 3,025 2,361 (664) (664)
ordinary share
RIAERGERAR ([RANE]) 30000078 & & 1%
China Harmony New Energy Auto Holding Ltd 299,500 0.0195% 1,702 1,506 (196) (196)

("China Harmony")
PERET R B RRERAF ([RFEME])
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year

ended 31 March 2019 H#E=—ZE—NF=A=+—HBIFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes:

0]

(iif)

(iv)

Golden Ponder was incorporated in Cayman Island and its shares are
listed on Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:
1783). Golden Ponder is an investment holdings company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are provision of superstructure
building and repair, maintenance, alteration and addition works as a
main contractor. For the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the audited
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of Golden Ponder was
approximately HK$16,824,000 with basic and diluted profit per share
of HK$0.0233. As at 31 March 2019, its audited consolidated net assets
attributable to the Company was approximately HK$11,360,000. No
dividend was received during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Asia Television was incorporated in Cayman Island and its shares are listed
on Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 707). Asia
Television acts as an investment holding company. For the financial year
ended 31 December 2018, the audited consolidated loss attributable
to equity holders of Asia Television was approximately RMB800,530,000
with basic and diluted loss per share of RMB0.1135. As at 31 December
2018, its audited consolidated net assets attributable to the Company was
approximately RMB4,544,000. No dividend was received during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

China Financial Leasing was incorporated in Cayman Island and its shares
are listed on Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:
2312). China Financial Leasing and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in short to medium term capital appreciation by investing in a diversified
portfolio of investments in listed and unlisted security. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2018, the audited consolidated loss attributable
to equity holders of China Financial Leasing was approximately
HK$27,128,000 with basic and diluted loss per share of HK$0.0196. As at
31 December 2018, its audited consolidated net assets attributable to the
Company was approximately HK$1,922,000. Dividend of approximately
HK$17,000 was received during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Eggriculture Foods was incorporated in Cayman Island and its shares are
listed on GEM Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:
8609). Eggriculture Foods is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the production and sale of fresh
eggs and processed egg products in Singapore. For the financial year
ended 31 March 2019, the audited consolidated profit attributable to
equity holders of Eggriculture Foods was approximately SGD1,565,000
with basic and diluted profit per share of SGD0.0035. As at 31 March
2019, its audited consolidated net assets attributable to the Company was
approximately SGD249,000. No dividend was received during the year
ended 31 March 2019.
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

BOSA Technology was incorporated in Cayman Island and its shares are
listed on GEM Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:
8140). BOSA Technology is principally engaged in providing mechanical
splicing services to the reinforced concrete construction industry in
Hong Kong and is the second largest provider of this industry in Hong
Kong. For the financial period ended 31 December 2018, the audited
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of BOSA Technology
was approximately HK$2,314,000 with basic profit per share of HK$0.0029.
No diluted loss per share has been presented for the period ended 31
December 2018 as the Group had no potential ordinary shares in issue
during the period. As at 31 December 2018, its audited consolidated net
assets attributable to the Company was approximately HK$96,000. No
dividend was received during the period ended 31 December 2018.

RMH was incorporated in Cayman Island and its shares are listed on GEM
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 8437). RMH is an
investment holding company. For the financial year ended 31 December
2018, the audited consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
RMH was approximately SGD1,851,000 with basic profit per share of
SGDO0.0031. No diluted earnings per share has been presented for the year
ended 31 December 2018 as the Group had no potential ordinary shares
in issue during the year. As at 31 December 2018, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the Company was approximately SGD73,000. No
dividend was received during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Ming Lam was incorporated in Cayman Island and its shares are listed on
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 1106). The
principal activities of Ming Lam is investment holding. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2018, the audited consolidated loss attributable
to equity holders of Ming Lam was approximately HK$300,468,000 with
basic and diluted loss per share of HK$0.024. As at 31 December 2018,
its audited consolidated net assets attributable to the Company was
approximately HK$851,000. Dividend of approximately HK$146,000 was
received during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The fair values of the Group's investment in listed equity

securities are based on quoted market price.
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b)

Particulars of investments in convertible bonds held
by the Group as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 disclosed

pursuant to Chapter 21 of Listing Rules are as follows:

Name of investee companies

19. RAFEFAERSRE2MBEER

E(E

(b)

Unlisted debt

Place of incorporation

securities, at cost

BELTRUBENEREZAEER

—_ZT—

NER-F-N\E=ZA=+—

AR RER A RERESFRBDT

Fair value adjustment

Carrying value

BERENTER FRALBY FITEERS RAAE NTEER REE
31/3/2019 31/3/2018 31/3/2019 31/3/2018 31/3/2019 31/3/2018
“B-pF ZZ-)\F ZB-AF T /\F ZB-AF ZEF
=B=t-AB =A=+-BH =B=t-B =A=+-B =A=t-H =A=1+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FhL FHEx T FET FET
Guanwan Investments Limited (note(i)) BVI 20,000 20,000 4,931 7,100 24,931 27,100
BEREERAR (M) ERERES

On 22 December 2014, the Company invested in the 3% unsecured
convertible bonds issued by Guanwan Investments Limited
("Guanwan”) at a face value of HK$20,000,000, bearing coupon
interest rate of 3% per annum. Guanwan is an investment holding
company which indirectly hold 100% shares of its subsidiary, &Il
SHBEREBRAR ("FE". 256

designing, manufacturing and retail of women's dress in PRC. Each

is principally engaging in

convertible bond due on 22 December 2017 are convertible into 24
fully paid ordinary shares of Guanwan with a par value of USD1.00
each at a conversion price of HK$833,333 per conversion share. The
Company can exercise the conversion at any time until the maturity

date.

On 23 December 2017, the convertible bonds are renewed, and the
bonds due date extended to 22 December 2020. All of the other

terms remain unchanged.

RZT—NF+=A=+=H AQF
BRENRTBTEREERAR ([BE])E
TZIEEEMATRRES ZEEH
T 18 /20,000,00058 7T ° ?;zm?a“lfl
¢3FJ§°EF%‘7‘%&§% /NGRS
Tﬂ#ﬁﬁﬁﬁ% RIS FIERER
T(Fﬁ%&%J)ZWO%Hx{ﬁ &4
%I%EEP%%K%&&E#EE&;?
EBHNR_T—tF+ZA=+=H
T RRESFATIRRRES KRR
&A% 7833333 L AEEETREA
E1.003 T 2 8 8 IR 7% 38 fR240% - X
AR BB ATRE R T IR AR A

R-B—tF+=A=+=R T8K
EHEMES EHIMAEEE T
TEL=A-+ - FARBERY
T -
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(b) (continued)

(continued)

Investments in convertible bonds represent investments in
convertible bonds issued by Guanwan. The investments in the
convertible bonds have debt components and embedded
derivatives components. The directors of the Company designated
the combined contracts as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and recognised at fair value. The fair value of the
combined contracts as at 31 March 2019 is determined by reference
to the valuation carried out by an external independent valuer by
using Discounted Cash Flow Method and Binominal Option Pricing
Model. The inputs are as follows:

Guanwan

Underlying share price HK$1,038,801

Number of share outstanding 24
Conversion price per share HK$833,333
Time to maturity 1.7 years
Interest rate per annum 3%
Discount rate 19.22%
Risk free rate 1.35%
Volatility 57.35%

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement are the underlying share price and expected
volatility. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the

underlying share price and expected volatility.

As at 31 March 2019, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease in the expected volatility by
5% would have increased/decreased the carrying amount of the
investment by Nil/Nil (2018: HK$346,000/HK$117,000).

In addition, it is estimated that with all other variables held constant,
an increase/decrease in the underlying share prices by 5% would
have increased/decreased the carrying amount of the investment
by approximately HK$1,247,000/HK$1,246,000 (2018: HK$1,191,000/
HK$1,049,000).
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20. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

20. EBEWFHIR - RERAN R

PREPAYMENTS
2019 2018
—E-h1F —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Interest receivable JE U FI B 2,563 1,963
Prepayments TETRRIE 799 766
Other receivables and deposits paid (note a) Hi R RENike
(Pf5Ea) 59,577 59,735
62,939 62,464
Less: Provision for impairment loss (note a) R OREBEREE (Mia) (59,000) (160)
ECL allowance (note b) BHEEBERE
(7D ) (1,261) =
(60,261) (160)
2,678 62,304

Notes:

(@)

The Group's other receivables and deposits paid were mainly refundable
deposits paid for potential investments in amount of HK$59,000,000 as at
31 March 2019 (2018: HK$59,000,000) and the refundable deposits paid
was fully impaired during the year due to uncertain recoverbility of the

refundable deposits paid.

The directors of the Company estimate the loss allowance on the interest
receivables at the end of the reporting period on an individual basis, at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL taking into account the expected collection
period as these receivables are categorised as doubtful or performing
under the Group's credit risk grading framework. The directors of the
Company considered that impairment on interest receivables with an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$1,261,000 (2018: nil) was made
due to the management considered the balances were unlikely to be

recovered.

i :

(b)

R-E-NFZA=+—B AEBMZHAM
ERRBEBMEMNZETERBEREZE
AR B $2459,000,000/8 7T ( —F — )\ -
59,000,000/ 7T ) & B T HEE B4 Al iR B 1%
A E - MENAREZRSERFERER
DERER

KA RAHKEH AR R EFREREE
RSN 2 MEMEEBEENSBMETNR
SHIRMBYENSEREEE REASREALR
SENEERRFRER ZEREFIAR
DERREXETH -ARFEERS &t
TR U A BOR B4R #91,261,0008 T (= F
—NFEE)DERERERRBERTAA
g o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

20. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)
The movements in allowance for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

20. Htt EWHIR - RERBANRIER
(#)
H A R ACRRERER BT -

2019

ZE-NF

HK$'000

FHERT

At the beginning of year REFA] =

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 HNE BT TGRS AR E 5 2 & 1,261

Impairment losses recognised EERREREE 59,000

At the end of year RER 60,261
21. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 21. RITRREEF

2019 2018

ZE-NF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FHETT

Bank balances RITHER 1,137 5,744

Fixed deposits EHER S -

1,137 5,744

The effective interest rate of the deposits in 2019 range from
0.001% to 0.45% (2018: 0.001% to 0.45%) per annum and
all of them have a maturity within three months from initial
inception.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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22. SHARE CAPITAL

22. BA

Number of ordinary shares

ZEREE
at HK$0.01  at HK$0.001
each each
EREE EREE
0.013& T 0.0013& T
HK$'000
FHET
Authorised: EE:
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and RZZE—+tFMA—H -
1 April 2018 —E-N\F=A=+—H
M-_ZF—N\FMA—H —100,000,000,000 100,000
Share Consolidation &1 & ot 10,000,000,000 (100,000,000,000) =
At 31 March 2019 RZ=ZZ—NF=H=+—H 10,000,000,000 = 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and RZ—ZE—+FPMA—H "
1 April 2018 —E-NE=A=+—H1
=T NEMA—A N/ATER  8,821,857,294 8,822
Placement of new shares (note (a))  Bo & #A%1D (FsE(a)) N/ATER 1,760,000,000 1,760
Share Consolidation (note (b)) %15 & 6 (B sE(b) ) 1,058,185,729  (10,581,857,294) =
At 31 March 2019 W-ZE—HhE=F=+—H 1,058,185,729 = 10,582

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the
then existing shares in all respects.

Notes:

(a) On 2 January 2019, an aggregate number of 1,760,000,000 new ordinary
shares of par value of HK$0.001 each were issued at subscription price
of HK$0.018 each to the independent third parties of the Company at
aggregate proceeds of approximately HK$30,888,000, net of issuing
expenses directly related to respective placements, of which HK$1,760,000
was credited to share capital and the remaining balance of HK$29,128,000

was credited to the share premium account.

(b) On 21 March 2019, the Company completed the consolidation of shares in
the issued shares of the Company whereby every ten issued and unissued
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each are consolidated into one consolidated
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each (the “Share Consolidation”).

RENBRTORARGRE S ARG
EECE S 2

P &E :

(@)

R=-—ZE—hE—HA=H" 4&%H,760,000,000
f% & B T E0.00178 7T 2 #T L BRI B AR R
BECOISEBILBITTARRIMBYE =7 "
FT 15 3008 & 5 #930,888,0005% 7T (1B B2 4R
RS EEAENEITHAY) - £51,760,000
BILEET AR - MR T 458229,128,0007 7T
BT ARDRER-

RZZE—NAE=ZA-+—8 KAFTHEAN
ARIBEITROZBROEH SR SRET
TR B EE0.001E T 2 B 81T AR BT
TRBEHAE—BREREEOVETLZA N
L@mpk (TR EHE]) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

23. RESERVES 23. it
Company ARAFE
Investment
Share revaluation ~ Share option  Accumulated
premium reserve reserves losses Total
ROEE REEHRE BRERE RitB#R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET FAT THT TER
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZZ—+F=A=+—-HK
“T—+tFmA—AH 343,632 36,011 123411 (254,641) 248,413
Loss for the year AEEBE = = = (17,508) (17,508)
Other comprehensive income Hiv2Els
Change in fair value of AHENBEEZATEED
available-for-sale
financial assets = (9,106) = = (9,106)
Reclassification of investment BBRTLENBEERELRE
revaluation reserve upon BREEHREZENDE
impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets - 68 - - 68
Total comprehensive income for the year 2% & 2 F % 8 5E = (9,038) = (17,508) (26,546)
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZZE-N\F=ZRA=+-H
RZF-N\FmA—AH 343,632 26,973 123,411 (272,149) 221,867
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 & /X & 3 & 8 B 75 #1  2E Al
FORLTE - (16,326) - 16,326 -
Restated as 1 April 2018 RZZ-\FHA—H
BEY 343,632 10,647 123,411 (255,823) 221,867
Loss for the year AFEBE = s = (87,083) (87,083)
Other comprehensive income Hit2Els
Change in fair value of financial BATEFAEAMEE
assets at FVOCI WaRE MEERE
ATEEY - (64,753) - - (64,753)
Placing of new shares FEMR 29,128 = = = 29,128
Share options lapsed BRMERE - - (57,630) 57,630 -
Total comprehensive income AEEREKGEE
for the year 29,128 (64,753) (57,630) (29,453) (122,708)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1+—H 372,760 (54,106) 65,781 (285,276) 99,159
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

23.

24.

RESERVES (continued)

The following describes the nature and purpose of each

reserve within owners’ equity:

Reserve

iR

— - i
— - e

China Investment DevelopmentVLimited o HEREREERAT — —

23. e (&)
T B AP0 S G 2 1B R A #
2

Description and purpose

Bk B8

Share premium

P tn i (8

Investment revaluation reserve

REEMHE

Exchange reserve

IE

Share option reserve

RS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 April 2009 for
the primary purpose of providing incentive to directors and
eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors
of the Company may grant options to eligible employees,

including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,

Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

RERABEELmE-

Gains/losses arising on recognising financial assets classified as financial
assets at FVOCI at fair value.
REATFESMBEEERD B REBEATEFAEEMEERREEZ
PIig & EmE £ 2 W Eia e

Gains/losses arising on retranslating the net assets of foreign operations

into presentation currency.

R ERENREBINEBEEFEMELE 2 KRS BE-

Cumulative expenses recognised on the granting of share options to the

employees over the vesting period.

iR EEE AR B R LB EER R A -

24. iR REST &
ARNARBR-ZEZNEMAAEBBZ R
BRIMMERESE (58 TE8 K
AEBHEERAEKES BEHE AR
AEEEANMAERES (BEAAFRE
WEARNES) LT REAQ ARG 2B
RRHRE o 5 AR A B R AR M A B S 1R 11,00

to subscribe for shares of the Company. Consideration of T o

HK$1.00 is payable by each grantee upon acceptance of an

option.
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 30 July 2013, the shareholders have approved the
refreshment of the 10% scheme mandate limit under the
Scheme of the Company in the annual general meeting. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company's shareholders.
Option previously granted under the Schemes including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the Scheme
or exercised options will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the limit as “refreshed”. On 24 January 2014,
the number of shares in respect of which options had been
granted to eligible persons under the Scheme was 64,430,000,
representing 8.37% of the shares of the Company in issue at
that date. Options granted to independent non-executive
directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company's share capital and
with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company's shareholders. On 16 September
2014, 81,100,000 share options were granted to subscribe for
a total of 81,100,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
in the share capital of the Company to eligible participants,
subject to acceptance of the eligible participants, under the
share option scheme adopted by the Company on 9 April
2009. Among the 81,100,000 Share Options granted, a total of
9,350,000 Share Options were granted to the Directors, chief

executive and a substantial shareholder.
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24. BRFERE (E)
TREBEREZ - —

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company's

NE=HA=+—H1

share options granted under the Scheme during the year FERBHEIRENARGIBRE L #F)
ended 31 March 2019:
Number of share options
BREHE
Ratify
Exercise At Granted  Exercised Lapsed previous At
price per 1 April during during during lapsed 31 March
Category Date of grant Exercise period share 2018 the year the year the year  share option 2019
RZB-NEF RUBE R-B-NF
o] RHAH fix:d ] BRITEE mA-B  FARE  FROR FAXM XMERE ZA=t-8
Executive director 24 January 2014 24 January 2014 to HK$1.824* 12,000,000 - - (12,000,000 - -
23 January 2019
BES ZZ-ME-AZTEE ZZ-ME-A-TEEZE  184FT*
“2-N¥-A-t=H
Non-executive director 24 January 2014 24 January 2014 to HK$1.824* 2,600,000 - - (2,600,000) - -
23 January 2019
FNTES “Z-ME-A-tOUA “E2-ME-A-TEAE  18MET
“E-NE-AZ1=H
Independent non-executive 24 January 2014 24 January 2014 to HK$1.824* 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) = =
directors 23 January 2019
BUHTES “Z-ME-AZTEE ZT-ME-A-THEZE  184FT*
“2-N¥-A-t=H
Others 24 January 2014 24 January 2014 to HK$1.824* 48,330,000 - - (48,330,000) - -
23 January 2019
Hih Z2-ME-AZ+WAE ZZ2-ME-A-+NAZE 18248
“E-NE-AZ1=H
Executive director 16 September 2014 16 September 2014 to HK$1.560% 4,220,000 - - (2,110,000) = 2,110,000
15 September 2019
BiTES ZZ-MENRTAAR  ZE-MEARTAHE 15604 7T
“E-N\ENAATER
Non-executive director 16 September 2014 16 September 2014 to HK$1.560* 130,000 - - - - 130,000
15 September 2019
FHTES Z2-MEARTAE  ZE-NFAATABE 15608
“E-NEAATER
Independent non-executive directors 16 September 2014 16 September 2014 to HK$1.560* 5,000,000 - - (5,000,000) = &=
15 September 2019
BUHTES ZZ-MENRTAAR  ZE-MEARTAAHE 156047
“E-N\FNAATER
Others 16 September 2014 16 September 2014 to HK$1.560% 71,750,000 - - (500,000) - 71,250,000
15 September 2019
Hify Z2-MENARTAR  ZE-MEAATAAE 15607 7T
“E-NEAATER
Total 145,030,000 - - (71,540,000) - 73,490,000
@t
* As at the date of grant, the exercise prices of the share options were * Q % uuj_a CIERENITEERISUB TR
HK$1.824 and HK$1.56. As a result of the share subdivision effected on 5678 JT ° Etlﬁ/\\\:ﬁi: —HEF-A-BENZ
2 January 2015, the exercise prices were adjusted to HK$0.1824 and HQ@T i 4 55 (& FHE £0.1824/8 7T % 0.1560
HK$0.1560. The exercise prices were adjusted to HK$1.824 and HK$1.56 //% /f IS :f —“NE=ZA=+—BRHEH
following the share consolidation on 21 March 2019. 1% TP ERARE1.8248 T R 1.567 T
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

25.

The number and weighted average exercise price of the share
options exercisable at the end of the reporting period are
73,490,000 (2018: 145,030,000) and HK$1.56 (2018: HK$0.1676)

respectively.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for share
options outstanding at the end of the reporting period is 0.5
years (2018: 1.2 years). The weighted average share price at
the date of exercise of options exercised during the year was
HKS$nil (2018: HK$nil).

The total number of securities available for issue under the
share option scheme as at 31 March 2019 was 73,490,000
shares (2018: 1,450,300,000 shares) which represented 6.94% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2019
(2018: 16.44%).

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

Net asset value per share is calculated by dividing the net
assets included in the consolidated statement of financial
position of approximately HK$105,871,000 (2018: net assets of
HK$230,318,000) and the number of ordinary shares in issue
as at 31 March 2019, being 1,058,185,729 (2018: adjusted as
882,185,729).
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24. R RERHE (&)

25.

REEHARAITEBREZEHE RNEF
B1T1EE D Bl A73,490,00000 (—ZF— )\ :
145,030,00013 ) & 1.56% 7L (=& — )\ F:
0.167687T) °

B AR EMARHE 2 M F R A
WEBROSE (ZF—\F:1.28) F R
B AT GRS B 20 1 02 B 5.2 A0 7 2 AR B
BT (=T \F THT) ©

RZZE—hGE=ZA=+—8 BREFEE
TR B 1T 2 B H 4R 2 AB73,490,0000% (=
= — )\ 4F : 1,450,300,0008% ) B 17 A& R &
RAR_E-—NFZA=Z+—HZBEETK
R6.94% (ZF—)\F :16.44% ) o

BREEFE
BREEFERTAGEMBRAKRZE
EF{E#105,871,0008 T (Z T — )\ F:
& EF{E230,318,0008 T ) B AR - F
—NEFEZA=+—HZEBHTEEREE
1,058,185, 729 (ZE—N\F & FAEH
882,185,729/% ) 5t & -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26. BEAETRS
(@) Compensation of key management personnel, including @ FEEBAS(BDEREFKEMEE

the directors and other members of key management,

during the year is as follows:

ERAB)FAMESNT

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4+ EBE R EWHI= 2,410 3,783
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EREENe 2 E—PHBIARES
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements. WIS mEMIFE14 -
During the year, the Group entered into the following b) FW K& BB ANLTEIL AT
transactions with related parties: R5:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Name of related party Nature of transaction HK$'000 HK$'000
BEALZRE REME FHET FET
China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited Investment manager fee 720 720
("China Everbright”) (Note i)
FEXKRES (BB BRAF HEKIBE A
(MpExAR) (KEED
Note: Mz -
()  On 30 April 2018, the Company renewed the investment () RZZE—NFHEA=+H ARrFHEF

management agreement with China Everbright for a period of three
years effective from 1 May 2018. The annual investment manager’s FRA-ARE

fee payable to China Everbright is HK$720,000 (2018: HK$720,000). B R ZE&

BfAESEREEERE BTN\

BRP=F-BFE
& #5128 A /720,000

BT (ZZF— )\ : 720,000 7T) °
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27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
The Group has participated in a defined contribution
"MPF Scheme”)

under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the

for all eligible employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustee. Under the scheme, each of
the Group (the employer) and its employees makes monthly
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance. The contributions from each of the
employer and employees are subject to a maximum
contribution of HK$1,500 per month with effective from 1
June 2014 (2018: HK$1,500) and thereafter contributions are
voluntary. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the

contributions payable in the future years.

The total contributions charged to the consolidated income
statement amounted to approximately HK$79,000 (2018:
approximately HK$85,000), representing contributions payable
to the MPF Scheme by the Group in respect of the year ended
31 March 2019.

27. RIKBRIFE

AEEZERAFERBEF BRI SMER

BREEERE2EETRHABHIELESS
g ([REEE]) BREsr 8z EERAK

SECEESFA HETAEFNZESEE-
BEZTE A5E (EX) REEESHRK
BEBZHFE(TERANMELTESFTEIR
B 25%F ArsaEE st sEEHR- 8=
T-MFESA—BE - BEEXxREESEZH
HExmA® A1,5008 T (ZF — V& 11,500
BIT) v b8 2 KB B FE o I S UL A
W R A 2 SR e

quJKi* Bl R 2 AR #I79,00078 TT

T — )\ : 498500078 7T) - fE AR E B
@i_7 NF=ZA=t—HILLFEENNR

kPR

28. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 28. RREMEAIE

At the end of reporting period, the minimum lease payments RBEHR - RETAHELEEERES

under non-cancellable operating leases for leased premise are MERN 2 REHRSFIENT : —

payable as follow:—

2019 2018
ZE-NF — N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR 2,069 2,138
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFLF (BEEBEMF) - 1,939
2,069 4,077
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29. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 29. R=ZZE—-hF=A=+—-HERA
FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 T AR R T+’
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FExT FAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment E RN E 47 65
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZKE 781 781
Available-for-sale financial assets AL EMEEE - 86,442
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFATCHEMEZE
other comprehensive income W RIE 2 S EE 21,689 -
22,517 87,288
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BRATESATERERE 2
profit or loss Mg EE 67,879 57,668
Other receivables, deposits and HihpE e - me &
prepayments TET FRIE 2,619 62,205
Amounts due from subsidiaries AR EENGIE ] 19,234 18,905
Bank and cash balances RITEREERF 1,093 5,443
90,825 144,221
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accrued charges HtEAHRIERESER 3,601 820
3,601 820
Net current assets REBEEFE 87,224 143,401
Net assets EEZRE 109,741 230,689
EQUITY s
Share capital % 22 10,582 8,822
Reserves G 23 99,159 221,867
Total equity e 25 109,741 230,689
On behalf of the directors REgEe
Yang Xiaoqiu Chan Cheong Yee
BER fFE=
Director Director
EE 3
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30. ZBRIB D M BEERMBAR
BE
TRIIRH TR RE RSB B EER

30. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values
of the Group's financial assets and liabilities as defined in note

BEZERENMATE:
4(f):
2019 2019 2018
ZE-hE —E-hE ZE-N\F
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE AVE REE AYE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER TAL TERL
Financial assets: MREE:
Financial assets at fair value through BATESAEAM 2 EKE
other comprehensive income REHKEEE
— Unlisted equity securities —FETRAES 31,787 31,787 = S
Available-for-sale financial assets: HENKEE:
- Unlisted equity securities —FLTRAES - - 98,814 98,814
Financial assets at fair value through BRRVEFAEEREEL
profit or loss BHEE
- Investments in convertible bonds - RENARRES 24,931 24,931 27,100 27,100
- Listed equity securities — FHRARES 42,948 42,948 30,568 30,568
Financial assets measured at amortised costs XS At & 2 MK EE
- Other receivables and deposits paid —HEEEFIERERNES 1,879 1,879 - -
- Bank and cash balances - BIRBEeER 1,137 1,137 = =
Loans and receivables TR EYGIR
- Other receivables and deposits paid -HtERFBERE MRS - - 61,538 61,538
—Bank and cash balances —-HIRREET - - 5,744 5,744
Financial liabilities B%EE
Financial liabilities measured at BHEKAHECHEER
amortised cost 3,601 3,601 821 821

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:—

TRINTEAFHESRE D AR FEINEZ
M TASN: -

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

F—A: HEREERBEZERTIGME CREHE)

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

B BH#E (AER)KEE (AREER)NEENBE 2B RE ABUER  MIEE—RHF
BIERE: &

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

F=M: WHERABEMIGHBENEEXBE 2B AZR (TAIBR 2B ASIE) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

30. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

30. RERIEI D e MBEERMBAE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BE (&)
(continued)
2019
—E-hF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-1 et EER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER TAL TERL
Financial assets at fair value through BALEFAEEEZEKE
other comprehensive income REZHBEE
— Private equity securities - IBREES s s 31,787 31,787
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEGFAERRER
profit or loss ZHBEE
— Listed equity securities - ETRAE S 42,948 = = 42,948
- Investments in convertible bonds —RERRRESR - - 24,931 24,931
42,948 - 56,718 99,666
2018
“T-N\F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— F-H E=R @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET AT FAET
Available-for-sale financial assets THERKEE
— Private equity securities —TEREE S - - 98,814 98,814
Financial assets at fair value BRAVFEGACEREE
through profit or loss ZHBEE
- Listed equity securities — FRAES 30,568 - - 30,568
— Investments in convertible bonds —&ER AR KRES - - 27,100 27,100
30,568 - 125914 156,482
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30. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)

Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair value

based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are as

follows:

Z-NF=A=+—HILFE

Financial assets
at fair value
through profit or
loss: Investments

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income:
Investments in

30. REBE D o MBEERMBAE
WE (")

REERTABERGAZE (F=F)UR
FEIENMBTAZHERMNT

in convertible unlisted equity
bonds securities Total
BAFEFAE
BRAVEFAL Hth2mEK R
BREEy RECHEEE:
BBEE RE BRERFLT
RUBRKES RAE % @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THET THET
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-N\EMA—A 27,100 98,814 125914
Purchases BE
Total gain/(loss) as/ (B8)
—in profit or loss (note a) —PE% (Kfsta) (2,169) - (2,169
— in other comprehensive income - REMEERE
(note b) (Bistb) S (67,027) (67,027)
At 31 March 2019 “E-NFZA=1—H 24,931 31,787 56,718
Gain/(loss) recognised in profit or loss AAEBERRE B PLERE
relating to financial instruments held B TARER R
by the Group at the end of reporting date 24z (EE) (2,169) - (2,169
At 1 April 2017 :2 +EMA—H 26,459 109,094 135,553
Purchases BE
Total gain/(loss) !u i
— in profit or loss (note a) WE # ( MT ita) 641 (1,550) (909)
—in other comprehensive income (note b) —-REM2ERE (FEb) - (8,730) (8,730)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=ZA=1+—H 27,100 98,814 125914
Gain/(loss) recognised in profit or loss AAEBRRE B LR
relating to financial instruments held PEsB s TARBR TR
by the Group at the end of reporting date 24z (EE) 641 (1,550) (909)
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30. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 30. REBE S M BEERMBER
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY wE (")
(continued)
Notes: P 5E
(@  Included in the change in fair value of and net realised gain/(loss) on (@ FTARAFESAEEBREEZHMBEER
disposal of financial assets at FVTPL. THEz2BHRHERATFEFATERRE

ZHBEEZER#BRWE (BIR)F5HE-

(b)  Included in the OClI related to investment revaluation. b) FFABBREEHz2EMEEKE-

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3. KEAREEBEEREE
AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include equity FEBEFTEVHBITABERARE HAifE
investments, other receivables, other payables, borrowing and WIE HMERNRIE - EERENESRK
amount due to directors. Details of these financial instruments BH-ZEMB TR ZFHBER BB TRE-
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with EHZEUB IR Z AR RANEBERLRE
these financial instruments and the policies applied by the ZERRBIBEHINNT EEEERZS
Group to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management B AR B R B N E S EE o

monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Interest rate risk A = =

Except for the cash and cash equivalents which carry KIS RIESZMEY LT R B4 2K
floating interest rate, the Group has no other significant EEYGEE LB R S Y EANSE
interest-bearing assets with floating rates. The Group's income E AEFRRARKLE S EEAEDEE
and operating cash flows are substantially independent of TR THIEH R EH) o

changes in market interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis BRBE DA

Assuming the balance at 31 March 2019 was the amount BRN—E hE=A=t-ATERTE

for the whole year, if the interest rate was 50 basis points R A MR R TSk T RRS0(E R

< 7Ty = A == = nl

higher or lower and all other variables were held constant, TS EETE A AEEEE —
7~ i N 2 n < —

the Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2019 would T NESA= B EEYERERD

decrease or increase by HK$5,685 (2018: decrease or increase o 48 1105, 68578 7T (= F — J\ 4= i 4 3 4 A

by HK$28,720). 28,720/ 7T) °
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign

operations.

Sensitivity analysis
The following table shows the sensitivity analysis of a 5%
increase/decrease in RMB against the Hong Kong dollars, the

effect in the loss for the year is as follows:

. MBEREEEEREE (&)

SMEE [ By

REBEBKBER AZREZEEE 25
ERE EPEZRABREKEARE(TAR
%) - HNERBRIKBBINER 2 RIRFEER
5 CHREERBERARKEFE-

HRESN
TRITARB R ETAE B EREH AR
FEBRZEZGREIN:

Impact of RMB

ARMZ%
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Increase/decrease in loss for the year REFEEBEM R 286 305
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES N FBHREREEBEEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk B% 7 B 4% 3 B

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from REBERZBRABRER  HREBREGS W
investments in convertible bonds, investments in PRC unlisted BRREKF DB REAFEFAERMEE
equity securities and investments in Hong Kong listed equity WHRBMBEERSE (MF18) KA
securities, which were classified as either financial assets at FEFACESZRREEZHEEE (B3219)
FVOCI investment (note 18) or financial assets at FVTPL (note ZABBRESFRE PRHIELFTRAESFK
19) on the consolidated statement of financial position. To BERBEELTRAZFRE - REBKRE
manage its price risk arising from investments in financial MBEEMES 2 BREAR K~EBHEH
assets, the Group diversified its portfolio. WEHE -

Sensitivity analysis BREDN

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5% TREGATEFEEMESEFTE 2BRAT
(2018: 5%) change in the fair value of the financial assets with RIBEVBEERNRERRZEAESETE
all other variables held constant and based on their carrying NTEGHES (ZF—/\F:5%) 2 &
value amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the Eo-RAFEFATEMEZEAKSEE 2
financial assets at FVOCI investment, the impact is deemed BEEREMES  BRAZHWERFLHIK
to be on the investment revaluation reserve and no account is BEMHBEBTE I EEZEE MR
given for factors such as impairment, which might have impact BEEAgrrERGRRCEER.

on the income statement.

Impact of available for sale
financial assets/Financial
Impact of investments assets at fair value through Impact of investment in Hong

in convertible bonds other comprehensive income Kong listed equity securities

HERKEE RATE
SAERMREREREZ BB LWRAES
RERTRRES 2 HE MHEEzHE REvHE
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

“e-hE “EF\F —®-AF ST\E CB-AE CFAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE  TAT TR TR TER  TAR

Increase/decrease in loss XEEBE

for the year B0,/ mo 1,247 1,355 = = 2,147 1,528
Increase/decrease in HitEmRE

other equity reserve &/ B S S 1,589 4,941 S =
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

The Group's management considers that all financial assets
that are not impaired under review are of good credit quality,

including those that are past due.

None of the Group's financial assets are secured by collateral

or other credit enhancement.

The credit risk for bank deposits and balances is considered
negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with
high quality external credit ratings.

The followings are credit risk management practices and
quantitative and qualitative information about amounts arising

expected credit losses for each class of financial assets.

Other receivables and deposits

Apart from credit-impaired other receivables with loss
allowance of approximately HK$1,261,000 as disclosed in
note 20, the Group provides for 12-month ECLs for all other
receivables and deposits at initial recognition. Where there
is a significant deterioration in credit risk or when the other
receivables and deposits are assessed to be credit-impaired,
the Group provides for lifetime ECLs. The ECLs incorporate
forward looking information such as forecast of economic
conditions. The Group considers the consistently low historical
default rates of counterparties. It is concluded that credit
risk inherent in the Group's remaining other receivables and
deposits is insignificant. The Group has assessed that the
remaining other receivables and deposits do not have a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
risk of default is insignificant, therefore the ECLs for these
remaining other receivables and deposits were immaterial
under the 12-month ECLs. No loss allowance for remaining
other receivables and deposits was recognised for the year
ended 31 March 2019.
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BRI SRR LA LM EURIE LR S
AHR12E A FREEEERE -HEERR
BEBREMRAIA ML S W ERE
ERE ARESFRFENNBRREES
BRE-BHREEREMAARNBEEERIE
IR IERE - AEEERBEHF T RAE
IKFZELENR  AMHEEBARESRTZ
HAt EYGRE kRS 2 AEEE R BRI T
BE-AKECHER T 2 EMREFIER
BE ) EE R B )5 RE R AR 57 1T
MEEDRRIY NEE B #2128 A8
HEEBBRFTE ZEHRT 2 HEME KRR
ez BMEEBRRYTERN-BE_F
—NF=ZA=+—BUIFE ITEHRHKTZ
Hip EURIA Mg & iR B R



— . - i

China Investment DevelopmentvLimited o FERAMBARATT — —

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE =T —WF=A=1+—HILFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES N FBHREREEBEEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk REBEERER

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors REERBERRRME AEEEELE
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed BERERATB R e MRSEBEYKE
adequate by the management to finance the Group's NRAEEEBEERHES WRAEHRE
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows. MERB B - R _T— \FERHEME
With regard to 2018 and thereafter, the liquidity of the Group REBZRHES T ERRNBHRBHR
is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash AR ECRENLBBETREENRNE
flow from operations and to raise funds through issue and £E®URES T B B B BB AIEZ
allotment of new shares to meet its debt obligations as they Be

fall due.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the REBRBERR M B REZNRERWAT

end of reporting period is as follows:

Total Within

Carrying undiscounted one year

amount cash flows or on demand

RER

R E RERERE —-FARKER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AL THT THT
As at 31 March 2019 RZE-AF=A=t—-H

Other payables and accrued charges Hib A REREGER 3,601 3,601 3,601
As at 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=A=1+—H

Other payables and accrued charges HibENREREFER 821 821 821
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32. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Group's objectives of managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,

issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as debts divided by total assets. Debts included other
payables and accrued charges, borrowing and amount due
to directors and total assets included non-current assets and
current assets as shown in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

32. BEEEHE
AEBEZESERBRREAEERSE
RE ARBRRBEREAB R SEMERRTE
NGRS RRFEFREERNGSHEURE
BARARK BT RABELRAEE A5H
AREBRARRKN 2RSSR RREED
BEARBITHRO I EEENREET -

AEBEABRARME-B HEEREL
RREEERER - WHRTINEKKREE
BEFE - MEEMBRARMAT BHE
BEMENKBEREFER BERENE
ERE MEEREBREREIFRBDEENR

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as RBERAR - BEBGBLEMT:
follows:

2019 2018
—EB-NF ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Debts &7 3,601 821
Total assets BERE 109,472 231,139
Gearing ratio BEARLE 3.29% 0.36%
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33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING BEMEFTHELEZREHR
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TRAJMEEDEEZAEBAGEEZH (B
arising from financing activities, including both cash and BRERIFREEY) MEZTHELZE
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities BEDRRERNEIARKESRENEIEER
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will mERenEXR EARERETH RS
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash mELZBE.

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Net proceeds
from issue of

new shares

BATHR G

RS RIERE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 April 2017 R_Z—+tFmMHA—H -

Financing cash flows MERESRE =

At 31 March 2018 R-ZF—-\F=A=+t—H -

Financing cash flows BMERERE 30,888

At 31 March 2019 RZE-—NF=ZA=+—H 30,888

34. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 34. #LER KK
The financial statements were approved and authorised for EFGORT-AFAAAZTNABHER
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2019. RETIZME®RE -
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHBHME

Year ended 31 March
BE=RA=1—-HLEFE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE —“E-N\E T+ —F-XF —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET TET TET FET
RESULTS S
Revenue Wz 600 600 600 602 227
Loss before income tax expense BRETEHA AT EE (87,911) (19,365) (14,707) (23,.974) (88,885)
Income tax expense FERAX S S S = -
Loss for the year attributable to ARTBEBARGEAFE
owners of the Company B8 (87,911) (19,365) (14,707 (23,974 (88,885)
Year ended 31 March
BZE=RA=1+—-HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE —F-N\F ZZ—+tF ZET-RF —T-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TEL TET TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE 37,778 105,423 115,361 100,464 68,346
Current assets MEEE 71,694 125,716 144,276 188,343 121,819
Current liabilities MEEE (3,601) (821) (1,822) (2,389) (1,098)
Non-current liabilities FrRBasE - - = = S
Total equity ERaE 105,871 230,318 257,815 286,418 189,067
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